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Lakewood Board of Education 
200 Ramsey Avenue, Lakewood, NJ 08701 Main Ofllcc: (732) 364-2400 Fax: (732) 905-3687 

Laura A. Winters, Superintendent of Schools Kevin Campbell, Cl' A, I'SA, SBA, Interim Business Administrator 

Honorable President and Members of the Board of Education 
Lakewood Township Public Schools 
200 Ramsey Ave. 
Lakewood, New Jersey 0870 I 

Dear Members of the Board of Education: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Lakewood Township School District 
("District") for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests 
with the management of the Lakewood Township Board of Education ("Board"). To the best of our 
knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the 
various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding 
of the District's financial activities have been included. 

The CAFR is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical and Single Audit. The 
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart, a roster of 
principal ofticials and a list of consultants and advisors, The financial section includes the basic 
financial statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary information, as 
well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic 
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual 
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended in 1996, of 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Treasury OMB Circular Letter I 5-08, 
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants, and State Aid Payments. 
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure 
and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and findings and recommendations, is included in 
the single audit section of this report. 

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by the National Council on Governmental 
Accounting (NCGA) Statement 3. All funds of the District are included in this report. The District and 
all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity. 
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The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to general, vocational, as well as 
special education for handicapped adolescents in Pre-school through Grade 12. 

The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last several years: 

Fiscal Year 
--,----

Student Enrollment Percent Change 
----- ----- -- ·- - ---- ·t 

2016-17 5,919.50 -2.96% 
·--- ·- f 2015-16 6,100.00 1.33% 

' 2014-15 6,020.00 4.40% 

2013-14 
t· 

5,766.50 5.29% 
t 

2012-13 ' 5,477.00 
I 

3.00% 
-+ ... ~ . 

2011-12 5,317.50 0.79% -+ -- -- -- --~------'" - !· --" 
20!0-11 5,276.00 0.07% 

' ---\- ----

2009-10 5,272.50 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

Lakewood Township is located about 60 miles from New York and Philadelphia, and only lO miles 
from the Jersey Shore. As of July 1, 2016, the Township had a population of approximately 100,758 
residents according to the United States Census Bureau and represents individuals of all ethnic and 
national origins and socio-economic levels. Industrial development in the Township is centered by two 
large industrial parks. One is located around a municipality-owned airport in the southeast section of 
the Township, and the second has the advantage of railroad access in the southwest portion of the 
Township. Lakewood, among the area communities, is the only one with an Urban Enterprise Zone. 

Lakewood is also home to Monmouth Medical Center Southern Campus, an accredited acute care 
hospital which is part of the Saint Barnabas Health Care System; Georgian Court University, 
accredited by The Middle States Commission on Higher Education and licensed by the New Jersey 
Commission on Higher Education; Beth Medrash Govoha, licensed by the New Jersey Commission on 
Higher Education and accredited by the Association of Advanced Rabbinical and Talmudic Schools; 
The Strand Theater, designed by world-renowned theater architect Thomas Lamb which opened in 
1922; and The Lakewood BlueCiaws, a South Atlantic League affiliate of the Philadelphia Phillies. 

The Township of Lakewood provides a variety of municipal services including excellent recreation 
facilities through a system of township-owned parks and playgrounds, as well as, a branch of the 
Ocean County Library and Ocean County Parle Development and expansion show no signs of 
stopping which suggests the Township of Lakewood will continue to grow. 

The Lakewood Township School District has a Superintendent of Schools who is the Chief 
Administrative Officer. The Business Administrator oversees the Board's business functions and 
reports through the Superintendent to the Board. 
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The Lakewood School District includes five elementary buildings, two comprising Pre-school through 
Grade I and three comprising Grade 2 through Grade 5, a Middle School comprising Grade 6 through 
Grade 8, a High School comprising Grade 9through Grade 12, and a large Pre-school campus. 
Lakewood High School is known for the harmonious way the various segments of its population work 
together, as well as its fine academic programs. High School students may elect to participate in 
Career Academies with over twelve ditlerenl pathways, Vocational, or Tech Prep Education programs, 
JROTC, or attend the Achievement Academy. Our 2016 graduates were accepted to such prestigious 
colleges and universities as Central Connecticut State, Concordia College, Gannon University, 
Georgian Court University, Johnson C. Smith University, NC, Johnson and Wales University, Kean 
University, Montclair, NJIT, NY IT, Neumann University, Nova Southeastern University, Richard 
Stockton College, Seton Hall, South Plains College, TCNJ, University of the Sciences and Virginia 
State among others. 

Academic Programs 

A broad range of academic programs from Advance Placement and Honors to basic skills are designed 
to meet the diverse needs of students in the Lakewood schools. Basic skills in reading, writing, and 
mathematics are stressed at the elementary level, with continuing emphasis throughout all grades. Art 
and music classes, physical education, computer, and library skills are part of every student's schedule 
at the elementary level. Chorus, band, and orchestra (including free lessons) are offered to start at 
Grade 4 as part of the curriculum. 

To provide students with assistance and opportunities for success, the Lakewood School District has 
many services, such as district-wide guidance and career services, bilingual/ESL education, a special 
education program and a sports program. 

Academically Gifted Program 

The Academically Gifted Program consists of two self-contained classes housed at Clifton Avenue 
Grade School. One class combines third and fourth-grade students, and the other combines students in 
grades four and five. Criteria for selection include achievement tests and teacher recommendation. 
Students in Kindergarten through Grade 2 who are identified as academically-gifted receive 
enrichment from their classroom teacher, 

Honors Courses 

Advanced Placement and Honors-level courses are available at the High School in English, Social 
Studies, Science, Math, World Language, and the like. 

Sports Program 
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Students in Middle School and High School have an opportunity to participate in sports. This year, 21 
teams will represent Lakewood High School in varsity sports competitions, and 8 teams will compete 
at the Middle School level. 

Preschool Program 

Research has shown thai it is important to focus on the education of our children as early as possible. 
As a result, the Lakewood School District has instituted a FuJi-day Lakewood Pre-School Program for 
three and four-year-old students, who are randomly selected. The district added 9 preschool general 
education classrooms in the 20 I 5-20 16 school year and another 3 in the 20 16-20 17 school year. 
Children must be three years old by December 31" to enroll in the Program. A teacher and aide are 
assigned to every fifteen children for instruction each day. Students learn various skills, like 
understanding a calendar and paying attention to details. They also are prepared for the language, 
reading and math lessons they will have in future grades. Bus transportation is provided for all 
students. 

AU-Day Kindergarten 

As of July 2001, the District offered ail-day Kindergarten classes in every school. 

Family Life Education 

Parents may have their child(ren) excused rrom any part of instruction in Family Life Education which 
is in conflict with his or her conscience or sincerely-held moral or religious beliefs. 

Guidance services are available to students at all levels. Periodically, guidance counselors meet with 
students to offer social, emotional and academic support. 

At the Elementary level, counselors organize group discussions on common problems, such as making 
friends and dealing with emotions. Counselors also serve to strengthen communications between 
parents and teachers and are always available to discuss problems students may be having at home. 
Counselors are able to direct students and parents to readily-available support services in the 
community. 

At the Middle and High Schools, counselors work closely with parents and students to plan course 
selections which would best meet their academic and career goals. 

Extensive help is available through the High School Guidance Oftice for colleges and/or vocational 
planning. The LHS Career Center contains a wealth of information about jobs and careers both in 
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written form and on computer databases. Special evening workshops are held to infonn parents and 

students about college preparation and procedures for obtaining financial aid. 

When appropriate, counselors can arrange for individual tutoring services or home tutoring in cases of 

extended illness. Students and parents are encouraged to contact theil· guidance counselors at any 

time. 

Vocational Education 

The Ocean County Vocational-Technical School System offers programs that are designed to prepare 

students for entrance into a career t1eld upon graduation. High School students who wish to choose a 
vocational career path may sign up in the LHS Career Center. 

Career Services 

In accordance with the New Jersey School·to-Career Initiative, the Lakewood School District offers a 

comprehensive career development program in addition to school and work-based learning services. 

Students in Grades 9-12 develop individual portfolios of work, education, and career-related 

experiences to guide them in selecting the career and post-secondary education that best suits their 

interests and abilities. 

Testing and Assessment 

In 1875, the State constitution guaranteed that students in New Jersey would receive an education in 

free public schools. Since that time, much of education law has centered on providing that education 

for all students and paying for it. Content standards in many disciplines were recently designed to 

determine what students throughout New Jersey should know and be able to do as part of that 

education. 

Administrators and teachers in the Lakewood School District have been changing and modifying 

curricula to incorporate Student Learning Standards across the curricula. The seven academic areas 

are the Visual and Perlhrrning Arts, Comprehensive Health and Physical Education, Language Arts 

Literacy, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies and World Languages. 

In addition, there are five standards that are associated with career education and apply to all areas of 

instruction: I) All students will develop career-planning workplace readiness skills; 2) All students 

will use technology information, and other tools; 3) All students will use critical-thinking, decision­

making, and problem-solving skills; 4) All students will demonstrate self-management skills; 5} All 

students will apply safety principles. 

PARCC assessments will be given in the spring of2017 to measure student growth. 

v 



Basic Skills 

Students in grades K-2 who need assistance achieving proficiency in English Language Arts receive 
assistance through a data-driven Response-to-Intervention program. 

Bilinguai!ESL Program 

The Bilingual Education Act ensures that students with Limited English Proficiency ("LEP") are 
provided with instructions which will allow them to continue to develop academic skills while 
acquiring English language skills. 

An English Language Proficiency Test is administered to students before entering the program to 
detennine whether they need the Bilinguai/ESL Program. 

The Bilingual Program in the Lakewood School District is a full-time program of instruction in all 
subjects (which a student is required to receive) given in the native language of the student and/or in 
English. All students in the Bilingual Program also receive daily English as a Second Language 
("ESL") instruction in order to develop and improve their communication skills, such as aural 
comprehension, speaking, reading, and writing skills in English. Students leave the Bilingual Program 
based on English Language Proficiency Test results, standardized test results in English, reading and 
teachers' recommendations. 

Special Services Departme11t 

The Department of Special Services provides specialized programs for handicapped and non­
handicapped students. Occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech therapy and nursing services 
are furnished to students, as appropriate. In addition, an outstanding adaptive physical education 
program is available for students with identified needs. Social Service intervention is provided for 

non-handicapped students. 
Special education programs follow a New Jersey State Department of Education Three Year Plan of 
service and are guided by State and Federal code. All professionals serving handicapped students are 
appropriately certified by the State of New Jersey. Annually, the New Jersey State Department of 
Education provides a program review of Special Education services, certifYing appropriate compliance 
while approving programs that have been introduced. 

Special Education Services 

The Lakewood School District employs medical specialists, psychologists, teaming consultants and 
social workers as Child Study Team members. Thus, a full continuum of services along with 
innovative programs and techniques are provided, allowing for each student to participate in the least 
restrictive environment to the maximum extent possible. 
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Direct classroom service is provided by teachers of the handicapped, adaptive physical education 

instructors, occupational therapists, speech therapists and physical therapists. Many students receiving 

special education assistance remain in the classroom and are provided with supplemental aids and 

services. Handicapped students who have remained within the standard educational program have 
demonstrated extensive educational improvement. 

Many programs have been developed for students experiencing significant educational handicaps. 

Programs that serve the significantly educationally-handicapped alleviate the need for out-of-district 

placement locations, which require extensive travel time. 

Health Services 

Students in the Lakewood Public Schools are served by school physicians and full-time, fully-certified 

school nurses. The School Nurse is a member of the professional staff who carries out health services 

in accordance with the regulations of the State of New Jersey and the Board of Education. The School 

Nurse provides health screenings, monitors immunization requil'ements and completes health records. 

Preschooll'rogram Enrollment 

The Lakewood School District provides preschool programming for handicapped students between the 

ages of 3 and 5 who are identified as having handicaps in one or more of the following areas: motor, 

communication-language, cognitive, physical, social-emotional and medical. Evaluation to determine 

eligibility for the program may begin 90 days prior to the child's third birthday. Child Study Team 

assessment and recommendation are required for enrollment. An Individual Education Plan ("IEP") 
outlining services to be provided based on the child's individual needs is written for each child 

entering the preschool program. 

Home Instruction 

When a pupil is unable to attend school for an extended time, as documented by the attending 

physician or Child Study Team, he/she may receive Home Instruction. 

Senior Citizen Volnnteer Program 

Since 1991, many senior citizens have been faithfully reporting to the public schools to assist teachers 

and work with children, either individually or in small groups, from Kindergarten through 5th Grade, 

including Special Education and the Library/Media Center. Senior Citizen Volunteers, under the 

direction of a classroom teacher, may focus on readiness skills, reading, mathematics, writing or a host 

of other educational needs that children have. 
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Grants Management 

Competitive and non-competitive grants are funds that are awarded for specific educational purposes. 

Grant money, which can come from the Federal government, the State of New Jersey, or even private 

foundations, provide the funds for programs, equipment, training or services that benefit our children 
and teachers without adding additional costs to the school budget. 

Even though applying for grants takes hours and hours of work filling out detailed application forms, 

creating a working budget and justifying needs, the Lakewood administration and staff aggressively 

sought and received more than one million dollars for such competitive grants as Even Start Family 

Literacy Program; Family and Childhood Early Education Services and School-to-Careers 
Opportunities Initiatives. 

The Lakewood School District is committed to seeking additional funding, but grants alone are not 

sufficient to give our children the education they need. Helping our children become successful, 

productive citizens takes a strong commitment fmm everyone in our community. 

Sclaooi-Based Program 

Lakewood Middle and High School students, ages 13-19, including their families, graduates and those 

who have dropped out of school, can take advantage of the School Based Youth Services Program. 

The School-Based Program, a collaboration among Preferred Children's Services, the Lakewood 

School District, and the New Jersey Department of Human Services, was implemented in !988 to 

provide "one-stop shopping" for students and their families in the areas of counseling, health, 
recreation, and employment. 

Students who are referred by community agencies, family members and self, or Lakewood School 

administrators and faculty, receive such services as individual, parent-child, family and group therapy; 

monitoring of high risk students; home visits; pregnancy testing options and family planning 
counseling; self-esteem workshops; life skills; peer pressure management; overnight camping and 

job/college readiness, etc. 

3. MAJOR EDUCATIONAL INITIATIVES 

Our staff is aggressively working to help students raise their scores on standardized tests. The Library 

at the High School is open three (3) days a week until 5:00 p.m. for student use. Students are also 

receiving extra help through remedial instruction. At the Middle School, a Homework Club is being 

held three (3) days per week staffed by different area teachers to assist students in the various 

disciplines. 

Since the summer of 2009, a Bridge Program was instituted at the Middle School to assist eighth 

graders in theil' transition to High School. A Summer Scholars Program was operated at the High 

School funded in part with federal and state grants. 
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4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure 
designed to ensure thai the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure 
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these 
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (I) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal and stale financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that 
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic 
evaluation by the District management. As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are 
made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that pmtion related to 
federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied 
with applicable laws and regulations. 

A detailed Manual of Standard Operating Procedures and Internal Controls was developed during the 
2008-09 school year and updated as needed during the 2009-2010 and 2010-2011, and 2014-2015 and 
2015-2016 school years in accordance with the requirements of the School Accountability. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of 
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special 
revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital 
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the 
fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. 

The 2016-2017 budget was prepared, utilizing the Budget Projection capabilities of the district's 
accounting system (Systems 3000). Use of this system reduced the amount of time needed by 
administrators to prepare their budget and enabled the business office to efficiently review budget 
submissions and make changes in accordance with district priorities and goals. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line 
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of 
fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re··appropriated in the subsequent school 
year are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30,2017. 
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6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS 

The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The 
accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in 
"Notes to the financial Statements," Note I. 

7. CASH MANAGEMENT 

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the 
Financial Statements," Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to 
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the 
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect 
Governmental Units from loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New 
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act. 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile 
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on proper(y and contents, and fidelity 
bonds. 

9. MAJOR FINANCIAL HNITIA TIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

The district passed a thir(y-four million dollar bond referendum in 2014-2015 to upgrade the school 
facilities and prior lease purchase defeasance. The upgrades included roofing and heating ventilation 
air conditioning systems throughout the district. Some of these projects have been ongoing for the 
2016-2017 school year. The newer and more efficient technology installed is anticipated to lower 
energy costs in the future. A significant reduction in the annual repair and maintenance costs are also 
expected due to the enhancements. 

10. OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit - New Jersey State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified 
public accountants. The accounting fim1 of Lerch, Vinci & Higgins, LLP was selected by the Board. 
In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet 
the requirements of the OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments. and Non-Profit 
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Organization, and State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-0MB, Single Audit Policy for Requirements of 

Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid. The Auditor's report on the basic financial statements and 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this 

report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit 

section of this report. 

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Lakewood Township Board of 

Education for their unwavering support in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers 
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Honorable President and Members 
of the Board ofTrustees 

Lakewood Board of Education 
Lakewood, New Jersey 

Report on the Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

ELIZABETH A. SIIICK.CPA . RMA.I'SA 

ROBERT W. HAAG. CPA. PSA 

DEBORA II K. LERCH.CI'A. PSA 

RALPH M. I'ICONE. CPA. RMA, PSA 

DEBRA GOLLE. CPA 

CINDY JANACEK. CPA . RMA 

MARK SACO. CPA 

SHERYL M. NICOLOSI. CPA. l'SA 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education 's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Re!>ponsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to 
fi nancial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's judgment, including the assessment of the ri sks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opmwns. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of June 30,2017, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Lakewood Board of Education's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining fund financial 
statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New 
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Lakewood 
Board of Education. 

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of 
state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial 
statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 29, 2017 on our 
consideration of the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that rep011 is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education's internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Fair Lawn, New Jersey 
November 29, 2017 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

This section of Lakewood Board of Education's ("Board" or "District") comprehensive annual financial repmt presents 
our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2017. 
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District's financial statements, 
which immediately follows this section. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative 
information between the current year (2016-2017) and the prior year (2015-2016) is required to be presented in the 
MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for the 2016-2017 fiscal year are as follows: 

• The liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the Lakewood Board of Education exceeded its assets and 
deferred outflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $31,0003,455 (net position deficit). 

• Net position decreased from a deficit of $27,249,772 at June 30, 2016, as restated, to a deficit of $31,003,455 at June 
30,2017, which represents a decrease of$3,753,683. 

• Overall general revenues of $115,272,075 accounted for 53 percent of all revenues and overall program revenues of 
$100,541,729 accounted for 47 percent of total revenues of $215,813,804. 

• The School District had $219,567,487 in overall expenses of which $100,541,729 were offset by program specific 
charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues of $115,272,075 helped offset these expenses. 

• The School District had $214,374,064 in expenses for governmental activities; only $95,125,824 of these expenses 
were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions. General revenues (predominantly property taxes) of 
$115,265,571 were adequate to provide for these programs. 

• At June 30, 2017, the District's governmental funds reported a combined fund deficit of $12,30 I ,61 0, a decrease of 
$9,009,662 when compared to the previous year ending fund deficit of$3,291,948 at June 30,2016, as restated. 

• The General Fund unassigned fund deficit at June 30, 2017 was $11,163,135 a decrease in the deficit of $2,149,845 
when compared with the ending fund deficit of $13,312,980 at June 30, 2016, as restated. 

• The General Fund unassigned budgetary fund deficit at June 30, 2017 was $4,353,898, which represents a decrease in 
the deficit of $2,470,694 when compared to the ending unassigned budgetary fund deficit of $6,824,592 at June 30, 
2016. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial section of the comprehensive annual fmancial report consists of four parts - independent auditor's report, 
required supplementary information which includes the management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that 
present different views of the District: 

• 

• 

The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term information 
about the District's overall financial status. 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the 
District's operations in more detail than the district-wide statements. 

The governmental fonds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education were financed in 
the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

Proprietary fonds statements offer short - and long-term financial information about the activities the district 
operates like businesses. 

Fiduciary fonds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District acts solely 
as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong. 

Organization of Lakewood Board of Education's 
Annual Financial Report 

Management's 
Discussion 

and 
Analysis 

District-Wide 
Financial 

Statements 

Basic 
Financial 

Statements 

Fund 
Financial 

Statements 

Required 
Supplementary 

Information 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more 
detailed data. The above chart shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another. 

The following exhibit summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the 
District's activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of 
management's discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

District-wide Fund Financial Statements 
Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

Scope Entire district (except The activities of the Activities the district Instances in which the 
fiduciary funds) district that are not operates similar to district administers 

proprietary or private businesses: resources on behalf of 
fiduciary, such as Food Service Fund. someone else, such as 
Instruction, special scholarships and student 
education aod activity funds. 
building 
maintenance. 

Required fmancial Statement of net position Balaoce sheet, Statement of net Statements of Fiduciary 
statements Statement of activities Statement of position, net position, 

revenues Statement of revenue, Statement of changes in 
expenditures aod expenses aod changes fiduciary net position 
chaoges in fund in fund net position 
balaoces Statement of cash flows 

Accounting Basis Accrual accounting and Modified accrual Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and 
and measurement economic resources focus accounting and economic resources economic resources 
focus current fmancial focus focus 

focus 
Type of All assets, deferred outflow Generally assets All assets and All assets ao liabilities, 
asset/liability of resources, liabilities aod expected to be used liabilities, both both short-term and 
information deferred inflows of up aod liabilities that financial aod capital, long-term; funds do not 

resources, both fmancial come due during the aod short-term and currently contain capital 
aod capital, short-term aod year or soon there long-term assets, although they 
long-term after; no capital assets cao 

or long-term 
liabilities included 

Type of All revenues and expenses Revenues for which All revenues aod All additions aod 
inflow/out flow during year, regardless of cash is received expenses during the dedications during the 
information when cash is received or during or soon after year, regardless of year, regardless of when 

paid the end of the year; when cash is received cash is received or paid. 
expenditures when or paid. 
goods or services 
have been received 
aod the related 
liability is due aod 
payable 

District-Wide Statements 

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to those 
used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of 
the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

The two district-wide statements report the District's net pos1t10n and how they have changed. Net position - the 
difference between the District's assets and liabilities/deferred inflows of resources- is one way to measure the District's 
financial health or position. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

District-Wide Statements (Continued) 

Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its fmancial position is 
improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the 
amount of State funding and the condition of school buildings and other facilities. 

In the district-wide financial statements the District's activities are presented in two categories: 

Governmental Activities - Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and special 
education, transportation, administration and operations and maintenance of plant. State and federal aid and 
property taxes finance most of these activities. 

Business-Type Activities - The District charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it 
provides. The District's food service fund is included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds - focusing on its most 
significant or "major" funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of 
specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs. The District considers the general fund, special revenue 
fund and debt service funds to be major funds. 

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 

• The district uses other funds established in accordance with the State of New Jersey Uniform Minimum Chart of 
Accounts, to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain 
revenues (e.g., federal funds). 

The District has three kinds of funds: 

Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally 
focus on ( 1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the 
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide 
a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be 
spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not encompass the 
additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the 
governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

Proprietary funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. The 
activities of the District's food service program are accounted for as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds are 
reported in the same way as in the district-wide statements. 

Fiduciary funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the Scholarship 
fund. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended 
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate 
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities 
from the district-wide financial statements because the District carmot use these assets to fmance its operations. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Notes to the basic financial statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data [Jrovided in the government­
wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found following the basic financial 
statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary itiformation concerning the District's budget process. The District adopts an annual expenditure liudget 
for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been [Jrovided for the 
general and special revenue funds as required supplementary information. The required supplementary information can 
be· found following the notes to the basic financial statements. 

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary comparisons. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 

The district's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the 
acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets. 

Net position. The District's combined net position deficit for governmental activities and business-type activities were 
$31,003,455 on June 30, 2017 and $27,249,772, on June 30, 2016, as restated. 

Assets 
Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Oeferred Outflows of Resources 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabilities 
Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 

Net Position 
as of June 30,2017 and 2016 

Governmental Activities 
2017 N!!i 

(Restated) 
I5,468,390 $ 34, II4,243 
46,988,609 36,656,998 

62,456,999 

9,I09,599 

7I,566,598 

77,403,30I 
28,056,348 

I05,459,649 

4I6,068 

I05,875,7I7 

11,619,710 
I 

( 45,928,830) 

70,77I,24I 

3,796,244 

74,567,485 

66,499,474 
37,553,922 

104,053,396 

840,539 

I04,893,935 

I0,770,458 
I 

(4I,096,909) 

Business-Type Activities 
2017 2016 

(Restated) 
$ 3,563,034 $ 3,089,620 $ I9,03I,424 $ 37,203,863 

685,68I 547,223 47,674,290 37,204,22I 

4,248,7I5 3,636,843 

4,248,7I5 3,636,843 

933,772 556,970 

933,772 556,970 

9,279 3,I95 

943,05I 560,I65 

685,68I 547,223 

2,6I9,983 2,529,455 

66,705,7I4 

9,I09,599 

75,8I5,3I3 

77,403,301 
28,990,I20 

106,393,421 

425,347 

106,8I8, 768 

I2,305,39I 
I 

(43,308,847) 

74,408,084 

3,796,244 

78,204,328 

66,499,474 
38, II0,892 

I04,610,366 

843,734 

I 05,454, I 00 

11,3I7,68I 
I 

(38,567,454) 

$ (34,309,II9) $ (30,326,450) $ 3,305,664 $ 3,076,678 $ (3I,003,455) $ (27,249,772) 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (Continued) 

By far the largest portion of the District's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and 
improvements, buildmgs and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to its students; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The following table presents the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016 which resulted 
in decreases of $3,753,683 and $5,413,641, respectively. 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 
Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants and Contribution 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Federal and State Aid 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 
Instruction 
Support Services 

Student and Instruction Related Services 
General Administrative Services 
School Administrative Services 
Central and Other Support Services 
Plant Operation and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 

Food Service/Community School 
Unallocated Depreciation 
Interest on Long Term Debt 

Total Expenses 

Changes in Net Position 

Change in Net Position 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2017 and 2016 

Governmental Activities 
2017 2016 

$ 94,961,199 $ 74,320,059 

164,625 52,277 

95,374,297 
18,449,737 
1,441,537 

210,391,395 

I 07,696,262 

53,439,607 
3,261,815 

6,057,411 
2,970,516 

9,560,255 
29,373,313 

862,105 
1,152,780 

214,374,064 

90,893,807 
17,073,309 

1,567,374 

183,906,826 

89,677,847 

51,684,343 
2,632,224 

5,523,041 
2,550,977 
8,217,595 

27,225,354 

703,668 
1,094 793 

189,309,842 

$ 

$ (3,982,669) $ (5,403,016) $ 
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Business-Type Activities Total 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

376,242 $ 

5,039,663 

6,504 

5,422,409 

5,193,423 

5,193,423 

228,986 $ 

324,594 $ 

4,885,735 

958 

5,211,287 

376,242 $ 
100,000,862 

164,625 

95,374,297 

18,449,737 
1,448,041 

215,813,804 

107,696,262 

53,439,607 
3,261,815 
6,057,411 

2,970,516 
9,560,255 

29,373,313 
5,221,912 5,193,423 

862,105 
1,152,780 

5,221,912 219,567,487 

324,594 
79,205,794 

52,277 

90,893,807 

17,073,309 
1,568,332 

189,118,113 

89,677,847 

51,684,343 
2,632,224 
5,523,041 

2,550,977 
8,217,595 

27,225,354 
5,221,912 

703,668 
1,094,793 

194,531,754 

(10,625) $ (3,753,683) ~$ ~d("'5,4""1~3,""64"'1) 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Changes in net position. The District's total revenues were $215,813,804 and $189,118,113 for the years ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016, respectively. Property taxes of$95.3 million and $90.9 million accounted for 44% and 47% ofthe total 
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. State and Federal formula aid accounted for 9% and 
9%, while operating grants and contributions were 46% and 43% of total revenues for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016. The remaining revenues for both years were obtained from capital grants and contributions, investment earnings 
and miscellaneous revenues. 

The total cost of all programs and services was $219,567,487 and $194,531,754 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016, respectively. The District's expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. Instruction 
represented 49% and 46% of total expenses in fiscal years 2017 and 2016. The purely administrative activities of the 
District accounted for only 6% of total costs for both fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Plant 

State/ 
Federal 

Aid, 

and 
Grants 
55% 

Operations Pupil 

Sources of Revenues 
For Fiscal Year 2017 

Other 
1% 

Sources of Expenses 
For Fiscal Year 2017 

& Maintenance Transportation 
Other 

3% 

4% 1 

3eneral, School 
and Central 

Administration 
6% 

Student 
Instruction 

Related 
Services 24% 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental Activities 

The following schedule presents the cost of each of the District's largest governmental activities programs as well as each 
program's net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost shows the 
financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions. 

• Net position for governmental activities decreased $3,982,669 and $5,403,016 for the year ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. 

• The total revenue earned from all governmental activities was $210,391,395 and $183,906,826 for the years 
ended June 30,2017 and 2016, respectively. 

• The cost of all governmental activities was $214,374,064 and $189,309,842 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016. 

• After applying program revenues, derived from operating grants and contributions of $94,961,199 and 
$74,320,059, capital grants and contribution of $164,625 and $52,277 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016, respectively; the net cost of services of the District were $119,248,240 and $114,937,506 for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

• The amount that taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $95,374,297 and $90,893,807 for 
fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively. Unrestricted State and Federal aid provided $18,449,737 and 
$17,073,309 in fiscal years 2017 and 2016 to fund the District programs. 

Net Expense of Governmental Activities 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2017 and 2016 

Function/Program: 

Instruction 
Support Services 

Student and Instruction Related Services 
General Administrative Services 
School Administrative Services 
Central and Other Support Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 

Unallocated Depreciation 
Interest on Long Term Debt 

Total 

Total Cost 
of Services 

2017 2016 

$ 107,696,262 $ 89,677,847 

53,439,607 51,684,343 
3,261,815 2,632,224 
6,057,411 5,523,041 
2,970,516 2,550,977 
9,560,255 8,217,595 

29,373,313 27,225,354 
862,105 703,668 

1,152,780 1,094,793 

$ 214,374,064 $ 189,309,842 
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$ 

Net Cost 
of Services 

2017 2016 

65,256,841 $ 62,431,721 

16,341,839 14,762,547 
3,159,770 2,447,410 
4,636,371 4,440,656 
2,407,830 2,132,182 
6,359,692 5,576,635 

19,497,555 21,350,874 
862,105 703,668 
726,237 1,091,813 

$ 119,248,240 $ 114,937,506 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Business-Type Activities 

The cost of Business-Type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $5,193,423 and $5,221,912, 
respectively. These expenses relate to the operation of the District's school breakfast, lunch, snack and summer food 
programs. These costs were funded in 2017 and 2016 by operating grants (93% and 94%), charges for services (7% and 
6%) and investment earnings. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of 
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing requirements. In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District's net resources available for spending at the end of 
the fiscal year. 

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District 
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund deficit of $12,301,610 for the year ended June 30, 
2017 compared to a fund deficit of $3,291,948 for the year ended June 30, 2016, as restated, a decrease of$9,009,662 for 
the current year. 

Revenues for the District's governmental funds were $196,145,378 and $174,421,001, while total expenditures were 
$211,271,471 and $195,360,892 for the fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016, respectively. The District also realized 
other financing sources of $6,116,431 during fiscal year 2017 from capital lease proceeds and a state aid advance loan. 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary operations in providing educational 
services to students from pre-kindergarten through grade 12 including pupil transportation activities and capital outlay 
projects. 

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund Revenues. 

Amount of 
June 30, Increase Percent 

2017 2016 !Decrease} Change 
Local Sources: 

Property Taxes $ 94,088,028 $ 90,350,168 $ 3,737,860 4% 
Other Local Revenue 1,785,661 2,518,850 (733, 189) -29% 

State Sources 41,040,256 35,930,399 5,109,857 14% 
Federal Sources 1,375,024 566,510 808,514 143% 

Total Revenues $ 138,288,969 $ 129,365,927 $ 8,923,042 7% 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

GENERAL FUND (Continued) 

Total General Fund revenues increased by $8,923,042 or 7% from the previous year. Local property taxes increased 
$3,737,860 or 4% from the previous year. Overall state and federal aid increased $5,918,371 or 16% from the previous 
year. 

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund expenditures: 

Amount of Percent 
June 30, Increase Change 

2017 2016 

Instruction $ 78,851,259 $ 74,312,050 $ 4,539,209 6% 
Support Services 63,771,120 60,482,108 3,289,012 5% 
Cap ita\ Outlay 2,735,308 376,225 2,359,083 627% 
Debt Service 1,698,641 294,406 1,404,235 477% 

Total General Fund Expenditures $ 147,056,328 $ \35,464,789 $ 11,59\,539 9% 

The general fund expenditures increased by $11,591,539 or 9%. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is based on 
accounting for certain transactions on the budgetary basis of accounting for revenues, expenditures and encumbrances. 
The most significant difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles is 
the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain delayed or deferred state aid payments for budgetary purposes only. 
The most significant budgetary fund is the General Fund. 

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times through appropriation transfers 
between budget line items and appropriation of additional state aid. 

General Fund budgetary revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary expenditures, increasing budgetary 
fund balance $288,710 over the previous year. The unassigned budgetary fund balance deficit decreased $2,470,694 from 
a deficit of$6,824,592 at June 30, 2016 to a deficit of$4,353,898 at June 30, 2017. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. The revenues include federal funds, state funds, private donations and contributions. 

Revenues in the District's Special Revenue Fund totaled $55,591,547 for the year ended June 30, 2017. State sources 
accounted for $26,508,213 or 48% of the total. Federal sources accounted for $27,412,710 or 49% of the total. 

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund totaled $52,990,332 for the year ended June 30, 2017. Expenditures were for 
instruction (34%), student and instruction related support services (60%) and transportation (4%) and maintenance/capital 
outlay (2% ). 

At June 30, 2017 the Special Revenue Fund reported deferred revenue of $540,908. This amount represents funds that 
were received during the 2016/17 school year but were not expended as of June 30, 2017. The district may utilize these 
funds in the subsequent year in accordance with the terms and provisions contained in their grant contracts and 
agreements. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

The Capital Projects Fund includes all revenue sources for major capital projects of the District. The District issued serial 
bonds as a result of a successful referendum passed by the voters of the District in a previous year. The proceeds of the 
bonds are being utilized to fund various capital improvement projects for district facilities. During 2016/17, the District 
incurred expenses of $8,977,423 related to these projects. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

The District maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for activities which are supported in part through user fees. 

Enterprise Fund -The District uses the Enterprise Fund to report activities related to the Food Services program. The 
District's Enterprise Fund provides the same type of information found in the District-wide financial statements, business­
type activities, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of this Fund have already been addressed in the 
discussion of the District's business-type activities. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

At June 30, 2017, the District had invested in excess of $47 million in a broad range of capital assets, including school 
buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-visual equipment and various other machinery and equipment. Total 
depreciation expense for the year was $1,602,403. No depreciation is recorded on construction in progress until such 
facilities are placed into service. 

Land $ 

Buildings and Improvements 

Machinery and Equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total $ 

Capital Assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016 

Governmental 

Activities 

143,800 $ 143,800 

41,680,132 41,479,785 

7,675,783 4,976,197 

28,339,949 19,362,526 

(30,851,055) (29,305,310) 

46,988,609 $ 36,656,998 $ 

Business- Type 

Activities 

1,081,646 $ 886,530 

(395,965) (339,307) 

685,681 $ 547,223 

$ 143,800 

41,680,132 

8,757,429 

28,339,949 

(31,247,020) 

$ 47,674,290 

Additional information of the District's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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$ 143,800 

41,479,785 

5,862,727 

19,362,526 

(29,644,617) 

$ 37,204,221 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Long-Term Liabilities 

At year-end, the District has $77,403,301 in long-term liabilities; the District had $34,222,699 in outstanding general 
obligation bonds, including unamortized premium, $3,114,777 in outstanding capital leases, $26,747,060 in outstanding 
net pension liability, $51,710 in outstanding deferred pension obligations, $8,676,165 in state aid advance loans payable, 
$1,192,907 in register audit recoveries and $3,397,983 in employee compensated absences payable. More detailed 
financial information about the District's long-term liabilities is presented in Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Long-Term Liabilities as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 

Governmental Activities 

Percentage 

2017 2016 Change 

(Restated) 

General Obligation Bonds $ 33,445,000 $ 34,695,000 -4% 

Add: Unamortized Premium on Bond 777,699 806,765 -4% 

Obligations Under Capital Lease Agreements 3,114,777 3,119,827 0% 

Net Pension Liability 26,747,060 18,877,918 42% 

Deferred Pension Obligations 51,710 76,649 -33% 

State Aid Advance Loan Payable 8,676,165 4,050,000 114% 

Register Audit Recovery 1,192,907 1,325,452 -10% 

Compensated Absences Payable 3,397,983 3,547,863 -4% 

Total $ 77,403,301 $ 66,499,474 16% 

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE 

While many factors influence the District's future, the availability of state aid, special education needs, nonpublic school 
requirements, capital improvements and the economy will have the most impact on educational and fiscal decisions in the 
future. 

Many of these factors were considered by the District's administration during the process of developing the fiscal year 
2017-2018 budget. The primary factors were the District's projected student population, anticipated state and federal aid 
as well as increasing salary and related benefit costs. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Business Office, Lakewood Board of 
Education, 200 Ramsey Avenue, Lakewood, New Jersey 08701. 

16 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



EXHIBIT A-1 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,134,844 $ 1,878,824 $ 5,013,668 
Receivables, net 

Receivables from Other Governments 12,963,778 383,841 13,347,619 
Accounts 593,867 593,867 

Internal Balances (1,264,899) 1,264,899 
Other Assets 40,800 40,800 
Inventories 35,470 35,470 
Capital Assets, not being depreciated 28,483,749 28,483,749 
Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 18,504,860 685,681 19,190,541 

Total Assets 62,456,999 4,248,715 66,705,714 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Amount on Net Pension Liability 9,109,599 9,109,599 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,109,599 9,109,599 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 71,566,598 4,248,715 75,815,313 

LIABILITIES 

Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 7,340,707 7,340,707 
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 19,888,385 933,772 20,822,157 
Unearned Revenue 540,908 540,908 
Accrued Interest Payable 286,348 286,348 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 3,342,723 3,342,723 
Due Beyond One Year 74,060,578 74,060,578 

Total Liabilities 105,459,649 933,772 106,393,421 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Amount on Net Pension Liability 416,068 416,068 
Deferred Commodities Revenue 9,279 9,279 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 416,068 9,279 425,347 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 105,875,717 943,051 106,818,768 

NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 11,619,710 685,681 12,305,391 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service 1 I 
Umestricted (45,928,830) 2,619,983 (43,308,847) 

Total Net Position $ (34,309,119) $ 3,305,664 $ (31,003,455) 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-2 

LAKEWOOD BOARD 01<' EDUCATION 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Program Revenues Cbanges in Net Position 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 
FunctionsfPrograms Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Governmental Activities 
Instruction 

Regular $ 49,774,796 $ 24,999,306 $ 80,046 $ (24,695,444) $ (24,695,444) 
Special Education 44,558,540 14,218,311 (30,340,229) (30,340,229) 
Other Instruction 11,774,822 3,057,179 84,579 (8,633,064) (8,633,064) 
School Sponsored Activities/Athletics 1,588,104 (1,588,104) (1,588,104) 

Support Services 
Student and Instruction Related Svcs. 53,439,607 37,097,768 (16,341,839) (16,341,839) 
General Administrative Services 3,261,815 102,045 (3,159,770) (3,159,770) 
School Administrative Services 6,057,411 1,421,040 (4,636,371) (4,636,37l) 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 9,560,255 3,200,563 (6,359,692) (6,359,692) 
Pupil Transportation 29,373,313 9,875,758 (19,497,555) (19,497,555) 
Central Services 2,970,516 562,686 (2,407,830) (2,407,830) 

Interest on Long-Term debt 1,152,780 426,543 (726,237) (726,237) 
Unallocated Depreciation 862,105 (862,105) (862,105) 

Total Governmental Activities 214,374,064 94,961,199 164,625 (119,248,240) (ll9,248,240) 

Business-Type Activities 
Food Service 5,193,423 $ 376,242 5,039,663 222,482 222,482 

Total Business-Type Activities 5,193,423 376,242 5,039,663 222,482 222,482 

Total Primary Government $219,567,487 $ 376,242 $ 100,000,862 $ 164,625 (119,248,240) 222,482 (119,025, 758) 

General Revenues, Special Items and Transfers: 
General Revenues: 

Property Tax:es, Levied for General Purposes, Net 94,088,028 94,088,028 
Tax:es Levied for Debt Service 1,286,269 1,286,269 
Federal and State Aid· Unrestricted 15,313,946 15,313,946 
Federal Grants for School Based Budgets 2,601,215 2,601,215 
Federal and State Aid Restricted for Debt Service 534,576 534,576 
Unrestricted Interest Earnings 69,231 6,504 75,735 
Miscellaneous Income 1,372,306 1,372,306 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 115,265,571 6,504 115,272,075 

Change in Net Position (3,982,669) 228,986 (3, 753,683) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year (Restated) (30,326,4501 3,076,678 p7,249,772} 

Net Position, End of Year $ (34,309,119) $ 3,305,664 $ (31,003,455) 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Slalements are an integral part of this statement 
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EXHIBIT B-1 

LAKEWOOD BOARD 01<' EDUCATION 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

Special Capital Debt Total 
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 1,086,300 $ 1,572,296 $ 2,658,596 
Cash with Fiscal Agents $ 476,248 476,248 
Receivables 
Receivables From Other Governments 3,558,386 9,405,392 12,963,778 
Accounts Receivable 171,962 171,962 
Due from Other Funds 421,905 7,993,101 124,458 8,539,465 

Other Assets 40,800 40,800 

Total Assets $ 4,497,339 $ 18,656,755 $ 1,696,754 $ $ 24,850,849 

LIABILITillS AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 
Accounts Payable $ 5,427,221 $ 13,960,745 $ 500,419 19,888,385 

Other Liabilities -Health Premium 
Due to Other Funds 9,382,459 9,382,459 

Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 7,340,707 7,340,707 

Unearned Revenue 540,908 540,908 

Total Liabilities 14,809,680 21,842,360 500,419 37,152,459 

Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Restricted 
Capital Projects 1 '196,335 1,196,335 

Debt Service $ I 
Committed 

Year End Encumbrances 476,248 476,248 

Assigned 
Year End Encumbrances 374,546 374,546 

Unassigned (11,163,135) (3,185,605) {14,348,740) 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) (10,312,341) {3,185,605} I, 196,335 {12,301,610} 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 4,497,339 $ 18,656,755 $ 1,696,754 $ $ 24,850,849 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS OF JUNE 30,2017 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)- Governmental Fonds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net position (A-I) are different because: 

Capital assets used in goverrunental activities are not fmancial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost 
of the assets is $77,839,664 and the accumulated depreciation 
is $30,851,055. 

Certain amounts resulting from the measurement of the net pension liability are 
reported as either deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources 
on the statement of net position and deferred over future years. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The District has fmanced capital assets through the issuance 
of serial bonds and long-term lease obligations. The interest 
accrual at year end is: 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as 
liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist 
of the following: 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

Serial Bonds Payable 

Obligations Under Capital Leases 
Compensated Absences 
Deferred Pension Obligation 
State Aid Advance Loan 
Registered Audit Recovery 
Net Pension Liability 

$ 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement. 
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9,109,599 
(416,068) 

(34,222,699) 

(3,114,777) 
(3,397,983) 

(51,710) 
(8,676,165) 
(I, 192,907) 

(26,747,060) 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBITB-1 

(12,301,610) 

46,988,609 

8,693,531 

(286,348) 

(77,403,301) 

(34,309,119) 



EXHffiiTB·2 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Special Capital Debt Total 
General Revenue Projects Service G<lvernmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

REVENUES 
Local Sources 

Property Tax Levy $ 94,088,028 $ 1,286,269 $ 95,374,297 
Interest Earned 51,757 $ 17,474 69,231 
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,733,904 $ 1,670,624 3,404,528 

Total- Local Sources 95,873,689 1,670,624 17,474 1,286,269 98,848,056 

State Sources 41,040,256 26,508,213 961,119 68,509,588 

Federal Sources 1,375,024 27,412,710 28,787,734 

Total Revenues 138,288,969 55,591,547 17,474 2,247,388 196,145,378 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 
Instruction 

Regular Instruction 27,789,163 15,624,234 43,413,397 
Special Education Instruction 39,959,821 2,161,991 42,121,812 
Other Instruction 9,686,561 160,548 9,847,109 
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 1,415,714 1,415,714 

Support SeiVices 
Student and Instruction Related SeiVices 18,247,648 31,777,391 50,025,039 
General Administration 3,018,188 102,045 3,120,233 
School Administration 4,988,322 4,988,322 
Central Services 2,488,315 2,488,315 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 8,221,712 1,008,789 9,230,501 
Pupil Transportation 26,806,935 1,990,709 28,797,644 

Debt SeiVice 
Principal 1,652,800 1,250,000 2,902,800 
Interest and Other Charges 45,841 997,388 1,043,229 

Capital Outlay 2,735,308 164,625 8,977,423 11,877,356 

Total Expenditures 147,056,328 52,990,332 8,977,423 2,247,388 211,271,471 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over(Under) Expenditures (8, 767 ,359) 2 601,215 (8,959,949) (15,126,093) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Capital Lease Proceeds 476,248 476,248 
State Aid Advance Loan 5,640,183 5,640,183 
Transfers In 2,618,689 2,618,689 
Transfers Out (2,601,215) (17,474) (2,618,689) 

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 8,735,120 (2,601,215) (17,474) 6,116,431 

Net Change in Fund Balances (32,239) (8,977,423) (9,009,662) 

Fund Balance (Deficits), Beginning of Year (Restated) (10,280,102) (3,185,605) 10,173,758 (3,291 ,948) 

Fund Balance (Deficits), End of Year $ (10,312,341) $ (3,185,605) $ 1,196,335 $ $ (12,301,610) 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances -Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the 
current period. 

Depreciation Expense 
Capital Outlay - Additions 

$ (1,545,745) 

The issuance oflong term debt provides current fmancial resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of the principal oflong term debt consumes the current fmancial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. 

Debt Issued 
Capital Lease Proceeds 
State Aid Advance Loan 

Principal Repayments 
Serial Bonds 
Capital Lease 
State Aid Advance Loan 
Registered Audit Recovery 
Deferred Pension Obligation 

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Increase in Accrued Interest 
Increase in Net Pension Expense 
Amortization of Original Issue Premium 
Net Decrease in Compensated Absences 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2} 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 
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11,877,356 

(476,248) 
(5,640,183) 

1,250,000 
481,298 

1,014,018 
132,545 
24,939 

(138,617) 
(2,131,316) 

29,066 
149,880 

EXHIBITB-3 

$ (9,009,662) 

10,331,611 

(6,116,431) 

2,902,800 

(2,090,987) 

$ (3,982,669) 



ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash 
Receivables 
Intergovernmental 
Federal 
State 

Due from Other Funds 
Inventories 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Machinery and Equipment 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LlABlLITlES 

Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED iNFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

USDA Commodities 

Total Deferred Inflows or Resources 

NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBITB-4 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund -
Food Service 

$ 

$ 

1,878,824 

379,891 
3,950 

1,264,899 
35,470 

3,563,034 

1,081,646 
(395,965) 

685,681 

4,248,715 

668,772 
265,000 

933,772 

9,279 

9,279 

685,681 
2,619,983 

3,305,664 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 
IN NET POSITION 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Local Sources 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Daily Sales -Reimbursable Programs 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Food Service Management Company Expenses 

Cost of Sales 
Reimbursable Programs 
Non-Reimbursable Programs 
U.S.D.A. Commodities 

Labor 
Supplies and Materials 
Miscellaneous 
Insurance 
Management Fee 
Administration and Supervision 

Direct Expenses 
Salaries and Wages 
Cost of Sales 
Purchased Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Indirect Cost Allocation 
Depreciation 
Equipment 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
State Sources 

State School Lunch Program 
Federal Sources 
National School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 
After School Snack Program 
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable program 
Food Distribution Program 
Summer Food Program 

Interest and Investment Revenue 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 

Net Position, End of Year 
The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBITB-5 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund -
Food Service 

$ 

$ 

$ 

376,242 

376,242 

1,564,448 
101,252 
274,677 

1,401,710 
197,931 
86,863 
78,158 

179,012 
172,473 

91,137 
537,548 

9,945 
48,791 

370,622 
56,658 

8,733 
13,465 

5,193,423 

(4,817,181) 

48,460 

1,483,131 
2,854,465 

52,317 
167,977 
274,677 
158,636 

6,504 

5,046,167 

228,986 

3,076,678 

3,305,664 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Payments for Employees' Salaries and Wages 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Good and Services 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Received from Federal and State Sources 
Cash Received from Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Purchase of Capital Assets 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related 

Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Interest on Investments 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) 
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

Depreciation 
Non-Cash Federal Assistance- Food Distribution Program 
Change in Assets and Liabilities 
(Increase )/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase )/Decrease in Inventories 
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Commodities Revenue 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities: 
Value Received- Food Distribution Program 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-6 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund -
Food Service 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

376,242 
(1,492,847) 
(2,996,454) 

(4,113,059) 

4,785,862 
1,029,752 

5,815,614 

(195,116) 

(195,116) 

6,504 

6,504 

1,513,943 

364,881 

1,878,824 

(4,817,181) 

56,658 
274,677 

(10,099) 
376,802 

6,084 

704,122 

(4,113,059) 

280,761 



The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 

District 
Employee 

Investment Earnings 
Interest and Dividends 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Scholarships Awarded 
Loss on Fair Market Value oflnvestments 
Other Expenses 
Unemployment Claims and Contributions 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 

Net Position, End of Year 

$ 

$ 

Workers 
Compensation 

Trust 

35 

35 

35 

7,097 

7,132 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust Fund 

$ 253,503 
156,005 

905 

410,413 

306,511 

306,511 

103,902 

114,896 

$ 218,798 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Scholarship 
Fund 

3,378 

3,378 

1,250 
4,605 

5,855 

(2,477) 

181,518 

179,041 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBITB-8 

Parent 
Resource 
Center/ 
College 

Application 
Fund 

48 

48 

1,000 

1,000 

(952) 

10,800 

9,848 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Lakewood Board of Education (the "Board" or the "District") is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, 
established to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the 
fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of 
the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and 
adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and 
disposition of school property. 

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a 
system of accounting and budgetary controls. 

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to 
ensure that the fmancial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds, 
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Lakewood Board of Education this 
includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is 
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing board 
and (I) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or 
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the District is legally obligated or 
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to fmance the deficits of, or provide fmancial support to, the organization; or the 
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally 
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the 
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting 
entity as a component unit. 

B. New Accounting Standards 

During fiscal year 2017, the District adopted the following GASB statements: 

• GASB No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that Are Not Within the Scope 
of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in the general purpose external 
financial reports of state and local governments for making decisions and assessing accountability. 

• GASB No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements of this Statement will improve fmancial reporting by 
providing disclosure of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements that will make these 
transactions more transparent to fmancial statement users. As a result, users will be better equipped to understand 
(1) how tax abatements affect a government's future ability to raise resources and meet its financial obligations and 
(2) the impact those abatements have on a government's fmancial position and economic condition. 

• GASB No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation 
requirements for certain component units. This Statement amends the blending requirements established in 
paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14. The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• GASB No. 82, Pension Issues- An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. The objective of this 
Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting 
for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments 
to Certain Provisions ofGASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the 
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and 
the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, 
and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satiszy employee (plan member) contribution 
requirements. 

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial 
statements include: 

• GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, will be 
effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local goverrunents for postemployment benefits other than pensions 
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local goverrunental 
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. 

• GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial 
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement established criteria for identizying 
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 

• GASB No. 85, Omnibus 2017, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The objective of this 
Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain 
GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component 
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and post-employment benefits (pensions and other post­
employment benefits (OPEB)). 

• GASB No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The 
primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial repmting for in-substance 
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with 
only existing resources - resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for 
the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid 
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 

• GASB No. 87, Leases, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The objective of this Statement is 
to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring 
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. 

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements 

The financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund financial 
statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements 
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund 
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities 
column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the District's 
enterprise funds. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Basis ofPreseutatiou- Financial Statements (Continued) 

District-Wide Financial Statements 

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on 
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund fmancial 
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Govermnental 
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovermnental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position, 
both the govermnental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) 
reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term 
debt and obligations. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include I) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use, 
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted 
state aid , federal and state grants for school based budgeting and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide fmancial statements. Exceptions 
to this general rule are charges between the Board's proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for govermnental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter 
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund fmancial statements is on major individual 
govermnental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate colunms in the fund financial statements. All remaining 
govermnental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its 
govermnental and enterprise funds to be major funds. 

The District reports the following major govermnental funds: 

The general fond is the School District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all fmancial resources of the 
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund. 

The special revenue fond accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local fmancial programs, with the exception of grants 
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs. 

The capital projects fond accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used 
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the 
proprietary funds. 

The debt service fond accounts for the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the 
payment of principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of govermnental funds. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Basis of Presentation- Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The District reports the following major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges: 

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as 
well as a Ia carte and catering services for teachers and special events. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

The fiduciary trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment insurance 
claims, for private donations for scholarship awards, payroll related activities and student related activities which are 
supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on 
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these 
resources be preserved as capital. 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year 
are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due 
to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the district-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current 
year's presentation. 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of 
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or 
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the fmancial 
statements. 

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund fmancial statements with the exception of the agency fund which 
does not have a measurement focus. All assets, all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with 
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

Governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both 
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available 
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements (formula-type 
grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the 
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven grants and 
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have 
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is 
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to 
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Board's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. 

2. Receivables 

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected 
to be uncollectible. 

3. Inventories 

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items 
are purchased. 

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO) 
method and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed 
rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service 
Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of 
unused commodities at year-end is reported as deferred inflows of resources. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable govermnental or business-type 
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defmed by the Board as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical 
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional 
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the 
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District IS 

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Machinery and Equipment 

5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

20 
15-50 

20 
5-20 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. The Board has only one item which arises only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting 
in this category. It is the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported in 
the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and actual experience; (2) 
changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments; 
( 4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and (5) 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Board 
has two types of items, which arise only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. One 
item is the deferred commodities revenue, reported in both the district-wide and the proprietary funds statements of net 
position. The deferred commodities revenue represents the estimated market value of the donated and unused Federal 
commodities at year end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the commodities 
are consumed. The other item that qualifies for reporting in this category are the deferred amounts on net pension liability. 
Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported in the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) 
differences between expected and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and 
actual investment earnings on pension plan investments; and (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 

6. Compensated Absences 

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation, personal, 
and sick leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation, personal and sick leave and salary related payments 
has been recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board's 
commitment to fund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation, personal and sick 
leave and salary related payments in the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to 
the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

7. Pensions 

In the district-wide fmancial statements, for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these 
retirement systems' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement 
systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

In the governmental fund fmancial statements, net pension liabilities represent amounts normally expected to be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources for required pension contributions that are due and payable at year end. 
Pension expenditures are recognized based on contractual pension contributions that are required to be made to the pension 
plan during the fiscal year. 

8. Long-Term Obligations 

In the district-wide fmancial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using 
the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance 
costs (other than for prepaid insurance) are treated as an expense. 

In the fund fmancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, as well as bond issuance costs, during 
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

9. Net Position/Fund Balance 

District-Wide Statements 

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets- consists of net capital assets (cost Jess accumulated depreciation) reduced by 
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included. 

• Restricted Net Position- reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of non capital assets 
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments, or imposed by Jaw through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Unrestricted Net Position - any portion of net position not already classified as either net investment in capital 
assets or net position- restricted is classified as net position- unrestricted. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

9. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 

Governmental Fund Statements 

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District's fund balance 
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound 
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. 

Restricted Fund Balance- Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and 
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

Capital Projects - Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the 
Capital Projects fund. 

Debt Service - Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest 
in the Debt Service Fund. 

Committed Fund Balance - Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of 
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint. 

Year-End Encumbrances- Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for contracts awarded by formal action of 
the Board of Trustee's for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and 
materials have not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30. 

Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the 
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority. 

Year-End Encumbrances - Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for 
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been 
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific 
purposes within the governmental funds. 

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

1. Program Revenues 

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues 
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, federal grants for school based budgeting, investment earnings and 
miscellaneous revenues. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued) 

2. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as 
requested. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected 
in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of 
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly 
installments on August I, November 1, February 1 and May I of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal 
lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1" in the year following the calendar year levy when the 
same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce 
the lien by placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual "in rem" tax foreclosure proceedings to 
enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property. 

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures 

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are 
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education. 

Tuition Expenditures- Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 were based on rates established by the 
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of 
Education. The District did receive a tuition adjustment in the amount of $1,474,475 for school year 2014/15 which was 
funded in the 2016/17 budget. 

4. Proprietary Funds, Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's 
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund are charges to customers 
for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating 
revenues. 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education ("the Department"), the District annually 
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund, 
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures 
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis. 

36 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

A. Budgetary Information (Continued) 

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The 
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county 
superintendent for review and approval prior to adoption. Prior to the 2012/2013 budget year, the annual budget was 
required to be voted upon at the annual school election held on the third Tuesday in April. On January 17, 2012, Chapter 
202 of the Laws of P.L. 2011 was approved which established procedures for moving the date of a school district's annual 
school election from April to the general election in November. Under the new law, districts that have their school board 
members elected in November no longer have to submit their budgets that meet levy cap requirements for voter approval 
beginning with the 2012/2013 budget year. Only a school board decision to exceed the tax levy cap would require voter 
approval for the additional amount on the November ballot. On November 15,2012, the Board adopted a resolution to move 
its annual election to the date of the general elections in accordance with the law; therefore voter approval of the annual 
budget is not required. 

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of 
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared 
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The 
legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as 
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 
6:20-2A.2(m) 1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2016/2017. Also, during 2016/2017 the original 
budget was increased by $31,157,070. The increase was funded by additional revenues appropriated, grant awards and the 
reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances 

Formal budgetaty integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device dul"ing the year. For 
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain 
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described 
in the Notes to Required Supplementaty Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of 
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, 
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable 
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed 
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments 
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal 
year. 

B. Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations 

The following is a summary of expenditures in excess of available appropriations. The overexpended appropriations 
resulted in unfavorable variances. 

General Fund 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services 

Contracted Services- (Special Education 

Final 
Budget 

Students)- Vendors $3,013,827 $3,410,256 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

$396,399 

The above variance was the result of an audit adjustment and was offset with other available resources. 
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

B. Deficit Fund Equity 

The District has unassigned fund deficits of$11,163,135 in the General Fund and $3,185,605 in the Special Revenue Fund 
as of June 30, 2017 as reported in the fund financial statements (modified accrual basis). NJSA 18A:22-44.2 provides that in 
the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record these delayed 
state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal 
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. GASB Statement No. 33, "Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions", requires that intergovernmental transactions (revenue, expenditure, 
asset, liability) should be recognized in symmetry (i.e., if one goverrnnent recognizes an asset, the other government 
recognizes a liability). Since the State of New Jersey is recording certain 2016/2017 budgeted state aid payments in the 
subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize such payments on the GAAP (fund) fmancial statements until the 
year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording these delayed state aid payments, the General 
and Special Revenue Fund deficits do not alone indicate that the District is facing fmancial difficulties; however, unless the 
State ofNew Jersey budgets the delayed payments in future years, the District may also report fund deficits in the future. 

Pursuant to NJSA 18A:22-44.2, any negative unreserved, undesignated (i.e., unassigned) general fund balance that is 
reported as a direct result of a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered as a violation 
of New Jersey Statute or regulation and is not considered an item in need of corrective action. The District deficits in the 
GAAP (fund) fmancial statements of $11,163,135 in the General Fund and $3,185,605 in the Special Revenue Fund are 
more than the delayed state aid payments as of June 30, 2017. 

The general fund deficit represents $6,809,237 as a result of a delay in state aid payments and $4,353,898 in a deficit in 
operations. The special revenue fund deficit represents $3,185,605 as a result of prior year disallowed grant expenditures. 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Cash Deposits and Investments 

Cash Deposits 

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), National Credit Union 
Share Insurance Fund (NCUSJF), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Goverrnnental Unit 
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such 
funds pursuant to GUDP A. The New Jersey Goverrnnental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in 
the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the 
average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not 
covered by the FDIC. 

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. NCUSJF insures credit union 
accounts up to $250,000 in the aggregate for each financial institution. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a maximum of 
$250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2017, the book value of the Board's deposits were $6,314,468 and bank 
and brokerage firm balances of the Board's deposits amounted to $9,278,149. The Board's deposits which are displayed on 
the various fund balance sheets as "cash" or "cash with fiscal agents" are categorized as: 

Depository Account 

Insured 

Uninsured and Collateralized 

$ 

$ 
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60,959 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2017 the 
Board's bank balance of$60,959 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 

Depository Account 

Uninsured and Collateralized: 

Collateral held by pledging financial institution's trust department 

not in the Board's name 

Investments 

$ 60,959 

The Board is permitted to iovest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. 
Examples of the allowable iovesttnents are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the 
United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or 
bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government iovestment 
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted io accordance with the above statute. 

As of June 30, 2017, the Board had the followiog iovesttnents: 

Investment: 
U.S. Government Securities 

Nuveen Core Bond Fund $ 

Fair 
Value 

134,401 

Custodial Credit Risk- Investtnents- For an investtnent, this is the risk, that io the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investtnents or collateral securities that are held by an outside party. 
The Board does not have a policy for custodial risk. As of June 30, 2017, $134,401 of the Board's investtnents was exposed 
to custodial credit risk as follows: 

Depository Account 

Uninsured and Collateralized: 

Collateral held by pledging financial institution's trust department 

not in the Board's name $ 

Fair 
Value 

134,401 

Interest Rate Risk- The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an 
investtnent policy that would further limit its investtnent choices. 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Investments (Continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk- The Board places no limit in the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. More 
than five (5) percent of the Board's investments are in Nuveen Investments. These investments are 100% of the District's 
total investments. 

The fair value of the above-listed investment was based on quoted market prices. 

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the General Fund in accordance with Board 
policy. 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of June 30, 2017 for the district's individual major funds and fiduciary funds including the applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Special Food 
General Revenue Service Agency Funds Total 

Receivables: 

Accounts $ 171,962 $ 168,171 $ 340,133 

Intergovernmental 

Federal 9,392,134 $ 379,891 9,772,025 

State $ 3,558,386 8,258 3,950 3,570,594 

Local 5,000 5,000 

Gross Receivables 3,558,386 9,577,354 383,841 168,171 13,687,752 

Less: Allowance for 

Uncollectibles 

Net Total Receivables $ 3,558,386 $ 9,577,354 $ 383,841 $ 168,171 $ 13,687,752 

C. Unearned Revenue 

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds 
were as follows: 

Special Revenue Fund 
Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs 
Grant Draw Downs Reserve for Encumbrances 

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds 

40 

$ 

$ 

215,822 
325,086 

540,908 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Balance, Decreass/ 

July I, 2016 Increases Adjustments 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 

Land $ 143,800 

Construction in Progress 19,362,526 $ 8,977,423 $ 

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 19,506,326 8,977,423 

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 

Land Improvements 2,406,289 

Buildings and Building Improvements 39,073,496 200,347 

Machinery and Equipment 4,976,197 2,699,586 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 46,455,982 2,899,933 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Land Improvements (2,210,423) (23,631) 

Buildings and Building Improvements (24,729,126) (722,948) 

Machinery and Equipment (2,365,761) (799,166) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (29,305,31 0) (!,545,745) 

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 17,150,672 1,354,188 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 36,656,998 $ 10,331,6ll $ 

41 

Balance, 

June 30,2017 

$ 143,800 

28,339,949 

28,483,749 

2,406,289 

39,273,843 

7,675,783 

49,355,915 

(2,234,054) 

(25,452,074) 

(3,164,927) 

(30,851,055) 

18,504,860 

$ 46,988,609 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance, 

July 1, 2016 Increases 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 

Machinery and Equipment $ 886,530 $ 195,116 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 826,369 195,116 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Machinery and Equipment (339,307) (56,658) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (288,665) (56,658) 

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, J 547,223 138,458 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, I $ 547,223 $ 138,458 

Decreass/ 
Adjustments 

$ 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Instruction 

Regular 
Total Instruction 

Support Services 
General Administration 

Central Services 
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 

Total Support Services 

Unallocated 

Total Support Services 

Total Depreciation Expense- Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service Fund 

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities 
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Balance, 

June 30, 2017 

$ 1,081,646 

1,081,646 

(395,965) 

(395,965) 

685,681 

$ 685,681 

$ 481,082 

481,082 

1,574 

66,714 
134,270 
202,558 

862,105 

1,064,663 

$ 1,545,745 

$ 56,658 
$ 56,658 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Construction and Other Significant Commitments 

The District has the following active construction projects as of June 30, 2017: 

Project Spent to Date 
Remaining 

Commitment 

HV AC Upgrades - Phase III 
HV AC Upgrades -Phase IV 

$ 4,634,194 $ 
5,328,294 

835,806 
201,701 

The District has other significant commitments at June 30, 2017 as follows: 

Purpose 

Acquisition of Five ( 5) 24 Passenger School Buses 
Acquisition of Two (2) 54 Passenger School Buses 

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

The composition ofinterfund balances as of June 30,2017, is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund 

General Fund Payroll Agency Fund 

General Fund Unemployment Fund 

Special Revenue Fund General Fund 

Food Service Fund General Fund 

Capital Projects Fund General Fund 
Debt Service Fund General Fund 

Payroll Agency Fund Food Service Fund 
Payroll Agency Fund Unemployment Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 1,037,507 

$ 

Remaining 
Commitment 

288,312 
187,936 

$ 476,248 

Amount 

387,338 

34,567 
7,993,101 
1,264,899 

124,458 
1 

265,000 
13,370 

10,082,734 

The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to 
another fund and/or expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in 
an overdraft position. 

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year. 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued) 

Interfund transfers 

Transfer In: 

General Fund Total 

Transfer Out: 

Special Revenue Fund $ 2,601,215 $ 2,601,215 

Capital Projects Fund 17,474 17,474 

Total Transfers Out $ 2,618,689 $ 2,618,689 

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance 
expenditures in another fund. 

F. Leases 

Capital Leases 

The District is leasing textbooks and school buses totaling $3,923,661 under capital leases. The leases are for terms of 3 
and 7 years, respectively. 

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Machinery and Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ 

$ 

2,892,413 
(663,323) 

2,229,090 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2017 
were as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30 

2018 
2019 
2020 

2021 
2022 
2023 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
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Governmental 

Activities 

$ 

$ 

879,511 

672,868 
517,573 
517,573 

456,187 
354,849 

3,398,561 
(283,784) 

3,114,777 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

G. Long-Term Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
and other capital assets. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of 
the bonds and the interest thereon. 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2017 are comprised of the following issues: 

$34,695,000, 2015 Bonds, due in annual 
installments of$1,300,000 to $2,500,000 
through September 15, 2034 interest at 2.50% to 3.00% 

Total 

$33,445,000 

$33 445 000 

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-tetm debt issued and outstanding is as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Serial Bonds 

June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2018 $ 1,300,000 $ 963,888 $ 2,263,888 
2019 1,350,000 927,451 2,277,451 
2020 1,400,000 889,638 2,289,638 

2021 1,470,000 850,175 2,320,175 
2022 1,525,000 808,994 2,333,994 

2023-2027 8,600,000 3,332,663 11,932,663 
2028-2032 10,485,000 1,909,125 12,394,125 
2033-2035 7,315,000 333,225 7,648,225 

$ 33,445,000 $ 10,015,159 $ 43,460,159 

Statutory Borrowing Power 

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) 
Less: Net Debt (Including Unfunded Authorizations) 

Remaining Borrowing Power 

45 

$ 331,268,354 
33,447,241 

$ 297,821,113 
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

H. Other Long-Term Liabilities 

Deferred Pension Obligation 

During the 2009/20 I 0 school year the Board elected to contribute only 50% of its nonnal and accrued liability components 
of the Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) obligations and deferred the remaining 50% in accordance with P.L. 
2009, c.19. The deferred amount totaled $196,429 and is being paid back with interest over 15 years beginning in the 
2011/2012 fiscal year. The District is permitted to payoff the deferred PERS pension obligations at any time. It is estimated 
that the total deferred liability at June 30, 2017 is $51,710. 

State Aid Advance Loan Payable 

The Board has entered into loan agreements with the State of New Jersey in amounts of $4,500,000 and $5,640,183 
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:7 A-56 in the form of an advancement of state aid to provide funds to eliminate a pmtion of the 
unassigned budgetary fund deficit in the General Fund. The advance State aid payments will be repaid by the school district 
through automatic reductions in the State aid provided to the school district in subsequent years. The terms of the 
repayments are ten (I 0) years beginning in the 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 school years, respectively, at a minimum amounts 
of $450,000 and $564,018 per year, but may be for a shorter term as determined by the State Treasurer. At any time during 
the term of the repayment the State Treasurer, in consultation with the Commissioner of Education, may determine to impose 
interest on the unpaid balance. The State Treasurer has not imposed interest during the 2016/2017 school year. The state aid 
advance loan balance outstanding at June 30, 2017 is not reported as a liability in the General Fund, but is recorded as a long 
term liability in the Governmental Activities on the District-wide statement of net position. The Board's State aid advance 
loan activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Balance, Renewed/ Retired/ Balance, 
Purpose July I, 2016 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2017 

State Aid 
Advance Loan-2014/15 $ 4,050,000 $ 450,000 $ 3,600,000 
Advance Loan-20 16117 $ 5,640,183 564,018 5,076,165 

$ 4,050,000 $ 5,640,183 $ 1,014,018 $ 8,676,165 

Register Audit Recovery 

During the 2015/2016 school year, the State of New Jersey, Department of Education completed a review of the 
enrollment data used for the District's fiscal year 2011/2012 Applications for Chapter 193 Nonpublic Auxiliary 
Services Aid. The findings included in the review indicated that the District's fiscal year 2011/2012 nonpublic 
state aid payments were overstated by $1,325,452. Such amount is due to the State of New Jersey, Department 
of Education. As a result, for a period of ten (I 0) years beginning in fiscal year 2016/2017, the amount due will 
be repaid through automatic reductions in State Aid provided to the District on an annual basis. The remaining 
amount due as of June 30,2017 is $1,192,907. 
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H. Other Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Balance, 

Julx 1, 2016 Additions Reductions 

(Restated) 

Governmental Activities: 

Bonds Payable $ 34,695,000 $ 1,250,000 
Add: Premium 806,765 29,066 

Total Bonds Payable 35,501,765 1,279,066 

Capital Leases 3,119,827 $ 476,248 481,298 

Compensated Absences 3,547,863 70,956 220,836 

Net Pension Liability 18,877,918 8,671,438 802,296 

State Aid Advance Loan Payable 4,050,000 5,640,183 1,014,018 

Registered Audit Recovery 1,325,452 132,545 
Deferred Pension Obligations 76,649 5,543 30,482 

Governmental activity 
Long-term liabilities $ 66,499,474 $ 14,864,368 $ 3,960,541 

Due 

Balance, Within 

June 30, 2017 One Year 

$ 33,445,000 $ 1,300,000 
777,699 

34,222,699 1,300,000 

3,114,777 796,160 

3,397,983 100,000 

26,747,060 

8,676,165 1,014,018 

1,192,907 132,545 
51,710 

$ 77,403,301 $ 3,342,723 

For the governmental activities, the liabilities for compensated absences, deferred pension obligations, net pension 
liability, etc., are generally liquidated by the general fund. 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks ofloss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of. damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and 
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the 
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section 
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Repmi. 

The District is a member of the School Alliance Insurance Fund (SAIF). The Group is a risk sharing public entity pool, 
established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims. 

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by 
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary 
contributions to the fund, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the fund, its claims 
administrator and attomeys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by 
the fund. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the fund attributable to a membership year during 
which they were a member. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

A. Risk Management (Continued) 

SAIF provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to establish 
reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete financial 
statements of the respective insurance funds are on file with the School's Business Administrator. 

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in 
excess of insurance coverage's in any of the prior three years. 

The District has elected to fund its New Jersev Unemolovment Comoensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement 
Method". Under this olan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersev Unemolovment Trust Fund for benefits oaid 
to its former emolovees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the 
State. The following is a summarv of District contributions. emolovee contributions. reimbursements to the State for 
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's fiduciary bust fund for the current and previous two years: 

Fiscal 
Year District Employee Amount Ending 

Ended Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance 

2017 $ 253,503 $ 156,005 $ 306,511 $ 218,798 
2016 189,146 141,148 230,015 114,896 
2015 422,854 74,476 390,998 14,352 

B. Contingent Liabilities 

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of 
operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies 
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District. 

The Lakewood Board of Education is currently a defendant to approximately fifty-five special education disputes, which 
individually are not expected to exceed the materiality threshold, although may do so in the aggregate. In these cases, the 
parents are seeking prospective placement in out-of-district educational programs. A few cases also involve a reqnest for 
compensatory education or independent evaluations. The School District is vigorously defending each matter, however if 
unsuccessful at hearing, the Board would likely be required to reimburse the parents for reasonable attorney fees and costs. 
This would not exceed $250,000 in any individual case, however may exceed that limit in the aggregate. 

B. Contingent Liabilities 

Federal and State Awards- The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially 
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the 
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the 
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2017, significant amounts of grant expenditures 
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on 
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position 
of the District. 

Title I- During the 2013/2014 school year, the State of New Jersey, Department of Education completed a fiscal audit of 
the District's No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Title I grant. The review covered the period of September 1, 2011 through 
August 31, 2012. Such audit disclosed nine (9) findings for various noncompliance areas resulting in a refund due to the 
State of New Jersey from the Lakewood Board of Education in the amount of $3,939,095. This amount is reflected as a 
liability in the Special Revenue Fund on the District's financial statements. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations 

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt 
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required 
that all excess camings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is 
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess 
eamings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2017, the District has not estimated its arbitrage 
eamings due to the IRS, if any. 

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans 

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement 
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees: 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)- Established in January 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 43:15A to 
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county, 
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered 
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension 
benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage. PERS is a cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit 
pension plan. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)- Established in January 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 18A:66 to 
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of 
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after I 0 years of 
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage. TP AF is a cost sharing plan with special 
funding situations. 

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement 
program covering certain state and local govemment employees which include those Board employees who are eligible 
for pension coverage. 

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and 
Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected, certain appointed officials, and certain Board employees not 
eligible for enrollment in PERS or TPAF. Effective July 1, 2007 membership is mandatory for such individuals with 
vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership. DCRP is a defined contribution pension plan. 

Other Pension Funds 

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active 
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided 
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT. 

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems but are currently 
suspended as a result of reform legislation. 

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any 
retirement system be tenninated. 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial 
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The 
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at 
www .state.nj. us/treasury/pensions. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions 
are recognized when payable to the retirement systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of the retirement systems. 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Investment Valuation 

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or intemational exchange are valued at the last 
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments, 
and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instmments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on 
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values. 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that 
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. The financial reports may be obtained 
in writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New 
Jersey 08625-0290 or at www.state.nj/treasury/doinvest. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress 

As of July I, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate funded ratio for the State administered TPAF and 
local PERS retirement systems, is 28 percent with an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $108.6 billion. The aggregate 
funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded TPAF system is 22.33 percent and $79.0 billion, and the 
aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERSis 40.14 percent and $29.6 billion, respectively. 

The funded status and funding progress of the retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of 
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of 
future events. 

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the 
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattem of the sharing of costs between the 
employer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly 
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattem of cost sharing between the 
employer and members in the future. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

In the July I, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five year 
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions 
included (a) an investment rate ofretmn for the retirement systems of7.65 percent and (b) projected salary increases applied 
through the year 2026 of 1.65-5.15 percent based on age for the PERS and varying percentages based on experience for 
TPAF. 

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions 

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and 
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with 
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the 
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 7.06% for PERS, 7.06% for TP AF and 5.50% for DCRP of the 
employee's aunual compensation 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Annual Pension Costs (APC) 

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employees, for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding situations, the annual 
pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost sharing multi-employer defined 
benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TP AF employer contributions are made annually 
by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS employer contributions are made annually 
by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In the DCRP, which is a defined 
contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution. 

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and 
the State of New Jersey was required to contribute for TP AF, respectively, for normal cost pension and accrued liability 
contributions (including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following amounts: 

Fiscal 
Year Ended On-behalf 

June 30, PERS TPAF DCRP 

2017 $ 802,296 $ 3,460,363 NONE 
2016 723,002 2,398,440 NONE 
2015 654,809 1,664,875 NONE 

In addition, for fiscal year 2016/2017, the District contributed $14,077 for PERS and the State contributed $15,837 for TP AF 
for Long Term Disability Insurance Premium (LTDI). 

The PERS contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an 
expenditure. The on-behalf TP AF contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified 
accrual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24. The DCRP contributions are recognized 
in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an expenditure, as well as, the district-wide 
financial statements (accrual basis) as an expense. 

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $2,433,338 during the fiscal 
year ended June 30,2017 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their 
base salaries. This amount has been recognized in the district-wide financial statements (accrual basis) and the govemmental 
fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as a revenue and expense/expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

At June 30, 2017, the District reported in the statement of net position (accrual basis) a liability of $26,747,060 for its 
proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-tenn share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governmental entities, actnarially 
detennined. At June 30, 2016, the District's proportionate share was 0.09030 percent, which was an increase of 0.00621 
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2015 of0.08409 percent. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis) 
pension expense of $2,933,612 for PERS. At June 30, 2017, the District reported defeJTed outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related toPERS pension from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Difference Between Expected and 
Actual Experience $ 497,414 

Changes of Assumptions 5,540,562 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual 

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 1,019,890 
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between 

Borough Contributions and Proportionate Share 
of Contributions 2,051,733 $ 416,068 

Total $ 9,109,599 $ 416,068 

At June 30,2017, the amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related toPERS 
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30, Total 

2018 $ 1,974,684 
2019 1,974,684 
2020 2,186,110 
2021 1,921,623 
2022 636,430 

Thereafter 

$ 8,693,531 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The District's total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
July I, 2015, which was rolled fotward to June 30, 2016. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases: 

Through 2026 

Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

Mortality Rate Table 

3.08% 

1.65-4.15% 
Based on Age 

2.65-5.15% 
Based on Age 

7.65% 

RP-2000 

Assumptions for mortality improvements arc based on Society of Actuaries Scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for 
the period July I, 20 II to June 30, 2014. 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and Deferred Intlows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was detennined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plans' target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Cash 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment Grade Credit 
Mortgages 
High Yield Bonds 
Inflation-Indexed Bonds 
Broad US Equities 
Developed Foreign Equities 

Emerging Market Equities 
Private Equity 

Hedge Funds/ Absolute Return 
Real Estate (Property) 
Commodities 
Global Debt ex US 
REIT 

Discount Rate 

Target 
Allocation 

5.00% 
1.50% 
8.00% 
2.00% 
2.00% 
1.50% 

26.00% 
13.25% 

6.50% 
9.00% 

12.50% 
2.00% 
0.50% 
5.00% 
5.25% 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

0.87% 
1.74% 
1.79% 
1.67% 
4.56% 
3.44% 
8.53% 
6.83% 

9.95% 
12.40% 

4.68% 
6.91% 
5.45% 
-0.25% 
5.63% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities of the PERS plan was as follows: 

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate 

2017 June 30,2016 3.98% 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Discount Rate (Continued) 

The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the PERS defined benefit plan: 

Period orProjected Benefit 
Payments for which the Following 
Rates were Applied: 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

Municipal Bond Rate * 

Through June 30, 2034 

From July I, 2034 
and Thereafter 

*The municipal bond return rate used is 2.85% as of the measurement date of June 30,2016. The source is the Bond Buyer 
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of 
AAJ Aa or higher. 

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.98%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is !-percentage-point lower (2.98 percent) or !-percentage-point higher (4.98 percent) than the 
cunent rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
(2.98%) (3.98%) (4.98%) 

District's Proportionate Share of 
the PERS Net Pension Liability $ 32,775,400 $ 26,747,060 $ 21,770,143 

The sensitivity analysis was based on the proportionate share of the District's net pension liability at June 30, 2016. A 
sensitivity analysis specific to the District's net pension liability was not provided by the pension system. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed infonnation about the PERS pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial 
report from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial reports 
may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state.nj.us/treasm:y/pensions. 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TP AF) 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the District is not required 
to recognize a net pension liability for TPAF. The State of New Jersey is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make 
employer contributions to TPAF on behalf of the District. Accordingly, the District's proportionate share percentage 
determined under Statement No. 68 is zero percent and the State's proportionate share is 100% of the net pension liability 
attributable to the District for TPAF. Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the TP AF 
collective deferred outflows of resources aud deferred inflows of resources. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis) 
pension expense of $17,706,380 for TPAF. This amount has been included in the district-wide statement of activities 
(accrual basis) as a revenue and expense in accordance with GASB No. 24. 

At June 30, 2017 the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District is $235,657,472. The 
nonemployer allocation percentages are based on the ratio of the State's contributions made as an employer and 
nonemployer towards the actuarially determined contribution amount adjusted by locations who participated in the State 
early retirement incentives to total contributions to TPAF during the year ended June 30,2016. At June 30,2016, the state's 
share of the net pension liability attributable to the District was 0.29956 percent, which was a decrease of .00838 percent 
from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2015 of0.30794 percent. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July I, 
2015, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2016. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied 
to all periods in the measurement. 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases: 
2012-2021 

Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

2.50% 

Varies based 
on expenence 

Varies based 
on experience 

7.65% 

Assumptions for mortality rates were based on the experience of TP AF members reflecting mortality improvement on a 
generational bases based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for 
the period July I, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The Jong-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plans' target 
asset allocation as of June 30,2016 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

US Cash 5.00% 0.39% 
US Government Bonds 1.50% 1.28% 
US Credit Bonds 13.00% 2.76% 
US Mortgages 2.00% 2.38% 
US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 1.41% 
US High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.70% 
US Equity Market 26.00% 5.14% 
Foreign-Developed Equity 13.25% 5.91% 
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 8.16% 
Private Real Estate Property 5.25% 3.64% 
Timber 1.00% 3.86% 
Farmland 1.00% 4.39% 
Private Equity 9.00% 8.97% 
Commodities 0.50% 2.87% 
Hedge Funds - MultiStrategy 5.00% 3.70% 
Hedge Funds- Equity Hedge 3.75% 4.72% 
Hedge Funds - Distressed 3.75% 3.49% 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued} 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities of the TPAF plan was as follows: 

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate 

2017 June 30,2016 3.22% 

The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the TP AF defined benefit plan: 

Period of Projected Benefit 
Payments for which the Following 
Rates were Applied: 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

Municipal Bond Rate * 

Through June 30, 2029 

From July I, 2029 
and Thereafter 

*The municipal bond return rate used is 2.85% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2016. The source is the Bond Buyer 
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of 
AA/ Aa or higher. 

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability attributable to the District calculated 
using the discount rate of3.22% as well as what the State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability attributable 
to the District that would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !-percentage-point lower (2.22 percent) or !­
percentage-point higher (4.22 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
(2.22%) (3.22%) (4.22%} 

State's Proportionate Share of 
the TPAF Net Pension Liability 
Attributable to the District $ 281,427,685 $ 235,657,472 $ 198,280,186 

The sensitivity analysis was based on the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District at 
June 30,2016. A sensitivity analysis specific to the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the 
District at June 30, 2016 was not provided by the pension system. 
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed infmmation about the TPAF pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial 
repmt from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial reports 
may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state.nj.us/treasurvlpensions. 

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans for school districts. The 
Plans are classified as either single employer plans or cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans depending on the 
plan the eligible employee is covered under. 

As a result of implementing Govermnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for 
Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits 
Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and TPAF 
are combined and reported as Pension and Other employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State's Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Repmt (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, and the PRM of the PERS are combined and reported as a Health 
Benefits Program Fund - State classified as a single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of the 
TP AF-Local are combined and repmted as Health Benefits Program Fund -Local Government classified as a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan in the State's CAFR. The post-retirement benefit programs had a total of 584 state and local 
participating employers and contributing entities for Fiscal Year 2016. 

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit programs covering certain state and local 
govermnent employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage. 

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF) - Local Education (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) - The State of 
New Jersey provides paid coverage to members of the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a board of 
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, c.l26, 
the State also provides paid coverage to members of the Public Employees' Retirement System and Alternate Benefits 
Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the 
member's employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement 
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for state paid health coverage at retirement can continue 
in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of their 
former employer and are enrolled in Medicare parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their 
covered dependents. Also, education employees are eligible for the PDP coverage after 60 days of employment. 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasruy, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial 
reports that include the financial statements and required snpplementary information of the above Fund. The financial 
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasnry, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website 
at www.state.nj .us/treasury/pensions. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer 
contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the health benefit programs. 

Significant Legislation 

P.L. 2011, c.78, effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer­
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The 
rate of contribution is determined based on the employee's annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The increased 
employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new legislation's effective 
date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary. 

Investment Valuation 

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market arc rcpmicd at estimated fair 
values. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $84.3 billion unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $25.9 billion for state active and retired members and $41.6 
billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement. 

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB includes actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts arc subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future 
events. 

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in 
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members 
at the point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential 
effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the 
future. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

In the July 1, 2015, OPEB actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the market 
value was used as asset valuation method for the OPEB. The actuarial assumptions included an assumed investment rate of 
return of 4.50 percent. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued) 

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions 

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees' 
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees and education 
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2016, 
there were 110,512, retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $1.37 billion on their 
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. 
Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal 
Year 1994. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c.l26, which provides employer paid health benefits to 
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP) who retired from a board of education or county college with 
25 years of service. The State paid $231.2 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,045 eligible retired members in Fiscal 
Year2016. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52, Article 
17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New 
Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for SEHBP. That report may be obtained 
fi·mn the Treasury website at: http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/pdf/financial/2015divisioncombined.pdf. 

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the 
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State's 
contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School 
District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $2,883,270, $2,855,878 and $2,642,990, respectively, 
which equaled the required contributions for each year. The State's contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund 
for PERS retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the 
State ofNew Jersey. 

F. Tax Abatements 

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement between a 
government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or 
entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the 
government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement 
agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax 
abatement agreements, and that potential school tax revenue must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the 
county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school 
district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must 
effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district. 

For the Lakewood Board of Education, the District's share of abated taxes resulting from the municipality having entered 
into tax abatement agreements is indeterminate. 
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NOTE 5 LAKEWOOD STUDENT TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

On August 9, 2016, the State of New Jersey adopted Chapter 22, Public Law 2016, which established a three year nonpublic 
school pupil transpmiation pilot program in the Lakewood School District. In accordance with this statute, the Lakewood 
School District ("the District") is to provide funding to a consortium of nonpublic schools, known as the Lakewood Student 
Transpmiation Authority ("LSTA"), which will assume responsibility for the district's mandated nonpublic school busing. 
If, after providing the mandated pupil transpotiation, any funds remain unspent, the LSTA, as it deems appropriate, may 
provide courtesy busing to pupils who are residents of the district and are attending the nonpublic schools of the consmiium. 
The LSTA shall refund annually to the District, after completion of the school year, any unexpended funds received 
pursuant to the pilot program. 

NOTE 6 RESTATEMENT 

The Net Position, beginning of year, on the Statement of Activities has been restated to reflect a long term liability resulting 
from a register audit recovery which was previously unrecorded. In addition, an existing long term liability for the deferred 
pension obligation has been restated. The net effect of this restatement is a decrease of$1,260,062 to the June 30,2016 
Govemmental Activities Net Position from an original deficit balance of $29,066,388 to an adjusted deficit balance of 
$30,326,450. 

The fund balance (deficit), beginning of year, on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
has been restated to repoti a previously awarded State Aid Advance Loan as fund balance in accordance with "Financial 
Accounting for New Jersey School Districts" issued by the State of New Jersey, Department of Education. The net effect of 
this restatement is an increase of $4,050,000 to the June 30, 2016 annual fund balance from an original deficit balance of 
$14,330, I 02 to an adjusted deficit balance of $10,280, I 02. 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 



l<:XHIHIT C·l 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF I':DUCATION 

HUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL J<'UND 

FOR TilE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNEJil, 21117 

Vnrhmce 
Original Hudgct ~'lnal l'inal Hudget 

Budget Adjustment! Hudgct Actual to Actual 

RI':VENUES: 

Local Source•· 
Local Tax Levy 94,01!8,021! 94,088,028 94,01!8,028 

Miscdhmcuus, Including !merest 735,299 735,299 1785661 l ,050,362 
Total- Local Source• 94,823,327 94,823 327 95 873,689 I ,050,362 

Slate Source~: 
Special Education Aid 3,053,082 3,1}53,082 3,053,01!2 
Extraordi!Uiry Aid 5,200,000 5,200,001} 4,542,9(}6 (657,094) 

Security Aid 2,186,861! 2,186,868 2, I 86,868 

Equalization Aid 15,070,904 15,070,904 15,070,904 
Transpot1atiun Aid 4,199,793 4,199,793 4,199,793 
PARCC Readiness Aid 58,370 58,370 58,370 

Per l'npil Growth Aid 58,370 58,370 58,370 
Professio!UII Lea111ing Community Aid 63,220 63,220 63,220 
Nonpublic Tronsportation Reimbursement 353,310 2,966,784 3,320,094 3,334,884 14,790 
Stale Aid Advance Loan 5,640,183 5,640,183 5,640,183 
On UchalfTPAF Pen.<ion Contributions (Non-Budgeted) 3,339,370 3,339,370 
On BchalfTPAF NCOI Contnbutions (Non-Budgeted) 120,993 120,993 
On UchalfTI'AF Post Retirement Medical Contributions (Non-Budgeted) 2,883,270 2,883,270 
On UehalfTPAF Long Term Disahility lruurance (Non-Budgeted) 15,837 15,837 
On-BchalfTPAF Soci;ol Security (Reimbursed · Non·tllldgeted) 2,433,338 2,433 338 

Total State Sources 30 243,917 8 606 967 38 85(} 884 47 001,388 8,150,504 

Federal SuUHe~: 
Special Education Medicare Incentive Program 851,(}00 669,2(>3 I ,520,263 I ,324,838 (195,425) 
ARRA ·SEMI Cost Settlement 50,186 50,186 

Total- Federal Sources 85!,000 669,263 l ,520,263 1,375,024 (145 239) 

"J'otnl ltcvenuts 125,918 244 9,276 230 !35,194,474 144.25(} 101 9,055,627 

fo:XPENlli"I'URES: 
Current Expen~c: 

Regular Programs· Instruction 
Kindergarten· Salaries of Teach= 677,952 233,603 911,555 9)(},306 1,249 
Oradu 1-5. Salaries ofTcachers 7,348,676 (886,875) 6,461,8(}1 6,45(},832 10,969 
Grades 6-8 ·Salaries of Teachers 2,934,105 131,985 3,066,090 2,961,630 104,460 
Gmdcs 9-12 ·Salaries ofl"c:ochcrs 4,381,275 (346,414) 4,034,861 3,981,763 53,098 

Regular l'mgrams ·Home ln.tructiom 

Salaries ofTcachers 95,252 (18,274) 76.978 76,978 
l'urch:osed l'rofcssiumi-Educatiomol Services 250,000 32,254 282,254 180,837 101,417 
Other Purchased Services (400-5[)(} •cries) 5,460 5,460 5,46(} 

Regular Programs- Undi~trihuted lnstructiort 

Other S:rl:rrics fur Instruction 686,425 {75,775) 610,650 539,298 71,352 
Purchased Pro!C.<.<ionai-Eduentional Services 900,000 338,000 1,238,000 1,138,028 99,972 
Purchased Technical Services ),000 1,000 1,00(} 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 250,000 78,628 328,628 256,086 72,542 
General Supplies 554,869 392,944 947,813 911,255 36,558 
Textbooks 266,497 (4,060) 262,437 220,992 41,445 
Other Objects 17,459 (5,470) 11,989 (1,783) 13,772 
TOTAL REGULAR l'IWGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 18.367,970 (1234541 13,239,516 17.632682 606,834 

SPECIAL EDUCATION· INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Laoguage Disabilities: 
Salaries ofTeacher• 913,602 178,939 1,092,541 1,092,021 '" Other Salarie,< for Instruction 405,407 123,599 529,006 529,006 
General Supplies 11,943 3,863 15,806 13 500 2,306 
Total Learning nndfor Lunguage llisabilitie~ I 33(} 952 306 401 I 637,353 I 634,527 2,826 

Auditory lm)Jalrments: 
Salari"' ofTeachers 54 046 {38 600) 15 446 2,514 12,872 
Total Auditory Impairments 54,046 (38,600) 15,446 2,574 12,872 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries ofTcnehcrs 601,432 80,701 682,133 664,714 17,419 
Other Salaries for Instruction I 15,470 61,254 176,724 175,879 845 
General Supplies 6,357 2,409 8,766 6 090 2,676 
Total Multiple Disabilities 723 259 144,364 867 623 1!46,683 20,940 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 
S:ohrries ofTcachcn; 2,839,625 {67(},577) 2,169,048 2,163,545 5,503 
Other Salaries for Instruction {99) 99 
General Supplies !2,768 >00 12,268 7.745 4,523 
Tutull(e~ource ltoom/l(e~uurce Center 2.852 393 (671 077) 2 181,316 2,171,191 10,125 

Autism: 

Salaries of Teacher• 206,954 8,309 215,263 210,268 4,995 
Other Salaries for Instruction 61,185 6,100 67,285 63.544 3,741 
General Supplies 5.200 (2 116) 3 (}84 3,073 II 
Total Autism 273,339 12,293 285,632 276.885 8,747 

Preschool Dlsabllltles- Full-Time: 
Salaries ofTeachen; 1,365,555 (186,349) 1,!79,206 1,179,206 
Other Salories for Instruction 472,874 38,067 510,941 5(}9,163 1,778 
G~'tlcral Sttpplics 10 500 3316 13,816 12,673 1,143 
Total Preschool Dlmbilitics- Full-Time I 848,929 (144966) 1,703,963 1,701,042 2,92! 

Home lnstructian: 
Purchased Profcssion~I-Educotional Services 90 90 

Totul Hume Instruction 90 90 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 7,083,008 {391,675) 6 691,333 6 632 902 58,431 
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LAKI;;WOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BUDGt:TAltY COMI'AIUSON SCIIEilULE 
GENERAL 1<\JND 

l<'OR THE l<'JSCAI. YEAR ENDED JUNE 311, 2017 

Ba•ic Skilt./Remcdlul- Jnstrnctlun 
Saluric.< nfTcachcr• 
TuM Basic Skiii.I/Remedial-lnstructlon 

Bilingunl Educnliun -lmtructiun 

Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salmics for Instruction 
Purchased Prnfcssionai-Educatinnal Services 

General SUI>Jllie.< 
Totnl Blllngmtl Educat!un- htstructlnn 

Scbool-!'lpun. Cocurricular Actvt•.- lmt. 

Salaries 
Purchase'~.! Services (300-500 series) 

Supplies nnd Materials 
Total Schuol-Spnn. Cocurricnlnr Actvts. -lust. 

Schuul-Sil<>ll. Cocnrricular Athletics- Jnst. 
Salaries 
Purchased Services (300-500 scrico) 

Supplie• and Materials 

Other Objccm 
Tot:ol School-Spun. Cucunicular Athletics- I nsf. 

llefure/Afier Sehoul Programs- Instruction 

Snlnries ofTencheiS 

!'urchasctl Professinnal & Tech Sc'tvices 
Total BeforcJAficr Schuull'rugrmm- lnstrn~tiun 

llefore/Afier Schuoll'rograms ·Support Svcs 

Salaries 
Total HeforcJAfier Schoull'rugrams- Snptmrt Svcs 
Total BcforcJAftcr Schnoll'rograms 

Summer Schuol- Instruction 

Salarie• ofTcachcrs 
Other Salari~ for Instructions 

General Supplies 
Total Summer School· Instruction 

Summer Sehoul- Sni>llOrt Svcs 

Purchased Scrvic~ (400-500 series) 

Total Summer School- Support Svcs 
Total Summer School 

Alternative Educatl<m Prugram- Instruction 

Salaries ofTeachcrs 
Other Salari~ fnr lnstructinns 

Totul Alternative l<:ducallon l'rogrnm- lmtrndiou 
Altcrnnfivc Educntion l'rugn1rn ·Support Svcs 

St•laric.< 
"J"otul Alternative ~:ducatlon l'rogrnm- Suppo.-t Svcs 
Total Alternntivc Educationl'mg•·ntu 

Community Services Prugranlll/Operatlons 

Tntal Community Services Programs/Operations 
TOTAL INSTRUCTION 

Undistrihutcd Expenditures- Justruction; 
Tuitinn to Other LEAs Within the State. Regular 

Tuition In Other LEAs Within the State- Spc>cial 
Tuitinn to County Voc. Schon! Dist. - RC),'lllnr 
Tuition to County Voc. School Dis!. . Special 

Tuitiun tu CSSD & Regional Day Schools 
Tuition lu Private Schools for the Disabled- Within State 
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled & Other LEA- Spi,O/S : 

Tuition· Stole Facilities 
Tuition- Othc1 

Total Undistributed t:xpend!Utrc•- Jnslntclion: 
Undi~frihutcd !Cxpcnd.- Atteud. & Social Work 

s .. horic'> 
Sa!ari~ of Family Lini.•ons and Cnmm. Parent lnv. Specialists 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Supplies and Materials 

Total Undistributed EXJlend.- AU end. & Social Work 
Undlsl. Expend.- HeaUh Services 

Purch:<Scd Professional and Tcchnknl Services 
Supplies anti Materials 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Undist. Expend.- Speech, OT, l'T and R.Jnted Services 

Original 

Uudget 

291,133 

291 133 

3,431,412 

185,233 
37,498 

14 000 
3,668,143 

157,712 
10,000 
26,000 

193 712 

622,310 

125,270 
103,400 

38,795 
889,775 

48,000 
48,000 

48,000 

500,270 
247,735 

1,000 
749,005 

749.005 

31.290 746 

233,858 
56,839 
46,500 

37,319 
1,007,000 

2R,317.804 
118,939 
118,077 

1,547,159 
31,483,495 

212,375 
46,477 

500 
259,352 

447,393 
32,000 
18 750 

498,143 

Hudgct 
Adjustments 

(422,994) 

12,769 
(37,000) 

(8,000) 

(455 225) 

(24,537) 

(228) 

" (24.740) 

(15,386) 

6,521 
14,550 

5,685 

139,163 

132 000 
271 163 

8,830 
8,830 

279,993 

80,429 

1018 
2,708 

97,855 

15,540 

13 620 
29,160 

1n015 

16,290 

7,097 
23,387 

28 260 
28,260 
51,647 

1,000 

1,000 
33,082 

118,552 
(50,000) 
42,160 

{11,088) 
(192,828) 
(398,577) 

169,000 

(481,503) 
(804,284) 

(20,404) 

1,890 
18,076 

438 

(17,793) 
6,800 
(464) 

(11,457) 

Final 
Bndgcl 

858,969 
858,969 

3,008,418 
198,002 

498 
6,000 

3 212,918 

133,175 

9,772 
26,025 

168,972 

606,924 
131,791 

117,950 
38,795 

895,460 

139,163 
ISO 000 

319,163 

8,830 

8,830 
327,993 

580,699 
262.453 

3,708 
846,860 

15,540 

13,620 
29,160 

876.020 

16,290 

7,097 
23,387 

LOOO 
1,000 

31 323,828 

352,410 
6,839 

88,660 

26,231 
814,172 

27,919,227 

287,939 
118,077 

1,065,656 
30,679,211 

191.971 

48,367 
18.076 

500 
258,914 

429,600 

38,800 
18,286 

486,686 

Salaries l ,892,199 57,505 1,949,704 
Purchased Professional- Educational Services 1,450,000 {30,407) 1,419,593 

General Supplies --==~7bO,fOO~O= -===J!~I~36L -=:J:~6~9,f86~4= 
ToM Undist, Expend.- Other SUPI'· Serv. Students- Sjleech,OT,_ 3,412,199 _ 26,962 _ 3,439,161 

Undist. Expend.- Other Supp. Scrv. Student.- Exlnt Sen. 

Salaries !,343,419 (37,933) 1,305,486 

Purchased Professional- Educational Service• --==tl,3~6~1,~'4~3= -==j(~30~85,2~46lt) 993,297 
Total U11dls1. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Students· Extr~ Serv._ 2,704,962 _ (406,!79) ==j;2,2~9~8,J:7S~3= 

-64-

Actunl 

2,975,191 

173,818 

5,490 
3,154,499 

97,242 
8,156 

15,976 

121,374 

606,924 

106,742 
11!,774 

34,471 
859,911 

135,780 

180000 
315,780 

8 830 
8,830 

324 610 

580,699 
262,453 

3,665 
846.817 

15.540 
13,620 
29,160 

875 977 

16.290 
7,097 

23,387 

28,260 
28,260 

51,647 

420 
420 

30 509 780 

323,368 
3,861 

88,660 
15,840 

812,850 

27,891,730 
281,215 

106,272 
981,683 

30 505,479 

190,871 
48,367 

6,000 

245 238 

429,273 

11,632 
15,046 

455.951 

1,949,704 
1,417,989 

68,323 

3,436,016 

1,289,712 
976,297 

2,266,009 

EXHJBITC-1 

Vllriunce 
l'inal Budget 

to Actual 

3,211 

3,211 

33,227 
24,184 

498 

"' 58,419 

35,933 
1,616 

10 049 
47,598 

25,049 
6,176 

4,324 
35,549 

3,383 

3,383 

3.383 

" 43 

43 

580 

580 
8!4,048 

29,042 

2,978 

10,391 
1,322 

27,497 

6,724 
1!,805 
&3,973 

173,732 

1,100 

12,076 

500 
13,676 

327 
27,!68 

3 240 
30,135 

1,604 

1 541 
3,!45 

15,774 

17 000 
32,774 
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LAK~:WOOI) UOARD OF EBUCATION 

HUDGt:TARY COMl'AIUSON SCHEDULE 

GEN.:RAL FUNB 
JIOR THE HSCAL YEAU END£1J JUN£ 30,2017 

Vndnncc 
Original Oudget Fh•al l'inal Budget 
Hndgel Adjustments Budget Actual to Actual 

Undist. l':xpcnd.- Guidance 
Salaries of Other Profc.<Sional Staff 1,023,153 {204,642} 818,511 811,407 7,104 
Salnric' uf Secretarial and Clerical A"istant' 124,861 3,565 128,426 !2H.426 
Other S;1lari"" 75,203 2,986 78,189 78,189 
Purchn.<cd Profe.«iona!. Educational Services 3,400 (2,000} 1,400 529 "'' Other l'urchasctll'rof. ami Tc-.:h. S~'rviccs 23,642 450 24,092 22,129 1,963 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 60,000 3,740 63,740 61,371 2.369 
Sttpplics anJ Materials 7,500 {1,240) 6,260 5,182 1,078 
Other Objec~< 3 000 3.000 2,722 278 
fuM tlndlst. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Studenb·Rcg. 1.320,759 (197,141) 1,123,618 !.109.955 13,663 

Umlist. Elpend.- Chlld Study Teams 

Salaries ufOthcr l'rofessional Staff 1,630,472 396,217 2,026,689 2,026,688 
Salaries ofSecretmi;•l and Clerical Assistants 243.095 39,670 2B2,765 281,905 860 
Other Salmics 139,423 {122,808) 16.6!5 10,985 5,630 
Purchased Professional- Et!ucationnl Scn·iccs 95,830 229,100 324,930 320,204 4,726 
Other Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services 38,590 236,261 274,851 263.910 10,941 
Residential Costs 162,659 60,000 222,659 207,103 15,556 
Mi,. Purchase Scrv. (400-500 series other than Rcsidc'lltial Crnlts) 24,820 24,820 19,308 5,512 
Supplies and Materials 3!,499 59,279 90,778 84,573 6,205 
Other Sala• ies 5.031 703 4,328 4,328 
Total Undlst. I':X]Iend.- Child Study Teams 2,371,419 897,016 3,268,435 3,214,676 53.759 

lind is!. Expend,· Improvement of lnst. Scrv. 

Salaries of Supervisor oflnstrnction 256,401 536,943 793,344 748,985 44.359 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 6,16[) (5,560) 600 600 
Salaries of Seer and Clerical Assist. 30,290 2,414 32,704 32,704 
Sal of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 320,473 21,055 341,528 341,527 
Purchased Prof- Educational Service.< 1,560 1,560 722 838 
Other Purch Services (41l0-500) '" 250 250 
Supplies ;md M;1terials 2,000 2,000 974 1,026 
Other Objects 27,940 27,940 25,420 2,520 
Total tlndlst. Expend.- hn]lrovement of lnst. Sen-. 645,074 554,852 1,199,926 1.150,932 48,994 

lind is!. l':xpend., Edu. Medin Scrv,/Scb. Library 

Salarie.< 443,319 {83,473) 359,846 324,410 35,436 
Salarie-s ofTc>chnolog:y Coordinators 120,116 {30,583) 89,533 89,532 I 
Supplies and Materials 50 484 (3 644) 46,840 42,156 4.684 
Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Llbrury 613 919 (117,700) 496,219 456 098 40,121 

tludist, Expend.· l"'lructional StaffTruining Serv. 

Purchased Profe.<sional ·Educational Scrvic 48,500 94,450 142,950 99,512 43,438 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 serie.<) 4 020 4 020 556 3,464 
Total Undlst. I':XJiend. -Instructional ShrffTrainiug Scrv. 52,520 94,450 146,970 100.068 46,902 

Uudi•t. Expend.- Supp. Scrv.- General Admin. 

Sa!arie~< 330,999 {10,069) 320,930 320,929 
Salaries of Slate Monitor~ 289,692 {40,116) 249,576 249,576 
Rcp1.ymcnt of l'rincipal- NJDOE Loan 450,000 786,557 1,236,557 U46,563 89,994 
Leg:al Services 675,000 105,203 780,203 763,003 !7,200 
Audit Fees 90,000 {10,000) 80,000 75,000 5,000 
Architcci/Enginecring Service~< 25,820 25,820 23,820 2,000 
Purchased Prof(..,;sional Services 10,500 120,685 131,185 97,585 33,600 
Communicationsffclcphone 290,000 74,386 364,386 316,929 47,457 
DOE Other Purchased Scrvic~ 7,888 {1,912} 5,976 4,535 1,441 
Other l'urchascd Services {400-500 series) 37,500 (11,659) 25.841 25,381 460 
Supplie.< and Mate1 inls 14,043 2,000 16,043 )5,596 447 
ilOE in-House Tmining/Mccting 5,068 (2.728) 2,340 2,323 17 
Judgements Against The School District 300,000 462,453 762,453 762,341 112 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 12,000 (5,221) 6,779 6,779 
BOE Membership & Dues 28 775 (1,712) 27,063 27,0(>3 
Total Undist. Expend.· Supp. Serv.- Genenl Admin. 2,541,465 I ,493,687 4035.152 3 837,423 197,729 

Undlst. Ex1>end.- SUJIJIOrt Snv. ·School Admin. 
Solaries of Principal><iAssistant Principals 1,974,333 207,100 2,181,433 2,179,898 1,535 
Salaries ofSccrelarinl and Clcricnl Assistants 817,949 11,455 829,404 806,!28 23,276 
Other Purchased Services {400-500 series) 8,!00 3,500 11,600 9,779 1,821 
Supplie.<and Mate1inls 66,291 " 66,313 45 478 20,835 
TolallJndlst. •:x11end. • SUJlJIOrt Sen.- School Admin. 2,866 673 222 077 3,088,750 3,041,283 47 467 
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EXHIBITC-1 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final Budget 
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual to Achml 

Undist, Expend.- Central SerYites 
Salaries 942,691 (3!,177) 911,514 863,169 48,345 
Purchased Tedmical Services 74,000 20,318 94,318 63,463 30,855 
Mise Purchased Services (400-500) (Off 594) 130,195 (31,530) 9&,665 59,589 39,076 
Supplies and Materials 27,500 925 28,425 28,316 109 
Miscellane-ous Expenditures 6 000 {320) 5 680 5 680 
Total Undist. Expend. - Central Services I 180 386 141 7&4) I 13& 602 l 020 217 111!385 

Undist. Elpend.- Admin Information Technology 
Salaries 217,66& S2,039 299,707 2&7,263 12,444 
PurdlllSed Professional Service~ 330,000 62,632 392,632 322,276 70,356 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 57,1){l0 634 57,634 57,633 ' Supplies and Materials 30 644 19 503 50 147 49 646 501 
Total Undist, Expend.- Admin Information Technology 635 312 164 80& 800 120 716 Sill 83 302 

Undist. Expend. -Required Maintenunce for School Facilities 
Sabri<.'£ 54,835 3,659 58,494 5&,493 
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services 1,273,62K 13,731 1,287,359 1,269,049 18,310 
General Supplies 184,000 29,526 213,526 203,541 9,985 
Other Objects ""'" 321 4 321 4 320 ' Total Undi•t. Expend.- Required Maintenance for School Fndliti 1516463 47 237 I 563 700 l 535 403 28 297 

Uudist. E~pend.- Care & Upkeep of Grounds 
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services 457,005 (35,450) 421,555 420,922 633 
General Supplies 19 925 20000 39925 38 354 l 571 
Totnl Undist. Expend.- Care & Upkeep of Grounds 476 930 (]5 450) 461480 459 276 2 204 

Undist. Expend.- Suurity 
Salaries 527,099 95,856 622,955 fi02,974 19,981 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 350 1,200 1,550 1,451 " Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services &,200 8,200 (1,374) 9,574 
General Supplies 41,100 (1,200) 39,900 20,970 18,930 
Other Objc'Cts 1 500 l 500 1 500 
Total Undist. Expend.- Security 578 249 95 856 674 105 624 021 500&4 

Undist. Expend.- Custodial Services 
Salaries 92,161 46,640 138,801 135,093 3,708 
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides 5,000 (5,000) 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 35,000 300 35,300 34,444 856 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services !,716,728 (44,800) 1,671,928 1,660,928 11,000 
Rental of Land, Building & Other than Lease Purchases 540,000 270,67& &\0,67& 810,67& 

Other Purchased Prop.:rty Services 350,000 3,786 353,7&6 341,578 12,208 

Insurance 723,000 22,334 745,334 743,384 1,950 

Miscellaneous Purchased Services 35,000 (26,244) &,756 (9,92&) 18,684 
General Supplies [90,000 33,557 223,557 218,413 5,144 
Energy {Natural Ow;) 400,000 (106,886) 293,114 292,217 "" Energy {Electricity) 858,067 29,700 8&7,767 885,249 2,5U 
Energy (Oil) 57,627 (57,627) 

Other Objects 5 000 5 uoo 5 000 

Total Undist, Expend.- Cu~todinl Services 5 007 583 166438 5174021 5112056 61 965 
Totnl Undist. Expend.- Oper, & Maint, OfPinnt 7 579 225 294081 7 873 306 7 730 756 142 550 

Undist. Expend.- Student Trnnsportntion Scrv. 
Salaries on Non-Instructional Aides 316,219 316,219 316,219 
Sal. For Pup.Trans. (Bet. Home and School)- Regular !,884,512 30!,39! 2,185,903 2,029,519 156,384 

Manag~mcnt Fees- ESC & CTSA Transportation Programs 40,000 (37,750) 2,250 2,250 
Other Purcha.~ed Professional and Tc'Chnical Services 12&,000 140,191 268,191 232,791 35,400 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 233,160 4&,285 281,445 256,257 25,[88 

Lea.~e Purchase Pa)'tllcnts- School Buses 373,800 (8,809) 364,99! 364,991 
Contract Services- (Between Home and School)- Vendors 8,668,541 l\,673,003 17,341,544 16,910,109 431,435 
Contract Services (Other thau Between Home & Schooi)-Vendors 293,042 (73,575) 219,467 207,457 \2,0[0 

Contract Services- (Bctwccn Home and Sch)- Joint Agnnts 23,263 (13,263) 10,000 10,000 
Contr Scrv (Sp!. Ed. Students)- Vendors 4,558,034 (1,544,177) 3,013,857 3,410,256 (396,399) 

Contr Serv (Spl. Ed. Students)- Joint Agnnt 2,852 40,500 43,352 42,42& 924 

Contr Serv (Spl. Ed. Students)- ESCs & CTSA 945,000 (3,000) 942,000 942,000 

Contr Serv. -Aid in Lieu Payments· Nonpublic 1,021,020 (325,204) 695,816 691,363 4,453 

Supplies and Materials 5,750 7,000 12,750 12,432 "" Transportation Supplies 23,000 291,289 314,289 297,619 16,670 

Other Object< & 100 8 100 7 304 796 

Total Uudist. Expend.- Student Transportation Sen. Ill 199 974 7 820 200 26020174 25 732 995 2&7 179 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
Social Security Contributions 967,847 43,000 1,010,847 970,0i){l 40,847 

Other Retirement Contributions - Regular 659,174 187,081 846,855 742,ll6 104,739 

Unemployment Compensation 400,000 (123,455) 216,545 253,503 23,042 

Workmen's Compensation 1,094,990 (193,146) 901,K44 898,866 2,978 

Health Benefits !6,547,132 667,754 17,214,&86 16,85\,980 362,906 

Tttition Reimbursement 60,000 6,919 66,919 60,578 6,341 

Other Employee Benefits 115 000 45 ll36 220 836 220 836 

TOTAl. UNAI.I.OCATED BENEFITS 19904 743 633 989 20 538 732 19 997 879 540 853 
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LAKEWOOD HOARD OJ<' Jo:IJUCATION 
HUDGETARV COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
~'OR THE ~'ISCAL YEAR EN[)t;[) JUNE 30,2017 

ON-BEIIAU' CONTRIHUTIONS 
On BehalfTPAF Pension Contributions (Non-Budgeted) 

On BebnlfT!'AF NCGl Cuntribt1tiuns (Non-Budgeted) 

Original 
Uudgcl 

On BchalfTPAF Post Retirement Medical Crmtribmions (Non-Budgeted) 

On BcbalfTPAF Long Tcm1 Ois"bility lruur"nce {Non-Budgeted) 

On-DchalfTPAF Social Security (Reimbursed. Non-Budgeted) 

TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTIUHliTIONS 
TOTAL PEI~SONAL SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
TOTAl, liN[)ISTRIUUTED EXP.:NiliTURt;S 
TOTAL CURRENT I':XI'ENIHTURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment 
Regular l'n>gntms- Instruction: 

Grad~ 1-5 

Gmdcs 6-8 

Grad~ 9-12 

Undistriblllcd Expenditures Ccntml Sm-vices 

Undistt ibuted Expenditures Operation of Plant Services 

Undistributed Expenditures- Student Trans. - Non Ins!. Equipment 
School Bus~- Regular 

School fluses- Special 

Tot11l E•Jnipmenl 
Facilitie~ Acqui.•Him>ttnd Construction Service~ 

Constmetion Services 

Assessment fur Debt Sc'rVicc on SDA Funding 

Totall•'lldlitics Ac<Juisition tmd Con~h·uction Service~ 

TOTAL CAI'ITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXI'ENIHTURJo:S 

Exec" (Ddicicncy) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Jiinancing Sources (Uses); 
Operathtg Transfer In: 
Transfer from Capitall'ruje<:ts l'und 
Contribution to SchGO! Based Budgets- General Fund 

Contr. to School Dased Budgets . Spec. Rev. Fund 
Ojlcnt!lng Transfer Out: 

Comributionto School B"scd Budgets 

Cupltal Lea~c Proceeds 
Total Other Financing Sources {llses): 

E.~ cess (J)elklency) uf nevenues and Other Flmmdng Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditure~ and Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

l'und Ualancc, ,July I, 2016 

fo'und Bnlance, June 30,2017 

Cnmmittced Fund ll3lance: 
Year Em! Encumbmn~cs 

As•igncd Fund Hahmcc: 
Year End Encumbrances 

Una.,igncd Fund Hulancc 

RecortcUlatlou to Guvernmeutal Funds Stnlements {GAi\1'}; 

Lc~~: State Aid Payments nut Rea\i~ed on GAAP Basis 
Delayed SMc Aid 
Extraordinary Aid 

Fund Ihlauce per Gnvernmeutnl Funds (GAAl') 

27,000 

60,000 

130,000 

217,000 

639 

639 

217,639 

127 778 005 

(1,859,761) 

28,845,195 

!,859,761 

(28,845,195) 

1,859,761 

(3,791,814) 

(3,791,8!4) 

Budget 
Ad!u~tmen!s 

633,989 

10 623,139 

10,656,221 

55,753 

6,200 

(15,642) 

(64,032) 

35,185 

2,147,448 

810,900 

2,975,812 

215,990 

215,990 

3,19],802 

!3,848 023 

(4,571,793) 

(334,780) 

7S8,038 

334,780 

476,248 

I ,264,286 

(3,307,507) 

(3,307,507) 
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Final 
Budget 

20 538 732 

106,892,759 

138,2!6,587 

55,753 

27,000 

6,200 

44,358 

65,968 

35,185 

2,147,448 

810900 

3,!92,812 

215,990 

639 

216,629 

3,409,441 

141,626,028 

(6,43!,554) 

28,510,415 

2,647,799 

(28,510,415) 

476,248 

3,124,047 

(3,307,507) 

(3 791,814) 

p,099,J21) 

2,266,331 

4 542,906 

Actual 

3,339,370 

120,993 

2,883,270 

15,837 

2,433,338 

8 792,808 

28 790,687 

113,810,601 

144,320 381 

55,753 

19,574 

6,194 

6,000 

35,185 

I ,889,667 

522,588 

2,534,961 

200,347 

639 

200,986 

2,735,947 

147 056,328 

(2,806,227) 

17,474 

27,982,683 

2,601,215 

(27,982,683) 

476,248 

3,094,937 

288,710 

(3,79!,814) 

(3,503,104) 

476,248 

374,546 

(4,353,898) 

(3,503,104) 

(6,809,237) 

(10,312,34!) 

EXHIHIT C-1 

Varlanc~ 

Jo'inal Hudgcl 
to Actual 

{3,339,370) 

(!20,993) 

{2,883,270) 

(15,8.17) 

7,426 

44,358 

59,968 

257,78! 

288,312 

657,851 

15,643 

!5,643 

673,494 

(5,430,300) 

3,625,327 

17,474 

(527,732) 

(46,584) 

527,732 

(29,! 10) 

3,596,217 

3,596,217 



EXHIBIT C-Ia 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATIO:" 

COMBINII"G BUDGETARY COMPARISOl'i SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUl'iD 

FOR Tll£ FISCAL YEAR El\'DED JUNE 3\1,21117 

-~--~~-__2.~1Gl"0~ BUDQ!I_ _____ ~~~ BUD9ET ADJUSTMEXfS FINAL BUDGET ~------~------- -~- --~<;:!.!!_~----- ------~--~-~·---

Oper-ating Blended Total Operating Blended Total Operating Blended Total Operatin~ Blended Total 
Fund Resource Gencr.al Fund Resource General Fund Resource Gcocr:>J Fund Resource GCJ1e111l 

~:.ll.._ _Fund_"~- Fund Fund 11 -fl. __ _ ........f!!..'!.!!.!!'i __ ~ ____!~d __ _!'1'!'_11_!..!..:_!;!._ Fund 15 Fund Fund ll - 13 -~Fun<!.]_§ _____ -~£'!.!!!L .. _ 
REVE:>iUES 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy $ 94,088,02.8 $ 94,088,028 $ 94,088,028 $ 94,088,028 $ 94,088,028 $ 94,088,028 
Miscellaneous, Including Interest 735,299 735,299 735.299 ____ 7~~1~22.._ 1.785.661 1,785,661 

Totat- Local Sou roes 94,823,327 94,823,327 94.823.327 
-----~ 

----~-823.327 95,873,689 95,873 689 

State Suurccs: 
Special Education Aid 3,053,082 3,053.082 3,053,082 3,053.082 3,053.082 3,053,082 
Extraordinary Aid 5,200,000 5,200,000 5,200,000 5,200,000 4,542,906 4,542,906 
Security Aid 2,186,868 2,186,868 2,186,868 2,186,868 2,186.868 2,186,868 
Equalization Aid !5,070,904 15,070,904 15,070,904 15,070.904 15,070,904 15,070.904 
Tnmsportation Aid 4,199,793 4,199,793 4,199,793 4,199,793 4,199.793 4,199,793 
P ARCC Readiness Aid 58,370 58,370 58,370 58,370 58370 58.370 
Por Pupil Growth Aid 58,370 58,370 58.370 58,370 58,370 58,370 
Professional Learning Community Aid 63,220 63,220 63.220 63,220 63,220 63,220 
Nonpublic TJ1\noportation Roimhu:rsemont 353,310 353.310 ' 2,966,784 ' 2.966,784 3,320,094 3,320,094 3,334,884 3,334,884 
State Aid Advance Loan 5,640,183 5,640,183 5,640,183 5.640.183 5,640.183 5,640,183 
On SehalfTPAF Pension Contributions (Non-Sudgotcd) 3,339.370 3,339,370 
On SehalfTPAF l'CGI Contributions (Non-Sudgotcd) 120.993 120,993 
On BehalfTPAF Post Retirement Medical Contributions (1-:on-Sudgeted) 2,883.270 2,883.270 
On BehalfTPAF Long Tcnn Disability Jnsunmce (!'on-Budgeted) 15.837 15,837 
On-BehalfTPAF Social Sc.:urity (Reimbu:rsed- Non-Budgeted) --~~'-"'~-_3]!_ 2,433,338 

Toto!- Stole Sour~es 30,243,917 30,243,917 8,606,967 8,606,967 __ 38.850.!!\!.:!... -----··----- ==1~,850.88·( 47,001388 __ ,_7.Q2__1_J_8.L 

Federal Sources: 
Special Education Medicare Incentive Program 851,000 851,000 669,263 669,263 1,520,263 1,520,263 1,324,838 1,324,838 
ARRA- SEMI Cost Senlemont 

-~------~ 
50.186 50.186 

Total- Federal Sources --~ooo 851,000 ---669,263- -~--~669;263" --- 1,520,263 ----------.!..2-l~L ____ !.,:?.?1-224 
---------·---- ---·- 1,375,024 

Total Revenues ~--~2'18.244. ----- __ ___g5__,9._~~-4__4:._ ··---·---2P~~.9 __ ------ 9,276.230 135,194 474 135,194.474 ~_d?_£.lQ_I__ ·----~--- - 144,250,101 

EXPE:"<DITURES: 
Current E~pen.e: 
Regular Programs- Instruction 
Ki~dorgart"'l - Salaries ofT oachcn! $ 677,952 677,952 $ 233,603 233,603 ' 911,555 91 !,555 $ 910,306 910,306 
Grades 1-5- Salaries ofT each= 7,348,676 7,348,676 (B86,875) (886,875) 6,461,801 6,461,801 6,450.832 6,450,832 
Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teach= 46,941 2,887,164 2,934,105 (46,675) !78,66{1 !31,985 "' 3,065.824 3,066,090 ,,. 2,961,364 2,961,630 
Grades 9-12- Salarios of Teachers 1,313 4,379,962 4,381,275 '>8 (346,832) (346,414) 1.731 4,033.130 4,034,861 1,660 3.980,103 3,981,763 
Regular Programs- Home lnstruttion: 
SalariO$ ofT each= 95,252 95,252 (!8,274) (1&.274) 76,978 76,978 76,978 76,978 
Purchased Professional-Educational Servi= 250,000 250,000 32,254 32,254 282,254 282,254 180,837 180,837 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 5,460 5,460 5,460 5,460 5.460 5,460 
Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 
Other Salaries for Instruction 146.235 540,190 686,425 (48,000) (27,775) (75,775) 98,235 512,415 610,650 35,385 503,913 539,298 
Purchased Prof<:Ssional-Educationol Services 900,000 900,000 338,000 338,000 1,238,000 1,238,000 1.138,028 1,138,028 
Purchased Technical Services 1,000 1.000 1,000 1,000 1.000 1.000 
Other Purchased S=ices (400-500 series) 250,000 250,000 25,405 53,223 78,628 275,405 53,223 328,628 210.5!3 45,573 256,086 
GOlloml Supplies 81,500 473,369 554,869 392.,944 392,944 81.500 866.313 947,813 80,768 830,487 911,255 
Te>ttbooks 155,296 111,201 266.497 (4,060) (4,060) 155,296 107,141 262,437 155,295 65,697 220,992 
Other Objects 17,459 17,459 (5 470) (5.470) I 1,989 I 1.989 ~~--- (1,783) (1,783) 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- 1/'.:STRUC 1.931.997 16,435.973 18.367,970 283.128 (41 1.582) (128.454) ___ ,_1~ __ 16_,Q£1J2.L ~~--_!~~~9,516. -~--1.8SS"J90 15_747,492 ______________! 6 8 2 



SPECIAL EOUCATIOJ\" -1:\"STRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilitie.: 
Salaries ofTeachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Gencral Supplieo; 
Total Learning ami/or Language Disabilities 
Auditory lmpairmenb: 
Salaries ofTeachers 
Tntal Auditnry lmpainnenb 
Multiple Disabilities: 
Salaries ofTeachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
G<meral Supplies 
Tntal Multiple Disabilities 
Resource Room/Resource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Genernl Supplies 
Tnta\ Resource Room/Resource Center 
Autism: 
Salaries ofTeachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Gcneml Supplies 
Total Autism 
Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time: 
Salaries ofT eachcrs 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
General Supplii:S 
Total Preschool Dinbilities- Full-Time 
Home Instruction: 
Purchased Professi011111-Educationa1 Services 

Operating 
Fund 

--~~l)•.l..I .. L:l-.L_ 

2,000 

5.000 

1,!)QQ__ 

2,645 

-----j-:6'45"'-

24,482 

----~ 24,482-

1.365.555 
472,874 

10,500 

!.-~:!~2-~-~--

90 
Total Home Instruction 90 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDliCATIOI'\- INSTRUd~-T883,146' 

Basic Skill.,Rcmedial- Instruction 
Salaries of Teachers 
Total Basic Skills/Remedial-Instruction 
Bilingual Eduudon- ln•trucrion 
Salaries ofTeachcrs 
Other Salaries for Instruction 

291.133 

·~_______12!..,!ll_ 

169,415 

37,498 
14,000 

ORIGl:>iAL BUDGET 

Blended 
Resource 

_ Fund IS 

913,602 
403,407 

Total 
General 

Fund 

913,602 
405,407 

____ l!.,W_ -·--~U~L 
1.328,952 I 330,952 

54,046 54,046 

---~~ --"--~-
601,432 
I !0,470 

6,357 
718,259, 

2,836,980 

601,432 
115,470 

6,357 
723,259 

2,839,625 

~fl~_ ~---~~c?.~__L 
2,849,748 2,852,393 

206,954 2%,954 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATIO:\" 
COMBI;>;I:\"G BUDGETARY COMPARISO~ SCHEDULE 

GE~ERAL Flli'iD 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR El\DED JUJ\"E 30, 2017 

----~"~""DcGc'cTcAD~Jl'STME:\"T"'~----

Opcnoting 
Fund 

Fund 11 - !] __ 

17,427 

17.427 

(2,645) 

-~-~-12M:ST 

Blended 
Resource 
f_l!__n.~.J.?. 

178.939 
115.387 

3.863 
==j_9i.l89. 

--- (38,600) 
(38.600) 

80.701 
43.827 

2,409 

!2.§..2_3.? 

(667.932) 

____ ,.1~9.0. 
(668.432) 

Total 
General 

___ __!!~.!!!!.__ 

178,939 
123,599 

3,863 
-~3Ci6:~ol 

(38,600) 
.... J}~_,f?p_Q)_ 

80,701 
61,254 

2,409 

-=--==__!±<J.364_ 

(670,577) 

·------- ~ ... J~P_<!l 
~~@JJ!22_l_ 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund l1 - 13 

10,212 

!0,212 

22,427 

·---~2:2:427'-

36,703 61,185 (20,378) 
8.309 

26,47& 
___ Q,ll_§l_ 

________ :g,§?L 

8,309 
6,100 

--~~.E,!.ll?l 
__lb2.2.L 

4,104 

--~,~,;~:~~~ --~~.:~~~ ~----i~2~ 

-- 5,i99,862 

1,365,555 
472,874 

!0,500 
___ __!&~.,2~ 

"' 00 
7.083,008 

291,133 
29!,133 

(186,349) 
38,067 

3.316 
, __ .J.J_i~,?.~_6)_ 

(90) 
____ .(291 

(150,652) 

(291,133) 
(291,133) 

~ill 

(186,349) 
38,067 

3,316 
____ {1_4~,-~~6)_ 

__________ _jill 
--· --- , ___ £.9.21 
__ _____Q2__1_,675) 

-==::±''~'i'"~'= 567.836 _ 858,969 =.___ 567Kl6 

3261,997 
185,233 

3,431,412 
185,233 
37,498 
14,000 

(169,415) (253579) 

(37,000) 
(8,000) 

12.769 

4_104 

1,179,206 
510,941 

13,8!6 
_ ___ I ,703,963 

--i';74o;706-

<98 
6.000 

Fl:"'AL BUDGET 

Bl~nded 

Resource 
Fund 15 

1,092,541 
5\8,794 

15,806 
1.627,141 

15,446 
15.446 

682.133 
154,297 

8,766 
84.fl96 

2,169.048 

12.268 
2,l&i316 

215.263 
63,181 

3.084 
·-- 281,528 

4,950,627 

ToW 
General 

Fund 

1,092,541 
529,006 

15,806 
1,637,353 

15,446 
--· 15,446 

682,133 
176,724 

8.766 
867,623 

2,169,048 

12,268 
2,18!}16 

215,263 
67,285 

3,084 
285,632 

1,179,206 
510,!<41 

13,816 ,, __ 1 7703,963--

__________M2l.21}._ 

---18~'"~·'o'l-' ___ 8_5~?2.... 
-~~-~ 858,969 

3,008,418 
198,002 

3,008,418 
193,002 

"' 6,000 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 
Gencral Supplies 
Total Bilingual Education- Irutructiun =-=--~lllc~_l_;J__ ~·---].,±!:Z,D,Q_ 3,668,143 ___ _jf..li,llit ==-·: .. Q~2.:...EQ:I_ 

(422,994) 
12,769 

(37,000) 
___ lbQQQt 

.. L1?1f~1.l --~_:_-=s;~~'I': ---~ 3306-:420" 3,212.918 

Scbool-Spon. Coourricular Advts.- IuS!. 
Salaries 5,327 
Purchased Service. (300-500 series) 10,000 
Supplies and Materials 
Total School-Span. Cocurricular Actvts.- lnst. -------15,327-

Schooi·Spon. Cocurricular Athletics· lost. 
Salaries 622,310 
Pu-chased Services (300-500 serios) 125,270 
Supplies and Materials 103,400 
OtherOhjccts 38,795 
Total Schooi.Spon. Cocurricular Athletics- In> 889,775 

Sefore/After School Programs-Instruction 
Salaries ofTcachers 

~:::~~o~::e:~;~~b~;~~~:=~ lnstructit---~-
Bdore/ After School Program' - Support Svcs ~---~-----

~~:~•fore/After School Programs- Support!,---~­
Total Bcfure/After Scllunl Programs 

152,385 157,712 
10,000 

--~~-_____l§,QQQ_ _____ 26.000_ 

----''"'"'·'""'-5 193,712_ 

48.000 
_, __ ,_8,QQQ__ 

~-=--48,000 

622.310 
125,270 
103,400 

___ __1_~72_~ 
___ ,_._9.21i___ 

48.000 
48,000 

48,000 

(228) 

~-·-pnr 

(15,386} 
6,521 

14.550 

5.685 

(24.537) 

i24:5i2) 

139,163 
132,000 

___ .. _. _ _±Z_hL@_ 

8,830 
---- S.&JO 

==-------=-279,99_} __ 

(24,537} 
(228) 

" ===--~(24540) 

{15,386) 
6,521 

14,550 

--- 5.685 

139,163 
132,000 

-- 271,16.1_ 

8,830 
---~ 

~-- 279,993 

5,327 
9,772 

-- 15~099-

606,924 
131,791 
117,950 
38,795 =-- 895,460 

127,848 

26.025 
--- 153,873 

139,163 
180,000 

_ ___ ill,!6]_ 

8,830 

133,175 
9,772 

26,025 
168,972 

606,924 
131,791 
117,950 
38,795 

895,460 

139,163 
180,000 

8,830 
8,830 

:_...-:::-__::__ 327.993 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund II - 13 

10.212 

____ l!1.2.!.L 

22,427 

22.427 

(99) 

______ (221 

3.864 

3.864 

1,179,206 
509,163 

~ 
1,701,042 

_,\_,,'U2.,~-· 

5.490 
5,490 

1,342 
8,!56 

9,498 

606,924 
106,742 
111,774 
34,471 

859,911 

ACTUAL 

Blended 
Resource 
.f.ll~_,_;_ 

\,092,021 
518,794 

___ 1~,_5.~ 
1,624,315 

2.574 

EXHIBIT C-Ia 

Total 
Genenol 

Fund 

1,092,021 
529,006 

13,500 
1,634,527 

2,574 

____ 2.574 __ ---·--·-·-~ .. 2~-

664,714 
153,452 

6,090 
-- 824,256 

2,163,545 

7,745 
~!i90 

210,268 
59,680 

664,714 
175,879 

6,090 
-- 846,6&3 

2,163,545 
(99) 

7,745 
--~--2"J7T,T9! 

210,268 
63,544 

--,~'·*"'~'- 3,073 _____ . .£?.1~ -=__~ i76:sss· 

4,895,456 

855,758 
855,758 

2,975,191 
173,818 

3,\49,009 

1,179,206 
509,163 

12,673 
__ "___________12~_,_1!_.g_ 

--6:632:902" 

855,758 

~lL 

2,975,\9\ 
173,818 

5,490 

3..J..~:!2.~ 

95,900 97,242 
8,156 

---~'~'·*"S'- 15.976 , ___ !.!.!&?__~. -----w:37T 

135,780 
, __ ,_}~<!-

315.780 

8,830 
----8.830 

324,6!0 

606,924 
106,742 
111,774 
34,471 ---·----ili-;91'1" 

135,780 
180,000 
315,780 

8,830 
8,830 

324,610 



Summc~School-lnstruction 

Salaries ofTeachers 
Other Salaries for Instructions 
Gcneml Supplics 
Total Summer School-Instruction 

Summer School- Support Svcs 
Salaries 
Purchased Services (400-500 series) 
Total Summer School- Support Svc. 
Total Summer School 
Alternative Education Program- Instructiun 
Salaries ofTcachers 
Other Salaries for lnstnlctions 
Total Alternative Education Program -lnstruc• 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11 - 13 

500.270 
247.735 

1.000 

==--_?~~,Q_Oj __ _ 

. ----~'!1~905 

Alternative Education Prugram -Support Svcs ______ _ 

Salaries 
Total Alternative Education Pro~:r-am- Suppur• ... -~--··---·-­

Total Alternative Education Program 
Community Services Programs/Oper-ati<>ns 

i~,"::~ommnntt} Scrv~ees Programs/Operatim----~ 
Total Instruction - 5.9STiii6"" 
Undistributed Expenditures- Instruction: 
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State· Regular 
Tuition to Other LEN; Within the State. Special 
Tuition to County Voc. School OisL- Regular 
TUltion to CoumyVoc. School Dist- Special 
Tuition to CSSO & Regional Day Schools 
Tuition to PTi•-ate Schools for the Disabled- Withi 
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled & Oth< 
Tuition- State Facilities 
Tuition- Other 

233.858 
56,839 
46.500 
37,319 

1,007,000 
18,317.804 

118,939 
118,077 

1.547.159 
TotaliJndistributcd Expenditures -lnstru~tinn 31,483,495 
Undist. Expend.- Attend. & Soda! Work ---------

Salaries 53.104 
Salaries ofFamilv Liaisons and Comm. Parent lnv. 46,477 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Total Undist. Expend.- Attend. & S<>dal Work ~---·--99"];'81-
Undist. Expend.- Health Services 
Salaries 52,667 
Purcitased Professional and Technical Sen-ices 32.000 
Supplies Oild Materials 
T<>tal IJndlst. Expend.- Health Servic:.ls 84,667 
lindisl Expend.- Speech, OT, PT and Related Services ---
Salaries 1,892.199 
Purchased Professional- Educational Services 1,450,000 
General Supplies 70,000 
ToM Undist. Expend.- SJH.!eclt., OT, PT and Ro ___ 3,m,l2?_ 
Undist. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Students- Extra Serv. 
Salancs 1.343.419 
Purchased Professional- Educational Services 1.361.543 
Total Undist. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Stud 2.704.962 
lindist. Expend.- Guidance 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 
OtherSalari<t:S 
Purchased Professional- Educational Se!"\ices 
Othor Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services 
Other Purcitased Sen--ices (400-500 series) 
Supplies and Materials 
OthorObjects 
Total Undisl Expend.- Guidance 

53.759 
10.528 
75.203 

3.400 

60,000 

202,890 

ORIGI:"fAL BUDGET 

Blended 
Resource 
Fund IS 

Total 
General 

Fund 

500,270 
247,735 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCAT!Ol'i 
COMBI:"fi:>.'G BUDGETARY COMPARISO/\' SCHEDULE 

GE/\'ERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJIJNE30, 21117 

~------~--~!!P_~_lf_!_~!!:I_I}S"J:_~-~ . ."n~----· 

Oper-ating 
Fund 

Fund 11- l3 

Blended 
Resource 
Fund 15 

76.020 

Total 
General 

Fund 

80,429 
14,718 

Oper>tting 
Fund 

Fund 11 -13 

-~-_-__ -_-_-__ -_-_-_,,.il'!:~~~ 
4,409 

14.718 
1.569 ------f0:6% 1.139 

--~77~159 
. ____ 2_2Q_L 

97.855 

504,679 
162.453 

2.569 
7_-69,7ill 

s ·----i~f:3ii\iA5o-· 

159.171 

'"' --i59~67T-

394.726 

969.394 
114.333 

23,642 

7.500 
3,000 

ul7-:869 .. 

. Z~&Q.~ 

___ :jT:i9iiT46-

2}3.858 
56.839 
46.500 
37.319 

1.007,000 
28,317.804 

118.939 
118.077 

-- 20.696 

1.000 
1.ooo 

-- ---1345,9!9) 

118.552 
(50,000) 
42.160 

(11.088) 
(192,828) 
(398.577) 
169,000 

1.547.159 (481.503) 

-~-~-·-~1-~?1_ _ __ (804.284) 

212_375 25.112 
46.477 1.890 

18.076 
500 

25"9.352 --·-45.il78 

447.393 
32.000 

1.892,1~9 
1.450,000 

70.000 

1,.~L?J?2._ 

1,343,419 

. J~~'~§__ 
2.704.962 

1,023.153 
124,861 
75.203 

3.400 
23,642 
60,000 

7,500 
3_,000 

·-1 .. 32o559·-

(14.947) 
6,800 

__11_ 
(8.075) 

57,505 
(30.407) 

(136) 
________ ___.}6 962 

(37,933) 

--- (368,246) 
(406.179) 

(51,779) 

2,986 
(2,000) 

3,740 

-------i47,053Y 

15.540 
13,620 
29.160 

-~-~ 

15,540 
13,620 
19.160 

127.015 

16,290 
___1_Q22 
23.387 

~~ _______ __1!,260 

-==='1l":l·'~'"~ 28.260 - 51.647 --·-.....21!~ 

-:i70;789 

(45.516) 

1.000 
1,000 

----33-,0&2 

118,552 
(50,000) 
42,160 

(11,088) 
(192,828) 
(398,577} 
169,000 

____ J3~Q?l 
(804.284) 

(20,404} 
1,890 

18,076 

-- (45-,516) -·----438-

(2.846) (17,793) 

___ _2>;;<0») 6.800 
-- - _j~ - __ (:'!§~ - OL457). 

57.505 
(30,407) 

(!36) 

__ ___2i<)~ 

1.000 
1.000 

5.643.589 

352.410 
6.839 

88.660 
26,231 

814.172 
27.919.227 

287.939 
118.077 

~--!_,!!~§~§ __ 
30.679.211 

78,316 
48.367 
18.076 

144.759 

37,720 
38.800 

n 
---·-76:592 

1.949,704 
L4!9,593 

69.864 

------~§,~2_ ~-----~'~39,16!__ 

(37.933) 
(368,246) 
(406.179} 

1.305,486 
993.297 

2.298.783 

(152,863) (204.642) 1,980 
6,065 3.565 8.028 

2.986 78.189 
(2,000) 1,400 

450 450 
3.740 63,740 

(1,240) (1,240) 

~~---(i4i:5"88Y -·----09-7.141} __ 153,337 

Fl:"fAL BUDGET 

Blended 
Rcscurcc 

.. t::u.!!.~ 

76,020 

1,139 
77.159 

15,540 
13.620 

_29.160 
106.319 

16.290 
7,097 · 2s:rsr 

28.260 

==--~'~\! __ 
---~ 

25.680.239 

113,655 

'"' 114.155 

391,880 

-·-~--~·-J.Pl4 
410,094 

816,531 
120.398 

24,092 

6,260 
___ _____l__,QQQ__ 

970.281 

Total 
Gener-al 

Fund 

580.699 
262.453 

3.708 

~~~ .. ---.!1.61!§9~. 

15,540 

16.290 
7.097 

==--i3.3S7 . 

18.260 
28,260 

--~-51,647 

1,000 
1.000 

31.323.82_8 

352.410 
6.839 

88,660 
26,231 

814.172 
27,919,227 

287.939 
118,077 

1,065,656 
30.679.211 

191,971 
48.367 
18,076 

;oo 
-~~-'!.!:! ... 

429.6DO 
38.800 
18,286 

486.686 

1,949,704 
1.419.593 

69,864 
-~-3:439:161 .. 

1,305,486 
993,297 

_,_],~~l!L 

818,511 
128.426 
78.189 

1,400 
24_o92 
63.740 

6,260 
3.000 

1.123.618 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund II - JJ 

504,679 
262,453 

2.526 
__ '!§.~~_5_§_ 

___ 769.658 

____ ______flQ_ 
420 

~--~iil,§!L 

323.368 
3,861 

88,660 
15.840 

812,850 
27.891.730 

281,215 
106.272 
981.683 

___ _l_Q.,_~~~ 

78.316 
48.367 

6,000 

_!1_2.683 

37_393 
11,632 

-----" 
49.097 

1.949,704 
1.417,989 

68,323 
3.436.016 

1.289.712 
976.297 

__ 1_.266.009 

260 
78,189 

<>9 

61.371 

.-.l:!t:l_,~-!2 __ 

ACTUAL 

Blended 
Resource 
Fund IS 

76,020 

1.139 --77;159-

15.540 
13,620 

--~~---29~1-6(1 

1Q2.319 

EXHIBIT C-Ia 

TalK! 
Genenol 

Fund 

580.699 
162,453 

3.665 
. 846.817 

15.540 
13.620 

---29.160 

____ s75~97T 

16,290 16,290 

-_::_::_-::_-_~_,~;_~:~-~~lc_ 2~:~~; 
___ t§.d§..f!.. _28.260 

28~ 28.260 
51,~_?_ 

420 

'" --··-zs--:-i4Ti67 · ~1so 

323,368 
3,861 

88.660 
15,840 

812.850 
27,891,730 

281.215 
106.272 

--~~-~.!_,§!!_3_ 
30.505.479 

112.555 190,871 
48,367 

6.000 

---ri2;sss· -~--245.238 

391.880 429,273 

14.974 
___ _i!l§_,_!!;i_:l __ 

11.632 

1,949.704 
1,417,989 

68.323 

}~1_§,0_!_~-

1.289.712 
976.297 

-----~ 

811.407 811,407 
128.166 128.426 

78.189 
529 

22.129 22,129 
6].371 

5.182 5,182 

---- 2.72~.. ----~-~:L 
--~"'2'~-""~'c 1,109.955 
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Undist. Expend.- C£ntral SeiTites 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11- 1J 

S:tlaries $ 942.691 
Purchased Technical Services 74,000 
Mise Purchased Services (400-500) (Off 594) 130,195 
Supplies and Materials 27.500 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 6,000 
Total Undist. Expend.- Ctntr~l SeiTices -- L l 80.386 
Undi1t. Expend. -Admin lnfonnation Teehnolo'iY ____ _ 

Salaries 217.668 
Purchased Professional Services 330,000 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 57.000 
Supplies and Materials ~0.644 
Tntal Undist. Expend.- Admin lnfonnation Te<---,35312-
Undist. Expend.- Requin:d Maintenance for School FacUlties 
Salaries 54,835 
Oeaning. Repair. and Maintenance Services 1.273,628 
General Supplies 184.000 
Other Objects 4.000 
Total Undirt. Expend.- Required Maintenane< 1.516.463 
Undist. Expend.- Care & Upkeep of Grounds 
Cleaning, Repair. and Mainrenance Services 457.005 
Genernl Suppli<:S 19.925 
Total Undist. ExJM:nd.- Can: & Upkeep ofGro• 476,930 
Undist. Expend.- Custodial Services 
Salaries 
Salaries ofNon-lns!IUCiionAI Aides 
Purchas<'d ProfessionAl and Technical Services 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 
Rental of Lund. Building & Other than lease Purcl 
Other Purchased Property Services 

""== Miscellaneous Purchased Services 
General Supplies 
Energy (Natural Gas) 
Energy (E!ectricily) 
Energy (Oil) 
Other Objects 
Total Undist. Expend.- Custodial Services 
Undist. Expend. • Security 

92.161 
5,000 

35,000 
1.7)6,728 

540,000 
350,000 
723,000 
35.000 

190,000 
400,000 
858,067 

57.627 
5,000 

~~ 

Salaries 527,099 
Purehas<'d ProfessiOiti!l and Technical Services 350 
Cleaning. Repair and Main!e!lllncc Services 8,200 
General Supplies 41,100 
Other Objects 1.500 
Total Undist. Expend.- S..,.;urity 578.249 
Total Undist. Expend.- Oper. & Maint. OfPla1 7.579.225 
Undist. Expend.- Student Transportation Serv. 
S:tlaries of Non--Instructional Aides 
Sal. For Pup. Trans. (Bet. Home and School)- Rego 
Management f<'es ·ESC & CfSA Transportation l 
OtherPurchasM Professional ""d Technical S<mic 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 
Lease Purchase Payments- School Buses 
Contr Serv. - Aid in Lieu Payments - Nonpub!ie 
Conlr.ICI Sen ices - (Between H= and School) • ' 
Conlr.ICI Services (Other lhnn Between Home & S 
ContraCI Services - (Between H= and Sch) - Joir 
Contr Serv (Spl. Ed Students)- Vendors 
Contr Serv (Spl. Ed. Students) -Joint Aglm! 
Contr Serv (SpL Ed. Students)- ESCs & CTSA 
Supplies and Materials 
T=spo!Ution Supplies 
Oth<:rObjects 

1,884.512 
40,000 

128,000 
233.160 
373,800 

1,021,020 
8,668,541 

293,042 
23,263 

4,558,034 
2,852 

945,000 
5,750 

23,000 

Total Undist. Expend.- Student Transportatior 18,199,974 

ORIGINAL BUDGET 

Blended 
Re:soun:e 
Fund IS 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
COMBINING BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 21ll7 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Total 
General 
,~, 

942.691 
74,000 

130,195 
27,500 

6,000 
1,180.386 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11- 13 

(31,177) 
20.318 

(31,530) 
925 

(320) 
(41,784) 

217,668 82,039 
330,000 62,632 

57,000 634 
30,644 19.503 

---635.312 ___ ,_64:!2!_ 

54.835 
1,273,628 

184.000 
4.000 

1.516.463 

457.005 
19.925 

---476,9~0_ 

92.161 
5,000 

35.000 
1,716.728 

540.000 
350.000 
723,000 
35,000 

190,000 
400,000 
858,067 

57,627 
5,000 

-~7.583 

527,099 

"" 8,200 
41,100 

1,500 
578,249 

7.579.225 

1,884,512 
40,000 

128,000 
233.160 
373,800 

1,021,020 
8,668,541 

293,042 
23,263 

4,558.034 
2,852 

945,000 
5,750 

23,000 

18.199,974 

3,659 
13.731 
29,526 

"' 47.237 

(35,450) 
20,000 

{1~.4-50) 

46,640 
(5,000) 

'"' (44.800) 
270,678 

3.786 
22,334 

(26,244) 
33.557 

(106,886) 
29,700 

(57.627) 

166,438 

95,856 
1.200 

(1.200) 

----95]56 

294.081 

316.219 
301,391 
(37,750) 
140.191 
48.285 
(8.809) 

(325.204) 
8,669,003 

(73,575) 
(13,263) 

(1.544,177) 
40,500 
(3.000) 
7.000 

291,289 
8,100 

__ _7.816,200 

Blended 
Resoun:e 
Fund 15 

4,000 

4,000 

Total 
General 

Fund 

(31,177) 
20,318 

(31.530) 

'" (320) 
(41,784) 

82,039 
62,632 

'" 19.503 
164,808 

3,659 
13,731 
29.526 

"' 47.237 

(35.450) 
20,000 

(15.450) 

46,640 
(5.000) 

300 
(44.800) 
270.678 

3,786 
22,334 

(26,244) 
33,557 

(106,886) 
29,700 

(57,627) 

166.438 

95.856 
1.200 

(1,200) 

95,856 
294,081 

316.219 
301,391 
(37.750) 
140,191 
48,285 
(8,809) 

(325.204) 
8,673,003 

(73,575) 
(13,263) 

(1.544.177) 
40,500 
(3,000) 
7,000 

291,289 
8.100 

7,820.200 

Oper~ting 

Fund 
Jund 11-13 

911,514 
94.318 
98,665 
28,425 
5,680 

1.138,602 

299,707 
392,632 

57,634 
50,147 

800,120 

58,494 
1.287,359 

213,526 
4.321 

1.563.700 

421,555 
39,925 

461.480 

138.801 

35,300 
1.671.928 

810,678 
353,786 
745.334 

8,756 
223,557 
293,114 
887.767 

5.000 
5,174-021 

622.955 
1,550 
8.200 

39,900 
1.500 

674,105 
7,873,306 

316.219 
2.185,903 

2.250 
268.191 
281.445 
364,991 
695,816 

17.337,544 
219,467 

10,000 
3,013,857 

43,352 
942,000 

12.750 
314,289 

8,100 
26,016.174 

FINAL BUDGET 

Blended 
Resoun:c 
Fund 15 

4,000 

4,000 

Total 
G<!ncral 

Fund 

911,514 
94.318 
98.665 
28.425 
5,680 

1.138,602 

299,707 
392.632 
57,634 
50,147 

800,120 

58.494 
1.287.359 

213,526 
4.321 

1.563.700 

421,555 
39.925 

461.480 

138.801 

35,300 
1.671.928 

810.678 
353.786 
745.334 

8.756 
223.557 
293.114 
887.767 

5.000 
5,174,021 

622.955 
1,550 
8,200 

39,900 
1,500 

674.105 
7.873.306 

316,219 
2,185,903 

2.250 
268,191 
281,445 
364,991 
695,816 

17,341.544 
219,467 

10.000 
3,013,857 

43,352 
942,000 

12.750 
314.289 

8.100 
26,020,174 

EXHIBIT C·la 

_________ ACTUAL --·--·----

Oper~ting 

Fund 

.~!!11:.!.3_ 

863.169 
63,463 
59.589 
28,316 
5,680 

1,020.217 

287.263 
322.276 

57.633 
49,646 

716,818 

58,493 
1.269,049 

203.541 
4,320 

- 1.535.403 

420,922 
38,354 

___ 459,276 

135,093 

34,444 
1.660,928 

810,678 
341,578 
743.384 

(9,928) 
218,413 
292217 
885,249 

5.112,056 

602,974 
1,451 

(1.374) 
20,970 

624,021 
7,730.756 

316,219 
2.029,519 

2,250 
232,791 
256,257 
364,991 
691,363 

16,906,254 
207,457 

10,000 
3,410.256 

42,428 
942,000 

12,432 
297,619 

7,304 
25.729,140 

Blended 
Resoun:c 
Fund 15 

Total 
G<!nera1 

-~ 

863.169 
63.463 
59,589 
28,316 
5.680 

1.020,217 

287.263 
322,276 

57,633 
49,646 

716,818 

58.493 
1,269.049 

203.541 
4.320 

------ -·--1,535.402._ 

3.855 

3,855 

420.922 
38.354 

459,276 . 

135,093 

34,444 
1.660.928 

810.678 
341.578 
743,384 

(9,928) 
218.413 
292,217 
885.249 

5,1l2,056 

602,974 
1.451 

(1.374) 
20,970 

624.021 
7,730,756_ 

316219 
2,029,519 

2,250 
232,791 
256,257 
364,991 
69!,363 

16,910,!09 
207.457 

10.000 
3.410.256 

42,428 
942.000 

12.432 
297,619 

7.304 
25.732,995 



ORIGII'\AL BUDGET 

Unallocated Benefits 
Social Security Contributions 
Other Retircmont Contributions - Regul..­
Unemployrnenl Compensation 
Workmon's Compet1$ation 
Health Benefits 
Tuition Reimbursement 
Other Employee Benefits 

Operating 
Fund 

__ E!!!!.d..l!:~IL. 

96?,847 
659,774 
400,000 

I ,094,990 
16,547,132 

60.000 
175,000 

Total Unallocated Benefits ~ 
On BehalfTPAF Pet1sian Contributions (Non-Budgeted) 
On BehalfTP!IF NCGI Contribution.; (Non-Budgeted) 
On BehalfTP!IF Post Retirement Medical Contributions (Non-Budgeted} 
On BehalfTPAF Long Term Disability lnsurnnco (!\on-Budgeted) 
On-BchalfTPAF Social Security (Reimbursed- 1\:~-Bud~j __ _ 

Total On-Behalf Contributions 

Blended 
Resource 

..!!'.!!!!.!.5 __ ~ 

Total Personal Services- Employee Benefits 
Total Undistribntcd E~penditures 

J2,.~-~,.z~.L -----~~-
90.932,739 $ 5,336.881 

Totnl Current E~penditures 96.914.035 30.646.331 

Capital Outlay 
Equipment 
Regular Programs- Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 
Grades 6-8 
Grades 9-12 

Undistributed Expenditures- Central Sorvkos 60,000 
Undistributed Expenditures- Operation of Plant Se 130,000 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Trans. -!\on lnst. Equipment 
School Buses- Rcgui..-
School Buses - Special 
Total Equipment ----'-"--'190,Ci0ci-

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Sen-ices 
Construction Services 
Assossmont for Debt Sorvi~o on SDA Funding 639 
Total ~'adlities Acquisition and Construction So---·- ···--;;J;r· 

To!al Capital Outlay l2Q,.§2_ 

27,000 

27.000 

27,000 

Totnl 
General 

F.!!~.':L.- .. ~ 

967,847 
659,774 
400,000 

1,094,990 
16,547,I32 

60,000 
175,000 

19,904.743 

27,000 

60,000 
130,000 

217.000 

"' ~~~639'-

217,639 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATIOl'i 
C0:\1BIJ\IJ'\G BUDGETARY CO:v!PARISO~ SCHEDULE 

GEI\ERAL FU:\D 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E~DIW JU~E 30,2017 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Operating Blended Total 
Fund Resource General 

!!!_~ Fund 15 Fund 

s 43,000 s 43,000 
187,081 187,081 

(123,455) (123,455) 
(193,146) (193,I46) 
667,754 667,754 

6,919 6,919 
45.836 ____ 3.2_~ 

----~-33,982.__ 633,989 

~~~"~'~·•iss~ ~-----~~-·- ----------m:-989-
:::: 10.573,498 s 52,141 10,623.139 
_____ ~_o_).f_7_,12.2..._ -···-422.93o ~--w~6Ki21-

(64,032) 
35,185 

2,147,448 
810,900 

2.929,501 

215,990 

215,990 

3,129,849 

55,753 55.753 

6,200 6.200 
(15,642) 
(64,032) 
35,185 

2,147,448 
810.900 

____ _?1,?.?1.. -·----~~~ll__ 

215,990 

_____ ....2!2:,22!!_ 

61,953 3.191,802 

·-···-·--· 

Operating 
Fund 

Fond 11- l3 

s 1,010,847 
846,855 
276,545 
90I,844 

17,214,886 
66,919 

220.836 
···-2o.533332-

44,358 
65.968 
35,185 

2,147,448 
810,2QQ.. 

3,103,859 

215,990 
639 

~-~-216.629 

~-3.320.488_ 

Total Expenditures 97.104.674 ~..2\l.:.?]lt.~.L -~-l2J,z:?!,_O_~-- _____ 1_~J_~428 484~ 13,848,023 I 10.467,814 

E~ccss {Defidency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures _L ..... .1.1!&!?.57o.. . .. ~~-2l!l _2_________[_!_,859.76IL _2_________[4,o8I.~ 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In: 

Transfer fr-um Capital Pr-ojects Fund 
Contr. to School Based Budgets -Gene"" I Fund 
Contr. to School Based Budgets - Spee.. Re•·- Fund 

Operating Transfer> Out: 
Transfer to Spc"Cial Revenue Fund - Preschool Program 
Cuntribul1on to Schuul Based Budgets (28,845, 195} 

Capil>ll Lease Pr...,ecds 
Totnl Other Financing Sources (Uses): ~·--GI&.'!:2.-l~. 

l!:xceS$ (Dclldcncy) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) E~pcnditures and Other Finanoh (31,625) 

Fund Balance, July I (3,791,814) 

Fund Balanc", June 36 (3,823,439) 

28,845,195 28,845,195 
1,859,761 1,859.761 

(28.845.195) 334,780 
476,248 

-----~_704,956 1,859.761 811.028 

31,625 (3,275,882) 

(3,791.814) 

31.625 s (3,791.8I4) $ (3,275.882) 

(484,883) (4,571,793) 24.726,660 

(334,780) (334,780) 
788.038 788.038 

334,780 (28,510,415) 

-·--·-----~'~ 476.248 
--~--- 453.258 I,264,286 (28,034,I67) 

(31,625) (3,307,507) (3,307,507) 

~~-~-· ·-----.. s.~,Z2_~&_l~.t 

s (31.625) $ (3.307.507) ' (7.099.321) 

.!':!~1\L BUDGET 

Blended 
Resource 

~~F~~ 

S5]89,022' 

Tollll 
General 

Fund 

1,010,847 
846,855 
276,545 
901,844 

17.214,886 
66,9I9 

220.836 
~_!,?32 

- 31,069,261 ~.t_~~ 

55,753 
27,000 
6,200 

-88~953-

~----·-·-

~---- ~-~-953 

31,158,214 

55,753 
27,000 

6,200 
44,358 
65,968 
35,185 

2,147,448 
810.900 

______l,__!_gill_ 

215,990 

"' 216.629 

3,409.441 

__ _j_i!_~_,O}!_ 

(31,158.214) ~,554) 

28,510,415 28,510,415 
2,647,799 2,647,799 

(28,510,4I5) 
476.248 

31.158,214 ___ __l,]_f_±,_~"!Z__ 

(\307,507) 

p,791.8I4) 

' s (7.099.321) 

ICXHIBITC-Ia 

---------------- -~£1:.:..UAL _________ __ 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund ll - 13 

970,000 
742,116 
253,503 
898,866 

16,851,980 
60,578 

220,836 
~-19,997]!79"" 

3.339,370 
120,993 

2,883,270 
15,837 

2.433,338 

-~-_!.792~ 
28,790,687 

108,550,391 
---!T3:STro04 

6,000 
35.185 

1,889,667 
522,588 

--~2~,440 

200,347 

"' __________£Q_0,986_ 

2,654,426 

116,472,430 

27,777.671 

17,474 

(27.982,683) 
476.248 

_ __ (27,488,961) 

288,710 

(3,791,814) 

s (3,503,104) 

Blended 
Resource 
Fund 15 

55,753 
19,574 
6,194 

To~>~ I 
General 

Fund 

970,000 
742,116 
253,503 
898,866 

I6.851,980 
60,57H 

220.836 
~~'_9,997,B2'J 

3,339,370 
120,993 

2.883,270 
15,837 

______ },:f}},_3~8 
8,792.808 

28.790.687 
~----·i1Ysi·o:6o I 

~-~_li__!__ 

55,753 
19,574 
6,194 

6,000 
35,185 

1,889.M7 

~~~---""'" ------- ---~2..f~~i___ 
81.521 ~~! __ 

200,347 
639 

~~----·--· --·--- - 2oo.986 
~-

______ .§_!.,_~_~!_ -------~,?.:1_~,'!_42_ 

30.583.898 ~~l!,;y_s __ 

po.s83,&98) -'~-11_.so6.n_:n_ 

17,474 
27,982,683 27.982.68.1 

2,601,215 2.601.215 

(27.982.683) 
476.248 

30.583,898 ~-,2,::?_ 

288,710 

____ Q_,_Z2_1__&_!_±)__ 

(].503.104)_ 



EXHIBIT C~2 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original Final Variance 
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

REVENUES 
Local Sources $ 1,672,984 $ 1,672,984 $ 1,670,624 $ (2,360) 
State Sourc<Js $ 23,124,853 9,847,607 32,972,460 26,793,747 (6,178,713) 
Federal Sources 24,219,313 5,788,456 30,007,769 27 452 262 (2,555,507) 

Total Revenues 47,344,166 17,309,047 64 653 213 55,916,633 (8,736,580) 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Salaries ofT eachers 1,558,778 1,196,029 2,754,807 2,409,260 345,547 
Other Salaries 406,268 76,572 482,840 457,651 25,189 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7,014,695 2,190,798 9,205,493 7,749,229 1,456,264 
Other Purchased Services 766,073 1,537,337 2,303,410 2,253,242 50,168 
General Supplies 1,256,669 1,318,091 2,574,760 1,680,093 894,667 
Textbooks 1,192,219 354,201 1,546,420 1,448,453 97,967 
Other Objects 920,027 (565,100) 354,927 1 605 353 322 

Total Instruction 13,114,729 6,107 928 19,222,657 15,999,533 3,223,124 

Support Services 
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 72,237 (9,594) 62,643 62,643 
Salaries of Program Directors 75,407 (33,695) 41,712 41,712 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 1,385,368 65,949 1,451,317 1,186,488 264,829 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 76,241 {17,902) 58,339 47,193 11,146 
Other Salaries 608,280 93,901 702,181 603,850 98,331 
Personal Services Employee-Benefits 1,946,357 1,323,457 3,269,814 3,086,622 183,192 
Purchased Professional and Technical SeiVices 9,599,494 1,540,188 11,139,682 9,617,288 1,522,394 
Purchased Prof./Ed. SeiV. 15,596,238 4,667,235 20,263,473 18,302,621 1,960,852 
Contracted Services· Transportation 898,483 1,736,651 2,635,134 1,990,709 644,425 
Other Purchased Services 693,084 205,417 898,501 575,729 322,772 
Indirect Costs 217,413 {17,469) 199,944 102,045 97,899 
Supplies and Materials 1,108,143 771,012 l 879,155 I 534 360 344 795 

Total Support Services 32 276 745 10 325 150 42,601,895 37,151,260 5,450,635 

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 
Instructional Equipment 92,931 60,884 153,815 1~7,678 6,137 

Non Instructional Equipment 26,947 26,947 16,947 10,000 

Total Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 92,931 87,831 180 762 164,625 16 137 

Sub-total Expenditures 45 484,405 16,520 909 62,005,314 53,315,418 8,689,896 

Other Financing Uses 
Contribution to School Based Budgets (General Fund) {1,859,761) {788,138) {2,647,899) {2,601,215) 46 684 

Total Other Financing Uses {1,859,761) {788,138) (2,647,899) (2,601,215) 46,684 

Total Outflows 47 344 166 17,309 047 64,653,213 55,916,633 8,736,580 

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (3,185,605) 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ $ $ $ p,l85,605) $ 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SlJI'PLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

EXHIBIT C-3 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For governmental 
funds there arc no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain state aid payments and state aid advance 
loan for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described below. Encumbrance 
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations 
\apse at fiscal year end. 

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Funds are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting 
budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also 
recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the 
presentation ofGAAP basis financial reports. 

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in 
the 8udgetary Comparison Schedule- General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds. 

Sources/Inflows or Resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) revenue from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) 

Dirference- Budget to GAAP 
Grant accounting budgetary basis di!Ters from GAAP in that 

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the 
related revenue is recognized. 

State Aid Advance Loan, reported 
as an "Other Financing Source" for GAAP statements 

State Aid recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized 
!Or GAAP statements (2016117 State Aid) 

State Aid recognized for GAAP purposes, not recognized 
for budgetary statements (20 15/2016 State Aid) 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances­

Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) 

Uses/Outflows or Resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) total expenditures from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) 

Di!Tcrences- Budget to GAAP 

Repayment of State Aid Advance i,oan 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not 
received are reported in the year the order is placed lOr 
budgetary purposes but in the year the supplies are received 
JOr financial reporting purposes 

Encumbrances, June 30, 2017 

Encumbrances, June 30, 2016 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances­

Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
Fund 

144,250,101 $ 

(5,640, 183) 

(6,809,237) 

6 488,288 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

55,916,633 

(325,086) 

138,288,969 ;:;,$~~"'5'"5,~59"1"',5"4-'-7 

147,056,328 $ 53,315,418 

(325,086) 

147,056,328 "$~~,;;5;,2,"'99'::0"',3"'3"'2 
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District's Proportion of the Net Position 
Liability (Asset) 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) 

District's Covered-Employee PayroH 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage 
of its Covered-Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Total Pension 
Liability 

s 

$ 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSIOX LIABILITY 

Public Employees Retirement System 

Last Four Fiscal Years"' 

2017 2016 2015 2014 

0.09030% 0_08409% 0_07579% 0.07987% 

26,747,060 $ 18,877,918 $ 14,190,964 $ 15,264,918 

5,610,655 $ 5,860,755 $ 5,999,031 $ 5,226,881 

476.72% 322.10% 236.55% 292.04% 

40.14% 47.92% 52.08% 48.72% 
4.767190283 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end. 

EXHIBIT L~I 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the District will only present information for those years for 

which information is available. 
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Contractually Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the 
Contractually Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

District's Covered-Employee Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of 

Covered-Employee Payroll 

2017 

$ 802,296 

802.:296 

$ 

s 5,610,655 

14.30% 

EXHIBIT L-2 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 

Public Employees Retirement System 

Last Four Fiscal Years 

2016 2015 2014 -

s 723,002 s 654,809 $ 601,811 

723,002 654,809 601,811 

$ $ $ 

$ 5,860,755 s 5,999,031 $5,226,881 

12.33% 10.91% 11.51% 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the District will only present information forthose 

years for which information is available. 
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District's Proportion of the Net Position 
Liability (Asset) 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) 

State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) Associated with the District 

Total 

District's Covered-Employee Payroll 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage 
of its Covered-Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Total Pension 
Liability 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATIO:S 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund 

Last Four Fiscal Years* 

2017 2016 2015 2014 

0% 0% 0% 0% 

$-0- $-0- $-0- $-0-

s 235,657,472 $ 194,635,749 $ 168,849,820 $ 163,997,053 

$ ?35,657,472 $ 194,635,749 $168,849,820 $163,997,053 

$ 31,243,071 $ 30,463,257 s 32,555,698 $ 32,689,117 

0% 0% 0% 0% 

22.33% 28.74% 33.64% 33.76% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end. 

EXHIBIT L-3 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the District will only present infonnation for those years 

for which information is available. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

EXHIBITL-4 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Change of Benefit Terms: 

Change of Assumptions: 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

None. 

Assumptions used in calculating the net pension liability and statutorily 
required employer contribution are presented in Note 5. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 



EXHIDITD-1 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

GENERAL FUND 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30,2017 

Blended Total 
Operating Resource General 

Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash with Fiscal Agents $ 476,248 $ 476,248 
Receivables 

Intergovernmental 
State 3,558,386 3,558,386 

Due from Other Funds 291,793 $ 130,112 421,905 
Other Assets 40,800 40,800 

Total Assets $ 4,367,227 $ 130,112 $ 4,497,339 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 5,297,109 $ 130,112 $ 5,427,221 
Due to Other Funds 9,382,459 9,382,459 

Total Liabilities 14,679,568 130,112 14,809,680 

Fund Balances 
Committed 

Year End Encumbrances 476,248 476,248 
Assigned 

Year End Encumbrances 374,546 374,546 
Unassigned (11,163,135) (11,163,135) 

Total Fund Balances (1 0,312,341) (10,312,341) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 4,367,227 $ 130,112 $ 4,497,339 
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District-Wide 

Resources 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
Expenditures 

Resource 
Amount 

(Final Budget) 

District-wide Allocated as a 
Blended % of % of 

Total Resources Total Resources 

EXHIBIT D-2 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets $ 28,509,824 $ 27,982,092 $ 527,732 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30,2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 
Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

591 

28,510,415 

2,647,799 

2,647,799 

2,647,799 

$ 31,158,214 

81 

591 

91.49% 27,982,683 527,732 

2,601,215 46,584 

8.51% 2,601,215 46,584 

8,51% 2,601,215 46,584 

100.00% $ 30,583,898 ,;$~~5;;7::,4,~3;:,16:::, 



School: Lakewood High School 

Resources 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE -ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

District-wide 

Total 
Expenditures 
Allocated as a Resource 

Amount 
(Final Budget) 

Blended % of % of 
Total Resources Total Resources 

EXHIBIT D-2a 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets $ 6,531,908 $ 6,362,564 $ 169,344 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 
Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

475 

6,532,383 

364,503 

364,503 

364,503 

$ 6,896,886 

82 

475 

94.71% 6,363,039 169,344 

352,896 11,607 

5.29% 352,896 11,607 

5.29% 352,896 11,607 

I 00,00% ,;$~=6;;;, 7;,;1;;;5;;, 9;;;3 5;, ,;$~~18;;;0;;;, 9;;;5 ;,I 



School: Lakewood Middle School 

Resources 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Resource District-wide 

Amount Blended% of 
(Final Budget) Total Resources 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets $ 5,394,549 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30,2016 116 

Combined General Fund Contribution 5,394,665 91.90% 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 475,558 
Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

475,558 8.10% 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 475,558 8.10% 

Totals $ 5,870,223 100.00% 

83 

EXHIBIT D-2b 

Total 

Excpcnditurcs 

Allocated as a Total 

%of Surplus/ 

Total Resources Carryover 

$ 5,230,227 $ 164,322 

116 

5,230,343 164,322 

461,072 14,486 

461,072 14,486 

461,072 14,486 

$ 5,691,415 $ 178,808 



School: Ella G. Clarke School 

Resources 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE -ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Total 
Exependitures 

Resource 
Amount 

(Final Budget) 

District-wide Allocated as a 
Blended % of % of 

Total Resources Total Resources 

EXHIBIT D-2c 

Total 

Surplus/ 
Carryover 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets $ 2,580,608 $ 2,557,809 $ 22,799 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 

Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

2,580,608 

318,904 

318,904 

318,904 

$ 2,899,512 

84 

89.00% 2,557,809 22,799 

316,087 2,817 

ll.OO% 316,087 2,817 

ll.OO% 316,087 2,817 

100.00% $ 2,873,896 $ 25,616 



School: Clifton Avenue School 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND IS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Resource 
Amount 

District-wide 
Blended% of 

Total 
Exependitures 
Allocated as a 

%of 
Resources (Final Budget) Total Resources Total Resources 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30,2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 

Title I, Part A- June 30, 2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

$ 3,264,258 

3,264,258 

406,452 

406,452 

406,452 

$ 3,670,710 

85 

$ 3,228,136 

88.93% 3,228,136 

401,954 

11.07% 401,954 

11.07% 401,954 

100.00% $ 3,630,090 

EXHIBIT D-2d 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

36,122 

36,122 

4,498 

4,498 

4,498 

40,620 



School: Spruce Street School 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND IS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
Exependitures 

Resource District-wide Allocated as a 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30,2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 
Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

Amount Blended % of % of 
(Final Budget) Total Resources Total Resources 

$ 3,196,444 $ 3,138,624 

3,196,444 92A6% 3,138,624 

260,518 255,806 

260,518 7.54% 255,806 

260,518 7.54% 255,806 

$ 3,456,962 100.00% $ 3,394,430 

86 

EXHIBIT D-2e 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

57,820 

57,820 

4,712 

4,712 

4,712 

62,532 



School: Oak Street School 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

District-wide 

Total 
Exependitures 
Allocated as a Resource 

Amount 
(Final Budget) 

Blended % of % of 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 
Title I, Part A- June 30, 2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Totals 

$ 4,867,903 

4,867,903 

523,191 

523,191 

523,191 

$ 5,391,094 

87 

Total Resources Total Resources 

$ 4,827,085 

90.30% 4,827,085 

518,804 

9.70% 518,804 

9.70% 518,804 

100.00% $ 5,345,889 

EXHIBIT D-21' 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

40,818 

40,818 

4,387 

4,387 

4,387 

45,205 



School: Piner Elementary School 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ALLOCATED 
BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
Exependitures 

Resource 
Amount 

(Final Budget) 

District-wide Allocated as a 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution to School Based Budgets 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2016 

Combined General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources 
Title I, Part A of NCLB: Improving Basic Programs 

Title I, Part A- June 30,2016 Unearned Revenue 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

$ 2,674,154 

2,674,154 

298,673 

298,673 

298,673 

Blended % of •%, of 

Total Resources Total Resources 

$ 2,637,647 

89.95% 2,637,647 

294,596 

10.05% 294,596 

10.05% 294,596 

EXHIBIT D-2g 

$ 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

36,507 

36,507 

4,077 

4,077 

4,077 

Totals $ 2,972,827 100.00% ~$~,;2;;;,9;;,;3;;;2~,2;;;43~ ~$~=4;;;,0;;;;,5~84;, 
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Exhibit D-3 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE Jo'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

District-wide Original Budget Finul Variance 

Budget Adju$111\cnt~ Budget Actual Hnal to Actunl 

REGULAR PROGRAMS· INSTRUCTION 
Regular l'rognms -Instruction 

Kim.lcrgartcn- Salaries ofTcachcrs 677,952 233,603 911,555 910,306 

Gratlcs 1-5- Salaries ofTcachcrs 7,348,676 (R86,875) 6,461,801 6,450,832 10,969 

Grades 6-8 -Salaries ofTeachers 2,887,164 178,660 3,065,824 2,961,364 104,460 

Grades 9-12- Salaries ofTcachcrs 4,379,962 (346,832) 4,033,130 3,980,103 53,027 

Regular Pragrams- Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries for Instruction 540,190 (27,775) 512,415 503,9 I 3 8,502 

Purchased Technical Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 53,223 53,223 45,573 7,650 

General Supplies 473,369 392,944 866,313 830,487 35,826 

Textbooks 111,201 (4,060) 107,141 65,697 41,444 

Other Object~ 17,459 (5,470) 11,989 (1,71!3) 13,772 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 16,435,973 (41 1,582) 16,024,391 15,747,492 276,899 

SPECIAL EDUCA TJON -INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries ofTcachers 913,602 !78,939 1,092,541 1,092,021 520 
Other Salaries for Instruction 403,407 115,387 518,794 518,794 

Genera\ Supplies 11,943 3,863 15,806 13,500 2,306 

Total Learning and/or Language Di5abilitie5 I ,328,952 298,189 1,627,141 1,624,315 2,826 

Auditory Impairments: 

Salaries ofTeachers 54,046 (38,600) 15,446 2,574 12,872 

Total Audl!ory lmpairment5 54,046 (38,600) 15,446 2,574 12,872 

Mul!iple Disabilities: 

Salaries ofTcachcrs 601,432 80,701 682,133 664,714 

Other Salaries for Instruction 110,470 43,827 ! 54,297 153,452 

Gcneml Supplies 6,357 2,409 8,766 6,090 2,676 

Total Multiple Disabilities 718,259 126,937 845,196 824,256 2,676 

l{csonrce Room/l{esource Center: 

Salaries ufTcachcrs 2,836,980 (667,932) 2,169,048 2,163,545 5,503 

General Supplies 12,768 (500) 12,268 7,745 4,523 

Totull{csourtc Ruom/ltesource Center 2,1!49,748 {668,432) 2,181,316 2,171,290 10,026 

Autism: 
Sah1ries ofTead1ers 206,954 8,309 215,263 2\0,26R 

Other Salaries for Instruction 36,703 26,478 63,!81 59,680 3,501 

General Supplies 5,200 {2,116) 3,084 3,073 II 
Total Autism 248,857 32,671 28!,528 273,021 3,512 

Preschool Disabilities -l'ull·Timc: 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Totall'rcschool Oisublllties- Full-Time 

TOTAL SI'ECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 5,l99,R62 F49,235l 4,950,627 4,895,456 55,171 

Basic Skills/Remedial-Instruction: 

Salaries ofTcachers 858,969 858,969 855,758 3,211 

Tntul Bnsic Skil!s/Remedlnl-lnstructlon 858,969 858,969 855,758 3,211 

Bilingual Edncation-Instrnction: 

Salaries ofTenchers 3,261,997 (253,579) 3,008,418 2,975,191 33,227 

Other Salaries for Instruction lR5,233 12,769 198,002 173,818 24,184 

Total Bilingual Education -Instruction 3,447,230 (240,810) 3,206,420 3,149,009 57,411 

School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvb.- lust.: 

Sa\mics 152,385 (24,537) l27,84R 95,900 31,948 

Supplies and Materials 26,000 25 26,025 15,976 10,049 
Total Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvb. -lust. 178,385 (24,512) 153,873 111,876 41,997 

Berore/Ailer School Programs -Instruction 

Salaries ofTcachcrs 139,163 139,163 135,780 3,383 
Purcha~cd Professional and Technical Services 48,000 l32,000 180,000 180,000 

Total Before! Aller School Programs -Instruction 48,000 271,163 319,163 315,780 3,383 
BerorcfAilCI' Srhool l'rograms- Support 
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Distriet-wide 

Salaric~ 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND tS 

SCHEDULE 01<" BLENDED EXI'ENDITUitES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED .JUNI<; 30,2017 

Original Budget Final 

Bud![cl Adjushnents Bud gel 

8,830 8,830 

Total Before/After School Programs- Support 8,830 8,830 

Total Before/After Schooll'rograms 48,000 279,993 327,993 

90 

Exhibit D-3 

Variance 

Actual Fiual to Actual 

8,830 

8,830 

324,610 3,383 



~:xhlblt ll-3 

LAKl•:WOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

District-wide Original Budget llinal Variance 

Bud11ct Adju~tmcnt~ Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Summer School- Instruct! on 

Salaries ofTcaehcrs 76,020 76,020 76,020 

General Supplies !,139 1,139 1,139 

Tntul Summer School- Instruction 77,159 77,159 77,159 

Summer School- Support 

Salaries 15,540 15,540 15,540 

Purchased Services (400-500 series) 13,620 13,620 13,620 

Total Summer School- SulJPort 29,160 29,160 29,160 

Total Summer School 106,319 106,319 106,319 

Alternative EducnUou Program -Instruction 

Salaries ofTeachers 16,290 16,290 16,290 

Other Salaries for Instruction 7,097 7,097 7,097 

Totnl Alternatln Education Program -Instruction 23,387 23,387 23,387 

Alternative Education l'rogram- Support 

Salaries 28,260 28,260 28,260 

Total Alternative Education Program - Sup]Jort 28,260 28,260 28,260 

Total Alternative Education Program 51,647 51,647 51,647 

Total instruction 25,309,450 370,789 25,680,239 25,242,167 438,072 

Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work: 

Salaries 159,171 (45,516) I 13,655 112,555 

Supplies and Materials 500 500 500 

Total Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work 159,671 (45,516) 114,155 112,555 1,600 

Undistributed Expenditures· Health Services: 

Salaries 394,726 (2,846) 391,880 391,880 

Supplies and Materials 18,750 (536) 18,214 14,974 3,240 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Hcnlth Services 413,476 p,382) 410,094 406,854 3,240 

Undlst. Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 969,394 (152,863) 816,531 811,407 

Salaries ofSecretaria! and Clerical Assistants 124,861 3,565 128,426 128,426 

Other Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services 23,642 450 24,092 22,129 

Supplies and Materials 7,500 (1,240) 6,260 5,182 1,078 

Other Objects 3,000 3,000 2,722 278 

Totnl Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 1,128,397 (150,088) 978,309 969,866 1,356 

Undist. ExtJend.- Improvement of lust. Scrv. 
Sal of Facilitator:;, Math & Literacy Coa~hcs 301,420 16,867 318,287 318,287 

Total Umlist. Expend. -Improvement oflnst. Serv. 301,420 16,867 318,287 318,287 

Undi.1t.lCxpcnd. -Edu. Media Scrv./Sch. Library 

Salaries 443,319 (83,473) 359,846 324,410 35,436 

Supplies and Materials 50,484 (3,644) 46,840 42,156 4,684 
Totnl Undist. Exp~nd.- Edn. M~dln Ser~./Sch. Library 493,l!03 (87,117) 406,6l!6 366,566 40,120 

Undist. Expend. -Instructional Staff Training Serv. 

Purchased !'wfcssional ·Educational Service 28,500 94,450 122,950 84,703 38,247 

Total Undist. Expend. -Instructional Staff Training Serv. 28,500 94,450 122,950 84,703 38,247 

Undist. Expend.- Snllport Scrv.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/l'rogram Directors 1,974,333 207,100 2,181,433 2,179,898 

Salarie~ ofSecretaria! and Clerical A~sistants 770,390 15,405 785,795 772,148 !3,647 
Other Purclm~cd Services (400-500 series) 600 400 1,000 1,000 
Supplies 11nd Materials 66,291 22 66,3!3 45,478 20,835 

Total Undist. Expend.- Snpport Serv.- School Admin. 2,81!,614 222,927 3,034,541 2,997,524 35,482 

Undist. Expend.- Student Transportation Serv. 

Contr Scrv (Oth. th11n Bet Home & Sch)-Vend 4,000 4,000 3,855 145 
Total Undlst. Expend.- Student Transportation Ser~. 4,000 4,000 3,855 145 

TOTAL UNDISTIUBUTED EXPENDITURES 5,336,881 52,141 5,31!9,022 5,260,210 128,812 
TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 30,646,331 422,930 31,069,261 30,502,377 566,884 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURn: FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

District-wide 

CAI'ITAL OUTLAY 

Equipment 

lkgulllr l'rogram -lp~lrudi(m: 

Grades 1-5 

Grades 6-8 

Grmlcs9-!2 

Total Equipment 

TOTAL CAI'ITAL OUTLAY 

District-wide School Based Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 

Operating Transfer Out: 

Transfer to Food Servlc~ Fund- Board CnPiributioP 

Capital Leases (non-budgeted) 

Total Other l<'inancing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(U11dcr) l~xpcnditures lind Other Flnanci11g (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Bollance, .June 30 

Original 

Budget 

27,000 

27,000 

27,000 

30,673,331 

30,673,331 

30,673,331 

Budget 

Adjustments 

55,753 

6,200 

61,953 

61,953 

484,883 

484,883 

484,883 

92 

Final 

Budget 

55,753 

27,000 

6,200 

88,953 

88,953 

31,158,114 

31,158,214 

31,158,114 

Actual 

55,753 
19,574 

6,194 

81,521 

81,511 

30,583,898 

30,583,898 

30,583,898 

Variance 

Final to Actual 

7,426 

7,432 

7,432 

574,316 

574,316 

574,316 

Exhibit D-3 



Exhibit D-3a 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEI>ULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Lakewood High School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actunl Final to Aetna! 

Rcgulnr Programs- Instruction: 

Grades 9-12- Salaries of Teachers $ 4,379,962 $ (346,832) $ 4,033,130 $ 3,980,103 $ 53,027 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 31,476 31,476 31,476 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 14,498 14,498 13,823 675 

General Supplies 102,627 98,373 201,000 199,198 1,802 

Textbooks 18,665 18,665 17,722 943 

Other Objects 4,403 (4,000) 403 125 278 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 4,537,133 (237,961) 4,299,172 4,242,447 56,725 

SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 98,587 98,587 98,068 519 

Other Salaries for Instruction 40,762 19,847 60,609 60,609 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 139,349 19,847 159,196 158,677 519 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 112,757 5,425 118,182 112,757 5,425 

Other Salaries for Instruction 33,693 33,693 33,693 

General Supplies 2,600 2,600 568 2,032 

Total Multiple Disabilities 115,357 39,118 154,475 147,018 7,457 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 379,041 (64,645) 314,396 314,396 

General Supplies 2,582 2,582 1,958 624 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 381,623 (64,645) 316,978 316,354 624 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 636,329 (5,680) 630,649 622,049 8,600 

Bilingual Education- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 247,374 247,374 247,374 

Other Salaries for Instruction 22,245 18,075 40,320 22,245 18,075 

Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 269,619 18,075 287,694 269,619 18,075 

School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. - Inst. 

Salaries 125,273 (33,748) 91,525 59,953 31,572 

Supplies and Materials 22,000 25 22,025 15,769 6,256 
Total Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts_- Inst. 147,273 (33,723) 113,550 75,722 37,828 

Total Instruction and At-Risk Programs 5,590,354 (259,289) 5,331,065 5,209,837 121,228 
Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work 

Salaries 34,915 1,425 36,340 35,240 1,100 

Supplies and Materials 335 335 335 

Total Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work 35,250 1,425 36,675 35,240 1,435 
Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 62,221 62,221 62,221 
Supplies and Materials 2,315 2,315 1,961 354 
Total Undistributed Expenditures~ Health Services 64,536 64,536 64,182 354 
Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 454,971 (128,799) 326,172 326,172 
Salaries of SccrcLarial and Clerical Assistants 94,645 2,545 97,190 97,190 
Other Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services 23,642 450 24,092 22,129 1,963 
Supplies and Materials 7,500 (3,240) 4,260 3,232 1,028 
Other Objects 3,000 3,000 2,722 278 
Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 583,758 (129,044) 454,714 451,445 3,269 
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Exhibit D~3a 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Lakewood High School Originnl Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Undist. Expend,~ Improvement oflnst. Serv. 

Salaries of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 187,003 8,081 195,084 195,084 

Total Undist. Expend.~ Improvement of lust. Serv. 187,003 8,081 195,084 195,084 

Undist. Expend.~ Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 

Salaries 167,514 (83,313) 84,201 48,961 35,240 

Supplies and Materials 19,499 {5,994) 13,505 12,345 1,160 

Total Undist. Expend.· Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 187,013 {89,307) 97,706 61,306 36,400 

Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors $ 196,931 $ 305,671 $ 502,602 $ 502,602 

Salaries ofScerctarial and Clerical Assistants 182,417 {86) 182,331 178,542 $ 3,789 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Supplies and Materials 21,973 {1,000) 20,973 7,648 13,325 

Total Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin, 401,321 305,585 706,906 688,792 18,114 

Undist. Expend.- Student Transportation Serv. 

Contr Scrv (Otlt. than Bet Home & Sch)-Vcnd 4,000 4,000 3,855 145 

Total Undist. Expend.- Student Transportation Serv. 4,000 4,000 3,855 145 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,458,881 100,740 1,559,621 1,499,904 59,717 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 7,049,235 {158,549) 6,890,686 6,709,741 180,945 

Capital Outlay 

Equipment 

Regular Programs- Instruction 

Grades 9-12 6,200 6,200 6,194 6 

Total Equipment 6,200 6,200 6,194 6 

Total Capital Outlay 6,200 6,200 6,194 6 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 7,049,235 {152,349) 6,896,886 6,715,935 180,951 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 7,049,235 {152,349) 6,896,886 6,715,935 180,951 

Total Other Financing Sources 7,049,235 {152,349) 6,896,886 6,715,935 180,951 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources. Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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Exhibit D-3b 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Lakewood Middle School Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Regular Programs- Instruction: 

Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers $ 2,839,723 $ 226,101 $ 3,065,824 $ 2,961,364 $ 104,460 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 21,673 1,000 22,673 22,673 

Purchased Technical Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 8,188 8,188 5,492 2,696 

General Supplies 128,770 (49,676) 79,094 62,270 16,824 

Textbooks 30,000 30,000 17,437 12,563 

Other Objects 3,650 3,650 3,650 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 3,023,816 186,613 3,210,429 3,070,236 140,193 

SPECIAl, EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries ofTcaehers 259,900 47,137 307,037 307,036 

Other Salaries for Instruction 131,424 25,708 157,132 157,132 

General Supplies 2,000 (I ,637) 363 363 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 393,324 71,208 464,532 464,168 364 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries ofTcachers 163,713 15,431 179,144 167,150 11,994 

Other Salaries for Instruction 50,235 7,859 58,094 58,094 

General Supplies 1,400 2,000 3,400 2,995 405 

Total Multiple Disabilities 215,348 25,290 240,638 228,239 12,399 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 529,169 (61,336) 467,833 467,833 

Genera! Supplies 2,500 2,500 2,500 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 531,669 (61,336) 470,333 467,833 2,500 

Autism: 
Salaries of Teachers 19,212 19,212 19,212 

Total Autism 19,212 19 212 19,212 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 1,140,341 54,374 1,194,715 1,179,452 15,263 

Basic Skills - Instruction 

Salaries ofTcachcrs 57,676 57,676 56,636 1,040 

Total Basic Skills- Instruction 57,676 57,676 56,636 1,040 

Bilingual Education- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 282,410 2,339 284,749 284,748 
Other Salaries for Instruction 18,478 14,972 33,450 32,881 5"69 

Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 300,888 17,311 318,199 317,629 570 

Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. - lust. 

Salaries 8,277 4,671 12,948 12,948 
Supplies and Materials 1,400 1,400 1,400 
Total Schooi-Spon, Cocurriculnr Actvts, - Inst. 9,677 4,671 14,348 12,948 1,400 
Alternative Education Program- Instruction 

Salaries ofTcachcrs 16,290 16,290 16,290 

Other Salaries for Instruction 7,097 7,097 7,097 

Total Alternative Education Program- Instruction 23,387 23,387 23,387 
Alternative Education Program- Support 

Salaries 28,260 28,260 28,260 
Total Alternative Educntion Program- Support 28,260 28,260 28,260 
Total Alternative Education Program 51,647 51,647 51,647 
Total Instruction and At-Risk Programs 4,474,722 372,292 4,847,014 4,688,548 158,466 
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Exhibit D-3b 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Lakewood Middle School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work 

Salaries 124,256 (46,941) 77,315 77,315 

Supplies and Materials 165 165 165 

Total Undistributed Expend.- Attend. & Social Work 124,421 (46,941) 77,480 77,315 165 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries $ 51,646 $ 51,646 $ 51,646 

Supplies and Materials 2,515 $ 228 2,743 2,743 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 54,161 228 54,389 54,389 

Undist. Expend. - Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 132,392 68,013 200,405 200,012 $ 393 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 30,216 1,020 31,236 31,236 

Supplies and Materials 2,000 2,000 1,950 50 

Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 162,608 71,033 233,641 233,198 443 

Undist. Expend.- Improvement of Inst. Serv. 

Salaries of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 62,771 8,786 71,557 71,557 

Total Undist. Expend.- Improvement of lust. Serv. 62,771 8,786 71,557 71,557 

Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Scrv./Sch. Ubrary 

Salaries 54,346 54,346 54,346 

Supplies and Materials 10,944 (200) 10,744 7,883 2,861 

Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 65,290 (200) 65,090 62,229 2,861 

Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Serv. 

Purchased Professional -Educational Servic 11,000 (3,300) 7,700 4,903 2,797 

Total Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Services 11,000 (3,300) 7,700 4,903 2,797 

Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 481,702 (118,611) 363,091 363,091 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 75,315 25,826 101,141 99,175 1,966 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 600 (600) 

Supplies and Materials 19,000 3,120 22,120 17,436 4,684 

Total Undist. Expend,- Support Serv.- School Admin, 576,617 (90,265) 486,352 479,702 6,650 

TOTAL UNDISTRJBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,056,868 (60,659) 996,209 983,293 12,916 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 5,531,590 311,633 5,843,223 5,671,841 171,382 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Equipment 

Regular Program- Instruction: 

Grades 6-8 27,000 27,000 19,574 7,426 

Total Equipment 27,000 27,000 19,574 7,426 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 27,000 27,000 19,574 7,426 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 5,558,590 311,633 5,870,223 5,691,415 178,808 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 5,558,590 311,633 5,870,223 5,691,415 178,808 

Total Other Financing Sources 5,558,590 311,633 5,870,223 5,691,415 178,808 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Bulance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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Exhibit D-3c 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

School: IWa G. Clarke School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Regul:~r P1·ograms -Instruction: 

Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers $ 1,198,230 $ (47,231) $ 1,150,999 $ 1,150,999 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 1,497 (1,497) 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 8,046 8,046 7,o78 $ 968 

General Supplies 86,005 (17,617) 68,388 65,752 2,636 

Textbooks 5,189 5,189 5,189 

Other Objects 2,024 2,024 2,024 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 1,292,945 (58,299) 1,234,646 1,223,829 !0,817 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 158,538 158,538 158,538 

Other Salaries for Instruction 55,719 (2,141) 53,578 53,578 

General Supplies 2,000 2,000 1,175 825 

Total Learning and/o1· Language Disabilities 216,257 (2,141) 214,116 213,291 825 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 291,620 (22,814) 268,806 263,303 5,503 

General Supplies 2,500 2,500 1,772 728 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 294,120 (22,814) 271,306 265,075 6,231 

TOTAL SPECIAL EI>UCATION -INSTRUCTION 510,377 (24,955) 485,422 478,366 7,056 

Basic Skills - Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 172,222 172,222 172,222 

Total Basic Skills - Instruction 172,222 172,222 172,222 

Bilingual Education - Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 360,687 49,175 409,862 409,861 

Other Salaries for Instruction 5,800 5,800 2,629 3,171 

Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 360,687 54,975 415,662 412,490 3,172 

Schooi-Spon. Coeurricular Actvts, - lnst. 

Salaries 6,175 2,172 8,347 8,347 

Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 112 888 

Total Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts.- lnst. 7,175 2,172 9,347 8,459 888 

Before/ After School Programs - Instruction 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 

Total Before/After School Programs- Instruction 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 

Total Before/After Schooll'rograms 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 

Total Instruction and At-Risk Programs 2,187,184 166,115 2,353,299 2,331,366 21,933 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 64,771 64,771 64,771 

Supplies and Materials 1,565 1,565 977 588 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 66,336 66,336 65,748 588 

Undist. l!:xpend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 141,386 (89,809) 51,577 51,474 103 

Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 141,386 (89,809) 51,577 51,474 103 

Undist, Expend,- Edu, Media Scrv./Scb. Library 

Salaries 53,746 53,746 53,746 

Supplies and Materials 5,142 1,800 6,942 6,853 89 

Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Seh. Library 58,888 1,800 60,688 60,599 89 
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Exhibit D~3c 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDJW EXPENDITURES~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

School: lWa G. Clarke School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Undist. F.xpend. ~Support Serv. ~School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/ Assistant Principals/Program Directors $ 261,767 $ (12,299) $ 249,468 $ 249,468 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 110,974 1,652 112,626 110,500 $ 2,126 

Supplies and Materials 5,518 5,518 4,741 777 
Total Undist. Expend.~ Support Serv. ~School Admin. 378,259 (10,647) 367,612 364,709 2,903 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 644,869 (98,656} 546,213 542,530 3,683 

TOTAL CURRI':NT EXPENDITURES 2,832,053 67,459 2,899,512 2,873,896 25,616 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 2,832,053 67,459 2,899,512 2,873,896 25,616 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 2,832,053 67,459 2,899,512 2,873,896 25,616 

Total Other Financing Som·ces 2,832,053 67,459 2,899,512 2,873,896 25,616 

Excess (Deficiency) of Othe1· Financing Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Clifton Avenue School Original Budget Final 

Budget Adjustments Budget 

Regular Programs- Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 -Salaries of Teachers $ 1,623,770 $ 117,947 $ 1,741,717 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 11,122 11,122 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 6,461 6,461 

General Supplies 42,927 (1,986) 40,941 

Textbooks 38,690 38,690 

Other Objects 3,145 3,145 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 1,708,532 133,544 1,842,076 

SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 244,269 (67,836) 176,433 

Other Salaries for lnstmction 78,297 1,719 80,016 

General Supplies 2,000 (1,000) 1,000 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 324,566 (67,117) 257,449 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 530,010 (130,388) 399,622 

General Supplies 3,146 3,146 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 533,156 (130,388) 402,768 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 857,722 (197,505) 660,217 

Basic Skills -Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 132,036 132,036 

Total Basic Skills- Instruction 132,036 132,036 

Bilingual Education- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 405,123 6,064 411,187 

Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 405,123 6,064 411,187 

Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. - lnst. 

Salaries 6,962 2,787 9,749 

Supplies and Materials 600 600 

Total School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts.- lnst. 7,562 2,787 10,349 

Before/After School Programs- Instruction 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 16,000 20,000 36,000 

Total Before/After School Programs -Instruction 16,000 20,000 36,000 

Total Before/After School Programs 16,000 20,000 36,000 

Total Instruction and At-Risk Programs 2,994,939 96,926 3,091,865 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 57,636 57,636 

Supplies and Materials 2,215 (64) 2,151 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 59,851 (64) 59,787 

Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 55,146 1,033 56,179 
Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 55,146 1,033 56,179 
Undist. Expend.- Improvement of Inst. Serv. 

Salaries of Facilitators, Math & Literacy Coaches 51,646 51,646 
Total Undist. Expend.- Improvement of Inst. Serv. 51,646 51,646 
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Exhibit D-Jd 
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Actual Final to Actual 
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Exhibit D-3d 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND IS 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Clifton Avenue School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 

Salaries 65,221 (160) 65,061 64,865 196 

Supplies and Materials 7,000 (250) 6,750 6,274 476 

Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 72,221 (410) 71,811 71,139 672 

Undist. Expend.- Instructional Starr Training Serv. 

Purchased Professional ~ Educational Servic 250 250 250 

Total Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Services 250 250 250 

Undist. Expend,- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/ Assistant Principals/Program Directors $ 236,486 $ 4,731 $ 241,217 $ 241,217 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 90,514 4,441 94,955 91,991 $ 2,964 

Supplies and Materials 3,000 3,000 2,433 567 

Total Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 330,000 9,172 339,172 335,641 3,531 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 568,864 9,981 578,845 573,293 5,552 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 3,563,803 106,907 3,670,710 3,630,090 40,620 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 3,563,803 106,907 3,670,710 3,630,090 40,620 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 3,563,803 106,907 3,670,710 3,630,090 40,620 

Total Other Financing Sources 3,563,803 106,907 3,670,710 3,630,090 40,620 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(Under) l<:xpenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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Exhibit D~3e 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: S[!rnce Street School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Regular Programs ~ Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers $ 240,954 $ 237,783 $ 478,737 $ 478,737 

Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers 964,227 (367,779) 596,448 591,413 $ 5,035 

Regular Programs~ Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 286,941 (78,362) 208,579 200,077 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 6,124 6,124 5,493 

General Supplies 36,073 117,894 153,967 149,233 4,734 

Textbooks 719 (369) 350 350 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 1,528,914 (84,709) 1,444,205 1,424,953 19,252 

SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 50,441 50,441 50,441 

Other Salaries for Instruction 16,877 16,877 16,877 

General Supplies 1,943 (1,500) 443 324 119 

Total Learning and/or Language Disnbilities 1,943 65,818 67,761 67,642 119 

Auditory Impairments: 

Salaries of Teachers 54,046 (38,600) 15,446 2,574 12,872 

Total Auditory Impairments 54,046 (38,600) 15,446 2,574 12,872 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 89,453 682 90,135 90,135 

Other Salaries for Instruction 2,700 (1,855) 845 845 

General Supplies 357 409 766 597 169 

Total Multiple Disabilities 92,510 (764) 91,746 90,732 1,014 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 105,882 50,528 156,410 156,410 

General Supplies 500 (500) 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 106,382 50,028 156,410 156,410 

Autism: 
Salaries of Teachers 50,746 50,746 46,943 3,803 
Other Salaries for Instruction 17,325 4,647 21,972 21,718 254 

General Supplies 2,700 (2, 116) 584 574 10 

Total Autism 70,771 2,531 73 302 69,235 4,067 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 325,652 79,013 404,665 386,593 18,072 

Basic S1dlls ~Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 163,409 163,409 161,418 1,991 
Total Basic Skills- Instruction 163,409 163,409 161,418 1,991 
Bilingual Education- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 849,561 (159,432) 690,129 688,640 1,489 
Other Salaries for Instruction 80,940 (19,835) 61,105 61,105 
Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 930,501 (179,267) 751,234 749,745 1,489 
Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts, ~ Inst. 

Salaries 2,384 2,384 2,153 231 
Total School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. ~lust. 2,384 2,384 2,153 231 

Before/After School Programs- Instruction 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 
Total Before/After School Programs~ Instruction 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 
Total Before/After School Programs 16,000 20,000 36,000 36,000 
Total Instruction and At~Risk Programs 2,803,451 (1,554) 2,801,897 2,760,862 41,035 
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Exhibit D-3e 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Spruce Street School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 68,046 68,046 68,046 

Supplies and Materials 2,815 (700) 2,115 2,115 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 70,861 (700) 70,161 70,161 

Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 55,379 (3,600) 51,779 48,667 3,112 

Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 55,379 (3,600) 51,779 48,667 3,112 

Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 

Salaries $ 48,146 $ 48,146 $ 48,146 

Supplies and Materials 2,899 $ 1,000 3,899 3,813 $ 86 

Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Librnry 51,045 1,000 52,045 51,959 86 

Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Serv, 

Purchased Professional - Educational Servic 17,500 32,350 49,850 32,250 17,600 

Total Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Services 17,500 J2,350 49,850 32,250 17,600 

Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 223,225 22,053 245,278 245,278 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 129,122 (4,825) 124,297 123,878 419 

Supplies and Materials 5,000 902 5,902 5,622 280 

Total Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 357,347 18,130 375,477 374,778 699 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 552,132 47,180 599,312 577,815 21,497 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 3,355,583 45,626 3,401,209 3,338,677 62,532 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Equipment 
Regular Program- Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 55,753 55,753 55,753 

Total Equipment 55,753 55,753 55,753 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 55,753 55,753 55,753 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 3,355,583 101,379 3,456,962 3,394,430 62,532 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 3,355,583 101,379 3,456,962 3,394,430 62,532 
Total Other Financing Sources 3,355,583 101,379 3,456,962 3,394,430 62,532 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July I 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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Exhibit D~3f 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Oak Street School Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Regular Programs~ Instruction: 

Grades 1-5 -Salaries of Teachers $ 2,931,957 $ (698,534) $ 2,233,423 $ 2,233,423 

Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers 47,441 (47,441) 

Regular Programs M Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries for Instruction 51,673 7,301 58,974 58,974 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 9,906 9,906 7,646 $ 2,260 

General Supplies 47,072 160,830 207,902 203,672 4,230 

Textbooks 12,938 1,000 13,938 13,382 556 

Other Objects 3,537 (1,470) 2,067 (I ,908) 3,975 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS M INSTRUCTION 3,094,618 (568,408) 2,526,210 2,515,189 11,021 

SPECIAL EDUCATION M INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 152,308 98,814 251,122 251,122 

Other Salaries for Instruction 53,919 49,486 103,405 103,405 

General Supplies 4,000 8,000 12,000 11,168 832 

Tobd Learning and/or Language Disabilities 210,227 156,300 366,527 365,695 832 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 235,509 59,163 294,672 294,672 
Other Salaries for Instruction 57,535 4,130 61,665 61,665 

General Supplies 2,000 2,000 1,930 70 

Total Multiple Disabilities 295,044 63,293 358,337 358,267 70 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 351,066 (18,074) 332,992 332,992 

General Supplies 1,040 1,040 985 55 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 352,106 (18,074) 334,032 333,977 55 

Autism: 
Salaries ofTeaehcrs 156,208 (10,903) 145,305 144,113 1,192 

Other Salaries for Instruction 19,378 21,831 41,209 37,962 3,247 

General Supplies 2,500 2,500 2,499 I 

Total Autism 178,086 10,928 189,014 184,574 4,440 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION M INSTRUCTION 1,035,463 212,447 1,247,910 1,242,513 5,397 

Basic Skills- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 174,418 174,418 174,418 
Total Basic Skills ~ Instruction 174,418 174,418 174,418 
Bilingual Education~ Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 403,478 43,568 447,046 421,960 25,086 
Other Salaries for Instruction 19,835 19,835 19,835 
Total Bilingunl Educntion M Instruction 403,478 63,403 466,881 441,795 25,086 
Schooi~Spon. Cocurricular Actvts.- Inst. 

Salaries 3,314 (419) 2,895 2,750 145 

Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 95 905 
Total Schooi-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. M Inst. 4,314 (419) 3,895 2,845 1,050 
Before/ After School Programs - Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 107,200 107,200 107,200 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 36,000 36,000 36,000 
Total Before/After School Progmms- Instruction 143,200 143,200 143,200 
Before/After School Programs M Support Services 

Salaries 7,230 7,230 7,230 
Total Before/After School Programs~ Support Services 7,230 7,230 7,230 
Total Before/After School Programs 150,430 150,430 150,430 
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Exhibit D-3f 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Oak Street School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 
Summer School- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers $ 76,020 $ 76,020 $ 76,020 

General Supplies 1,139 1,139 1,139 
Total Summer School- Instruction 77,159 77,159 77,159 

Summer School- Support Services 

Salaries 15,540 15,540 15,540 

Purchased Services (400-500 series) 13,620 13,620 13,620 

Total Summer School- Support Services 29,160 29,160 29,160 

Total Summer School 106,319 106,319 106,319 
Total Instruction and At-Risk Programs $ 4,537,873 138,190 4,676,063 4,633,509 $ 42,554 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 58,621 58,621 58,621 

Supplies and Materials 3,825 3,825 2,866 959 

Total Undistribnted Expenditures- Health Services 62,446 62,446 61,487 959 

Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 78,646 1,033 79,679 79,679 

Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 78,646 1,033 79,679 79,679 

Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 

Salaries 54,346 54,346 54,346 

Supplies and Materials 5,000 5,000 4,988 12 

Total Undist. Expend.- Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 59,346 59,346 59,334 12 

Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Serv. 

Purchased Professional - Educational Servic 2,500 2,500 2,500 
Total Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Services 2,500 2,500 2,500 

Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

Salaries ofPrincipals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 350,997 32,762 383,759 382,224 1,535 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 125,575 726 126,301 126,301 

Supplies and Materials 4,000 (3,000) 1,000 855 145 

Total Undist. Expend.- Support Serv. -School Admin. 480,572 30,488 511,060 509,380 1,680 
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 681,010 34,021 715,031 712,380 2,651 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 5,218,883 172,211 5,391,094 5,345,889 45,205 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 5,218,883 172,211 5,391,094 5,345,889 45,205 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 5,218,883 172,211 5,391,094 5,345,889 45,205 

Total Other Financing Sources 5,218,883 172,211 5,391,094 5,345,889 45,205 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July I 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ $ $ 
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Exhibit D-3g 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Piner Elementary School Original Budget Final Variance 

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual 

Regular Programs- Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers $ 436,998 $ {4,180) $ 432,818 $ 431,569 $ 1,249 

Grades 1-5 -Salaries of Teachers 630,492 108,722 739,214 739,214 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction 

Other Salaries fOr Instruction 146,930 32,661 179,591 179,591 

General Supplies 29,895 85,126 115,021 112,264 2,757 

Textbooks 5,000 {4,691) 309 309 

Other Objects 700 700 700 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 1,250,015 217,638 1,467,653 1,462,947 4,706 

SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 50,383 50,3lB 50,383 

Other Salaries for Instruction 43,286 3,891 47,177 47,177 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 43,286 54,274 97,560 97,560 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 650,192 {421,203) 228,989 228,989 

General Supplies 500 500 500 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 650,692 {421,203) 229,489 228,989 500 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 693,978 (366,929) 327,049 326,549 500 

Basic Skills- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 159,208 159,208 159,028 180 

Total Basic Sldlls- Instruction 159,208 159,208 159,028 180 

Bilingual Education - Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 713,364 {195,293) 518,071 511,421 6,650 

Other Salaries fOr Instruction 63,570 {26,078) 37,492 35,123 2,369 
Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 776,934 (221,371) 555,563 546,544 9,019 

Before/After School Programs- Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 31,963 31,963 28,580 3,383 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 36,000 36,000 36,000 

Total Before/After School Programs- Instruction 67,963 67,963 64,580 3,383 
Before/ Arter School Programs - Support Services 

Salaries 1,600 1,600 1,600 

Total Before/After School Programs- Support Services 1,600 1,600 1,600 
Total Before/After School Programs 69,563 69,563 66,180 3,383 
Total Instruction and At~Risk Programs 2,720,927 (141,891) 2,579,036 2,561,248 17,788 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Salaries 31,785 {2,846) 28,939 28,939 

Supplies and Materials 3,500 3,500 3,260 240 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 35,285 {2,846) 32,439 32,199 240 
Undist Expend.- Guidance Services 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 51,474 (734) 50,740 49,224 1,516 
Total Undist. Expend.- Guidance Services 51,474 (734) 50,740 49,224 1,516 
Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Serv. 

Purchased Professional- Educational Servic 62,650 62,650 45,050 17,600 
Total Undist. Expend.- Instructional Staff Training Services 62,650 62,650 45,050 17,600 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

School: Piner Elementary School 

Undist. Expend.- Support Se1·v.- School Admin. 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Supplies and Materials 

Total Undist. Expend.- Support Serv.- School Admin. 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL SCHOOL BASED EXPENDITURES 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balance, July I 

Fund Bulancc, June 30 

Original 

Budget 

223,225 

56,473 

7,800 

287,498 

374,257 

3,095,184 

3,095,184 

$ 3,095,184 

3,095,184 

$ 

106 

Budget Final 

Adjustments Budget 

(27,207) 196,018 

(12,329) 44,144 

7,800 

(39,536) 247,962 

19,534 393,791 

(122,357) 2,972,827 

(122,357) 2,972,827 

$ (122,357) $ 2,972,827 

(122,357) 2,972,827 

$ $ 

Exhibit D-3g 

Variance 

Actual Final to Actual 

196,018 

41,761 2,383 

6,743 1,057 

244,522 3,440 

370,995 22,796 

2,932,243 40,584 

2,932,243 40,584 

$ 2,932,243 $ 40,584 

2,932,243 40,584 

$ $ 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 



EXHIBITE-1 
Paee l 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NJEA Sub-Total 
Tillem IDEAPARTB CarlO. Sustainable Carried 

Title I, Part A Tille I- SIA Tille II-A Titlem Immigrant Basic Preschool Perkins Grant Jersey -REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Looil ' 8,000 ' 8,000 
Federal ' 16,357,154 ' 11 658 ' 919,037 ' 353,882 ' 13,411 ' 6,764,297 ' 284,482 ' 330,627 25,034,548 

Total Revenues 16,357,154 11,658 919,037 353,882 13,411 6,764,297 284,482 330,627 8,000 25,042.548 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Salaries ofTeachers 1,018,118 1,018,118 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7,703,858 20,500 2,187 3,500 10,926 7,740,971 
Other Purchased Services 11,658 483 1,989,967 172.024 2,174,132 
General Supplies 727,444 112,013 9,911 148,062 997,430 

Other Objects 45 1,560 1,605 

Total Instruction 9,449,420 11,658 20,545 114,683 13411 1,989,967 172 024 160 548 11,932,256 

Support Services 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 960,783 3,880 120,006 50,581 1,135,250 

Other Salaries 

Personal Services Employee-Benefits 1,167,562 49,742 1,217,304 

Purchased Professional Technical Services 1,859,573 855,673 18,070 4,774,330 112,458 17,550 7,637,654 

Purchased Prof./Ed. Serv. 

Other Purchased Services 78,111 19,732 19,892 13,934 13t669 

Indirect Costs 97,679 4,366 102,045 

Supplies and Materials 62.765 14,841 31,489 3,435 8,000 120,530 

Total Support Services 4,226,473 898,492 239,199 4,774,330 112,458 85,500 8 000 10,344,452 

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 
Instructional Equipment 80,046 67,632 147,678 
Non-Instructional Equipment 16,947 16,947 

Total Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 80,046 84,579 164,625 

Sub-total E>:penditures 13,755,939 11,658 919,037 353,882 13,411 6,764,297 284,482 330,627 8,000 22,441,333 

Other Financing Uses 

Contribution to School Based Budgets (General Fund) ............(b601,215) (2,601,215) 

Total Other Financing Uses {2.601,215) (2,601,~ 

Total Outflows ' 16,357,154 ' 11,658 ' 919,037 ' 353,882 ' 13,411 ' 6,764,297 ' 284,482 ' 330,627 ' 8,000 $ 25,042.548 

(Continued) 
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REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

Local Sources ' State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITlJRES 
Instruction 

Salaries ofTeachers 
Other Salaries 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Other Purchased Services 
General Supplies 
Textbooks 
Other Objects 

Total Instruction 

Support Services 

Salaries of Supervisors ofinstruction 

Salaries ofProgrnm Directors 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Other Salaries 

Personal Services Employee-Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Purchased Prof./Ed_ Serv 
Contracted Services- Transportation 
Other Purchased Services 
Indirect Costs 
Supplies and Materials 

Total Support Services 

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 

Instructional Equipment 

Non-Instructional Equipment 

Total Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 

Sub-total Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 

Contribution to School Based Budgets (General Fund) 

Total Other Financing Uses 

Total Outflows $ 

Sub-Total 
Brought 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR TilE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Preschool Municipal 
Education P~K Transportation 

Forward Aid EII,!an~ion Grant Illil>m>!o 

8,000 $ 1,662,624 

' 1,964,679 $ 1,448,453 
25,034,548 $ 2,417,714 

25,042,548 1,964,679 2,417,714 1,662,624 1,448,453 

1,018,118 702,816 688,326 
255,222 202,429 

7,740,971 
2,174,132 12,323 9,271 

997,430 65,400 38,417 
1,448,453 

1,605 

11,932,256 1,035,761 938,443 1,448,453 

28,624 34,019 

41,712 

1,135,250 32,736 18,502 

16,550 30,643 

65,033 53,156 

1,217,304 656,327 971,519 
7,637,654 5,000 5,000 

400 
1,662,624 

131,669 119,173 324,695 
102,045 
120,530 5,075 25 

10,344,452 928,918 1,479,271 1,662,624 

147,678 

16,947 

164,625 

22,441,333 1,964,679 2,417,714 1,662,624 1,448,453 

p,601,215~ 

{2,60lt215) 

25,042,548 ' 1,964,679 $ 2,417,714 $ 1,662,624 $ 1,448,453 

108 

New Jers~ NonJ!ublic Aid 

~ Nursing Security 

' 598,453 ' 2,143,490 $ 1,224,372 

598,453 2,143,490 1,224,372 

578,846 

578,846 

10,800 40,489 

7,382 28,022 
495 1,948,292 

149 

930 126,538 1,224,372 

19,607 2,143,490 1,224,372 

598,453 2,143,490 1,224,372 

$ 598,453 ' 2,143,490 $ 1,224,372 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT E-1 

Pagel 

Sub-Total 
Carried 
Forward 

1,670,624 
7,379,447 

27,452,262 

36,502,333 

2,409,260 
457,651 

7,740,971 
2,195,726 
1,680,093 
1,448,453 

1,605 

15,933,759 

62,643 

41,712 

1,186,488 

47,193 

169,478 

2,880,554 
9,596,441 

400 
1,662,624 

575,686 
102,045 

1,477,470 

17,802,734 

147,678 

16,947 

164,625 

33,901,118 

(2,601,215) 

(2,601,215) 

36,502,333 
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Sub-Tota1 Lo<>l 
Broneht Municipal 
Forward Grant 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

L""" $ 1,670,624 $ 

State 7,379,447 

'"'""' 27,452,262 

Total Revenues ' 36,502,333 $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Salaries ofTeachers 2,409,260 
Other Salaries 457,651 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7,740,971 
Other Purchased Services 2,195,726 
Tuition 
General Supplies 1,680,093 

Textbooks 1,448,453 

Other Objects 1,605 

Total Instruction 15,933,759 

Support Services 
Salaries of Supervisors oflnstruction 62,643 
Salaries of Program Directors 41,712 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 1,186,488 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 47,193 
Other Salaries 169,478 
Personal Services Employee-Benefits 2,880,554 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 9,596,441 
Purchased Prof./Ed Serv. 400 
Contracted Services- Transportation 1,662,624 
Other Purchased Services 575,686 
Indirect Costs 102,045 
Supplies and Materials 1,477,470 

Total Support Services 17,802,734 

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 
Instructional Equipment 147,678 

Non-Instructional Equipment 16,947 

Total Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 164,625 

Sub-total Expenditures 33,901,118 $ 

Other Financing Uses 
Contribution to School Based Budgets (General Fund) (2,601,215) 

Total Other Financing Uses (2,601,215) 

Total Outflows $ 36.502,333 $ 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Chaeter 192- Noneublic Auxilia!J: Services 
Comp~nsatory Home 

Education = Il:li!D§~!!:W!li!.ID .,_.... 

$ 12,963,498 $ 213,800 $ 385,601 $ 8,258 

$ 12,963,498 ' 213,800 $ 385,601 $ 8,258 

8,258 
57,516 

57,516 8,258 

434,372 
206,068 

20,847 
12,287,571 209,007 

328,085 
43 

14,597 4,793 

12,963,498 213,800 328,085 

$ 12,963,498 $ 213,800 $ 385,601 ' 8,258 

' 12,963,498 ' 213,800 $ 385,601 $ 8,258 

109 

$ 

' 

$ 

$ 

Chaeter 193- NonJ!nblic HandicaJ!J!ed Services 
Snpplementa1 Examination and Corredive .,_.... Cla~~m!:llfu!n -

879,293 $ 2,854,520 $ 2,109,330 

879,293 $ 2,854,520 $ 2,109,330 

879,293 2,854,520 2,071,830 

37,500 

879,293 2,854,520 2,109,330 

879,293 $ 2,854,520 $ 2,109,330 

-------
879,293 ' 2,854,520 ' 2,109,330 

$ 

' 

$ 

' 

EXIllBIT E-1 

Paee3 

Grand 

:r.t.! 

1,670,624 
26,793,747 
27,452,262 

55,916,633 

2,409,260 
457,651 

7,749,229 
2,253,242 

1,680,093 

1,448,453 

1,605 

15,999,533 

62,643 
41,712 

1,186,488 
47,193 

603,850 
3,086,622 
9,617,288 

18,302,621 
1,990,709 

575,729 
102,045 

1,534,360 

37,151,260 

147,678 

16,947 

164,625 

53,315,418 

{2,601,215) 

{2,601,215) 

55,916,633 



EXHIBIT E-2 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGETARY BASIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Salaries of Teachers $ 569,092 $ 133,724 $ 702,816 $ 702,816 
Other Salaries for Instruction 226,138 35,106 261,244 255,222 $ 6,022 
Other Purchased Services 22,500 (1,000) 21,500 12,323 9,177 
General Supplies 22 000 163,726 185,726 65,400 120,326 

Total Instruction 839,730 331 556 1,171,286 1,035,761 135,525 

Support Services 
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 39,224 (10,600) 28,624 28,624 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 31,936 800 32,736 32,736 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assts. 28,104 (408) 27,696 16,550 11,146 
Other Salaries 43,610 (7,445) 36,165 36,165 
Salaries of Master Teachers 28,911 51,394 80,305 28,868 51,437 
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 677,821 29,233 707,054 656,327 50,727 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 44,000 44,000 44,000 
Rentals 10,000 10,000 5,400 4,600 
Contracted Services- Transportation (Bet. Home & School) 209,663 (94,675) 114,988 75,173 39,815 
Supplies and Materials 11,000 (1,000) 10,000 5,075 4,925 

Total Support Services I 124,269 (32,701) 1,091,568 928,918 162,650 

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 

Instructional Equipment 17,986 (17,986) 

Non-Instructional Equipment 10,000 10,000 10000 

Total Facilities and Acquisition Construction Svcs. 17,986 (7,986) 10,000 10,000 

Total Expenditures $ 1,981,985 $ 290,869 $ 2,272,854 $ 1,964,679 $ 308,175 

Total Revised 2016-17 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $ 1,981,985 

Actual ECPAIPEA Carryover {June 30, 2016) 393,134 

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2016-17 Budget 2,375,119 

Less: 2016-17 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including Prior Year Carryover) (2!272!854) 

Available and Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2017 102,265 

Add: June 30, 2017 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 308,175 

2016-17 Carryover- Preschool Education Aid Programs $ 410,440 

2016-17 Preschool Education Aid Carryover Budgeted in 2017-18 for Preschool Programs $ 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Ex}!enditures to Date 

Issue/Project Title Appropriation Prior Years 

2013 Lease Purchase 
High School HV AC Replacement $ 505,462 $ 505,462 
High School Hot Water Heater Replacement 32,940 32,940 
Middle School Roof Project 2,233,705 2,233,705 

Board Office Project 1,974,125 1,974,125 

Middle School Window Replacement 534,400 534,400 
Middle School Exhaust Replacement 192,116 192,116 

Soft Costs 62,441 62,441 
Unallocated 209,811 79,496 

Lease~ Purchase Sub-Total 5,745,000 5,614,685 

2015 Bond Referendum 
HV AC System Upgrades at Lakewood HS, Oak St. School, 

Spruce Street School, Clifton Avenue School, Lakewood Middle 
School and E.G. Clarke School and roofing replacement and 
related repairs at Oak Street School, Spruce Street School, Clifton 
A venue School and E.G. Clarke School 29,497,241 19,540,674 $ 

Refinance Outstanding Lease Purchase 5,200,000 5,110,883 

Referendum Sub-Total 34,697,241 24,651,557 

$ 40,442,241 $ 30,266,242 $ 

Unexpended Project Authorizations 
Debt Authorized But Not Issued 

Fund Balance 

Ill 

EXHIBITF-1 

Unexpended 
Balance, 

Current Year June 30,2017 

$ 130,315 

130,315 

8,977,423 979,144 

89,117 

8,977,423 1,068,261 

8,977,423 $ 1,198,576 

$ 1 '198,576 
(2,241) 

$ 1,196,335 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

EXHIBIT F-2 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues and Otber Financing Sources 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
Capital Outlay 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Construction Services 
Other 

Transfer to General Fund 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance - End of Year 

Recapitulation of Fund Balance: 

Reserve for Encumbrances 

Available for Capital Projects 

112 

$ 

$ 

$ 

17,474 

17,474 

133,190 
8,826,689 

17,544 
17,474 

8,994,897 

(8,977,423) 

10,173,758 

1,196,335 

1,044,542 

151,793 

$ 1,196,335 



EXHIBIT F-2a 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS 

2014 LEASE PURCHASE- VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Lease Purchase Proceeds 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Construction Services 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Additional Project Information: 
Project Number 
Grant Date 
Lease Purchase Issue Date 
Lease Purchase Authorized 
Lease Purchase Issued 
Original Authorized Cost 
Adjustment 
Revised Authorized Cost 

Percentage Increase Over Original 
Authorized Cost 

Percentage Completion 
Original Target Completion Date 
Revised Target Completion Date 

N/A 
N/A 

6/28/2013 
5,745,000 
5,745,000 
5,745,000 

5,745,000 

98% 
2014115 
2014/15 
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$ 

$ 

Prior Periods 

5,745,000 

5,745,000 

355,295 
5,259,390 

5,614,685 

Current Year 

130,315 "-$~~~,:;__ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

5,745,000 

5,745,000 

355,295 
5,259,390 

5,614,685 

130,315 

Revised 
Authorized 

Cost 

$ 5,745,000 

5,745,000 

355,800 
5,389,200 

5,745,000 



EXHIBIT F-2b 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS­
BUDGETARY BASIS 

2015 REFERENDUM-VARIOUS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Serial Bond Proceeds 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
General Administration 
Costs oflssuance 
Interest on Notes 

Debt Service 
Refunding of Lease Purchase 

Capital Outlay 
Miscellaneous 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Construction Services 

Total Expenditures 

$ 

Prior Periods Current Year 

34,695,000 

34,695,000 

156,481 
21,667 

5,110,883 

12,220 $ 17,544 
1,844,942 133,190 

17,505,364 8,826,689 

24,651,557 8,977,423 

$ 

Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 10,043,443 $ (8,977,423) $ 

Additional Project Information: 
Project Number 
Grant Date 
Bond Issue Date 
Bonds Authorized 
Bonds Issued 
Original Authorized Cost 
Adjustment 
Revised Authorized Cost 

Percentage Increase Over Original 
Authorized Cost 

Percentage Completion 
Original Target Completion Date 
Revised Target Completion Date 

N/A 
N/A 

2/17/2015 
$ 34,697,241 
$ 34,695,000 
$ 34,697,241 
$ 
$ 34,697,241 

97% 
2017/18 
2017/18 
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Totals 

34,695,000 $ 

34,695,000 

156,481 
21,667 

5,110,883 

29,764 
1,978,132 

26,332,053 

33,628,980 

1,066,020 

Revised 
Authorized 

Cost 

34,697,241 

34,697,241 

156,481 
21,667 

5,200,000 

57,099 
1,985,166 

27,276,828 

34,697,241 



ENTERPRISE FUND 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE 

115 

EXHIBITG-1 

EXHIBITG-2 

EXHIBITG-3 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF AGENCY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AS OF JUNE 30,2017 

Agency 
Student 
Activity Payroll 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 115,740 $ 833,870 

Accounts Receivable 168,171 

Due from Other Funds 278,370 

Total Assets $ 115,740 $ 1,280,411 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Funds $ 387,338 
Summer Payment Plan Deposits 922,716 
Flexible Spending Plan Deposits 31,470 
Payroll Deductions and Withboldings (61,113) 

Due to Student Groups $ 115,740 

Total Liabilities $ 115,740 $ 1,280,411 
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EXHIBITH-1 

Total 

$ 949,610 

168,171 

278,370 

$ 1,396,151 

$ 387,338 
922,716 

31,470 
(61,113) 

115,740 

$ 1,396,151 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT IS PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-8. 
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ACTIVITY ACCOUNT 
Due to Student Groups 

ATHLETIC ACCOUNT 

Due to Student Groups 

Total 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND 

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

EXHIBITH-3 

Balance 
July 1. 2016 

Cash Cash Balance, 
Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2017 

$ 107,952 $ 97,760 $ 105,811 $ 99,901 

19,567 75,415 79,143 15,839 

$ 127,519 $ 173,175 $ 184,954 ;:;_$ ~~1;.:15"",7~4~0 
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EXHIBITH-4 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND 

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Balance, Balance, 
July 1, Cash Cash June 30, 
2016 Receillts Disbursements 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,346,479 $ 56,054,868 $ 56,567,477 $ 833,870 
Accounts Receivable 168,171 168,171 

Due from Other Funds 265,000 13,370 278,370 

Total Assets $ 1,611,479 $ 56,236,409 $ 56,567,477 $ 1,280,411 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Funds 282,326 359,733 254,721 387,338 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 112,973 30,815,209 30,928,182 

Summer Payment Plan Deposits 778,039 924,800 780,123 922,716 

Flexible Spending Account Deposits 32,987 58,440 59,957 31,470 

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 405,154 24,078,227 24,544,494 (61,113) 

$ 1,611,479 $ 56,236,409 $ 56,567,477 $ 1,280,411 
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EXHIBIT I-I 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LONG-TERM DEBT 

STATEMENT OF SERIAL BONDS PAYABLE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Date of Amount of Maturities Interest Balance, Balance, 
Issue Issue Issue Date Amount Rate July 1. 2016 Issued Retired June 30. 2017 

2015 Referendum 2/17/2015 34,695,000 9/15/2017 $ 1,300,000 2.75% 
9/15/2018 1,350,000 2.75% 
911512019 1,400,000 2.75% 
9/15/2020 1,470,000 2.75% 
9/15/2021 1,525,000 2.75% 
9/15/2022 1,590,000 2.75% 
9/15/2023 1,650,000 3.00% 
9/15/2024 1,725,000 3.00% 
9/15/2025 1,785,000 3.00% 
911512026 1,850,000 3.00% 
9/15/2027 1,925,000 3.00% 
9/15/2028 2,015,000 3.00% 
911512029 2,100,000 3.00% 
9/15/2030 2,175,000 3.00% 
911512031 2,270,000 3.00% 
9/15/2032 2,365,000 3.00% 
911512033 2,450,000 3.00% 
9/15/2034 2,500,000 3.00% $ 34,695,000 $ $ 1,250,000 $ 33,445,000 

$ 34,695,000 $ $ 1,250,000 $ 33,445,000 
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EXHIBITI-2 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE AGREEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Term of 
Date Lease 
of (in Amount of Original Issue Balance, Balance, 

Lease Months) Principal Interest July I. 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017 

School Buses 512512015 36 $ 424,200 $ 20,400 $ 276,000 $ 74,100 $ 201,900 

Textbooks 7/25/2015 48 555,000 28,886 437,000 141,006 295,994 

School Buses 3/10/2016 60 343,919 24,398 282,533 53,402 229,131 

School Buses 6/15/2016 84 2,124,294 234,803 2,124,294 212,790 1,911,504 

School Buses 6/15/2017 60 476,248 30,437 $ 476,248 476,248 

$ 3,119,827 $ 476,248 $ 481,298 $ 3,114,777 
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REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy 

State Sources 
Debt Service Aid- Type II 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Regular Debt Service: 

Interest on Debt 
Redemption of Principal 

Total Regular Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original Budget Final 
Budget Transfers Budget 

$ 1,286,269 $ 1,286,269 

961,119 961,119 

2,247,388 2,247,388 

997,388 997,388 
1,250,000 1,250,000 

2,247,388 2,247,388 

2,247,388 2,247,388 

$ $ $ 

Recapitulation of Fund Balance: 
Restricted for Debt Service 
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EXIllBIT I-3 

Variance with 
Actual Final Budget 

$ 1,286,269 

961,119 

2,247,388 

997,388 
1,250,000 

2,247,388 

2,247,388 

$ $ 

$ 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Lakewood Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report 
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's 
overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed 
over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern­
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda­
bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the 
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the government's finan­
cial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the government's financial report 

Exhibits 

J-1 to J-5 

J-6 to J-9 

J-10 to J-13 

J-14 and J-15 

relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 



EXHIBIT J-1 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
(accroa/ basis of accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Governmental Activities 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 6,972,812 $ 8,455,577 $ 10,326,554 $ ll,536,7ll $ 12,1l0,017 $ 12,022,392 $ 13,072,369 $ 11,469,917 $ 10,770,458 $ ll,619,710 
Restricted 270,000 2 45 43 4,123,316 910,733 874,494 I 
Unrestricted {11,363,364~ {6,838!288} p,632,8542 {89,6792 p,655,333} {11,913,721} J:35,682,1162 {36,007,783} {39,836,84:?} {45,928,830} 

Total Governmental Activities Net Position $ {4,120,552) $ 1,617,289 $ 6,693,702 $ 11,447,077 $ 8,454,727 $ 4,231,987 $ (21,699,014) $ (23,663,372) $ (29,066,388) $ {34,309,119) 

Business-Type Activities 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 386,822 $ 386,586 $ 369,726 $ 368,458 $ 427,816 $ 397,052 $ 237,632 $ 537,704 $ 547,223 $ 685,681 
Unrestricted 253,147 537,808 870,243 1,288,067 1,533,546 1,075,278 2,917,582 2,549,599 2,529,455 2,619,983 

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position $ 639,969 $ 924,394 $ 1,239,969 $ 1,656,525 $ 1,961,362 $ 1,472,330 $ 3,155,214 $ 3,087,303 $ 3,076,678 $ 3,305,664 

District-Wide 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 7,359,634 $ 8,842,163 $ 10,696,280 $ 11,905,169 $ 12,537,833 $ 12,419,444 $ 13,310,001 $ 12,007,621 $ 11,317,681 $ 12,305,391 
Restricted 270,000 2 45 43 4,123,316 910,733 874,494 I I 
Unrestricted {11,110,217} {6,300,480} {2,762,611} 1,198,388 {2,121,787} {10,838,443} !;32,764,534} {33,458,184} {37,307,392} {43,308,847} 

Total District Net Position $ (3,480,583) $ 2,541,683 $ 7,933,671 $ 13,103,602 $ 10,416,089 $ 5,704,317 $ (18,543,800) $ (20,576,069) $ (25,989,710) $ (31,003,455) 
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EXHIBIT J-2 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Expenses 
G<:wenunental Activities 

Instruction 
Regular ' 25,541,840 ' 25,719,177 ' 26,958,899 $ 26,163,927 $ 31,814,644 $ 34,508,655 $ 35,477,157 $ 31,984,035 $ 40,225,349 $ 49,774,796 
Special Education 8,122,586 6,475,575 5,656,990 6,429,849 25,797,869 30,646,304 32,723,399 38,847,354 37,683,700 44,558,540 
Other Special Instruction 1,332,596 2,946,097 2,429,689 3,744,551 4,847,231 6,064,313 5,658,237 ll,797,288 10,162,063 11,774,822 
School Sponsored Activities/ Athletics 592,827 835,774 843,857 905,868 1,266,845 1,195,455 1,399,341 1,376,304 1,606,735 1,588,104 
Community Service Programs/Operations 300,479 218,100 78,174 108,989 

Support Services: 
Tuition 10,663,217 15,271,616 15,497,723 15,798,337 
Student & Instruction Related Services 34,554,016 32,638,706 40,175,072 39,0ll,375 44,968,464 46,725,353 49,368,421 45,616,152 51,684,343 53,439,607 
General Administrative Services 2,553,326 2,462,247 2,291,859 1,986,601 2,144,616 2,169,366 2,590,492 3,232,042 2,632,224 3,261,815 
School Administrative Services 3,825,951 3,688,697 3,707,747 3,443,966 4,033,453 3,766,792 3,797,677 4,440,359 5,523,041 6,057,411 

Central Services 1,639,754 1,765,810 2,069,456 2,392,174 2,550,977 2,970,516 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 6,193,663 6,993,299 6,994,554 7,307,360 6,231,930 6,786,985 7,376,514 6,409,213 8,217,595 9,560,255 
Pupil Transportation 14,849,926 15,356,692 16,560,794 16,022,884 18,284,409 20,316,662 22,160,268 23,926,991 27,225,354 29,373,313 

Unallocated Benefits 19,050,792 16,108,033 17,512,777 12,454,456 
Special Schools 60,616 126,884 152,783 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 396,227 316,752 238,609 147,822 61,347 54,973 103,829 295,818 1,094,793 1,152,780 
Adjustment to Budgetary Revenues and Expenditures 165,654 
Unallocated Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 253,469 
Unallocated Depreciation and Amortization 733,204 666,788 615 066 576,769 691 091 773,273 m,373 580,484 703,668 862,105 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 128,936,920 130,077,906 139 714 593 134,102,754 141,781 653 154 774,041 163,498,164 170,898,214 189,309,842 214,374,064 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service 2,548,069 2,633,301 2,750,516 3,029,670 3,362,501 3,250,287 3,680,840 5,112,822 5,221,912 5,193,423 
Latchkey Program 203,774 186,019 158,480 2,087 
Community School 377244 524,533 277,611 209086 263 205 18 

Total Business-Type Activities Expense 3,129,087 3,343 853 3,186,607 3,240,843 3,36~764 3,250,492 3,680,858 5,112,822 5,221,912 5193423 

Total District Expenses __ $ 132,066,007 $ J3~,.g1,7_~-~- $ l_,t_~,_2Q_l~_QQ_ $ 137,343,597 $ 145,144417 $ 158,0:~4,?}} __ __ L_1&1,119~ $ 176,011,036 $ 194,531,_754 $ ~1?,~~_7,487 

Pro2ram Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Charges for Services $ 91,790 $ 74,173 $ 98,025 $ 52,832 $ 125,040 $ 93,062 $ 51,619 
Operating Grants and Contributions 39,649,935 32,050,733 42,369,166 41,307,926 53,293,584 61,149,101 62,666,142 $ 66,119,440 $ 74,320,059 ' 94,961,199 
Capital Grants and Contributions 7 618 37,118 579,798 180 961 649,855 840 909 628 057 52,277 164,625 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 39 749,343 32,162,024 43 046 989 41,541,719 53,418 624 61,89~018 63 558,670 66,747,497 74,372,336 95,125,824 

Business-Type Activities· 
Charges for Services 

Food Service 521,454 523,747 488,489 480,231 459,731 426,725 562,259 465,169 324,594 376,242 
Latchkey Program 169,745 152,082 ll1,133 3 
Community School 328,528 339,879 120,967 81,372 4,574 2,674 

Operating Grants and Contributions 2,162,386 2,413,234 2,687,649 2,874,260 3,201,542 3,532,551 3,753,537 4,578,882 4,885,735 5,039,663 
Capital Grants and Contributions 17 525 

Total Business Type Activities Program Revenues 3,182,113 3,428,942 3,408,238 3 453,391 3,665 847 3,959,276 4J18,470 5,044,051 5,210,329 5,415,905 

Total District Program Revenues $ .q,93tA~~- $ 35,590,966 $ 4(;,455,227 $ 44,995,110 $ 57,084 471 $ 65,851,294 $ 67,877,140 $ _Zl_,Z?) _ _,_~-~~--- $ 79,582,665 $ 100,541,729 

Net (E:s;pe:nse)!Revenue 
G<:wemmental Activities $ (89,187,577) $ (97,915,882) • (96,667,604) $ (92,561,035) $ (88,363,029) $ (92,882,023) $ (99,939,494) $ (104,150,717) $ (114,937,506) ' (119,248,240) 
Business-Type Activities 53,026 85,089 221,631 2q,54s 303 083 708,784 637612 (68,771} (11,583} 222,482 

Total District-Wide Net Expense $ (89,134,551) • (97,830,793) $ {96,445,973) $ (92,348,487) $ (~_8,(}59,94§) $ (92,173,239) ' (99,301,882) $ (104,219,488) $ (114,949,089) $ (119,025,758) 

124 



EXHIBIT J-2 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

General Revenues and Other Cbanj!.es in Net Position 
Governmental Activities: 

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes, Net $ 64,722,523 $ 69,597,133 $ 71,593,625 $ 71,593,625 $ 70,238,004 $ 70,630,210 $ 77,097,641 $ 84,693,837 $ 90,350,168 $ 94,088,028 
Taxes Levied for Debt Service 1,258,914 1,250, 715 1,242,075 1,952,532 867,074 1,615,847 217,615 207,260 543,639 1,286,269 
Federal and State Aid- Unrestricted 17,683,372 27,722,354 28,487,610 25,058,275 14,783,483 14,970,375 15,268,983 15,354,175 15,401,026 15,313,946 
Federal and State Aid- Restricted 79,232 82,635 86,065 75,849 74,461 18,225 18,225 18,225 15,648 534,576 
Federal Grants for School Based Budgets 1,656,635 2,601,215 
Unrestricted Interest Earnings 178,260 104,271 12,805 22,400 5,030 26,862 30,825 73,203 82,102 69,231 
Miscellaneous Income 1,378,476 395,258 321,837 332,304 529,517 197,576 1,161,896 1,839,659 1,485,272 1,372,306 
Special Items: 
Disallowed Federal Grant Program Costs (3,185,605) 
Gain from Sale of Capital Assets 6,076,001 

Transfers 950,000 (93,158} I 200 000 (1,176,774} 

Total Govemmemal Activities 91,376,778 100,102,366 101,744,017 98,941,827 86,497,569 88 659 095 89,432,806 102,186,359 109,534,490 115,265,571 

Business-Type Activities: 

Unrestricted Interest Earnings 25,031 2,329 1,014 1,800 1,754 2,184 899 860 958 6,504 
Miscellaneous Inccme 
Contributions 142,266 178,496 92,932 101,249 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (1,502) 
Transfers 93,158 (1,200,000} 1,176,774 

Total Business-Type Activities 165,795 180 825 93 946 196,207 1,754 (1,197,816} 1,177,673 860 958 6,504 

Total District-Wide $ 91,542,573 $ 100,283 191 $ 101 837 963 $ 99,138,034 $ 86,499,323 $ 87,461,279 • 90,610,479 $ 102 187 219 $ 109,535,448 $ 115,272,075 

Cbanl!,e in Net Position 
Governmental Activities $ 2,189,201 $ 2,186,484 • 5,076,413 $ 6,380,792 $ (1,865,460) • (4,222,928) $ (10,506,688) $ (1,964,358) • (5,403,016) ' (3,982,669) 
Business-Type Activities 218,821 265,914 315577 408 755 304,837 (489,032} 1,815,285 (67,911) (10,625} 228,986 

Total District $ 2,408,022 _, __ 2,452,12!_ -~------~,-~_!_,_~20 - • 6,789,547 • _(l_,_~§_(),_?~J ' (4,711,960) $ (8,691,403) $ (2,032,269) • {5,413,641) $ (3,753,683) 
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EXHIBIT J-3 
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FUNDBALANCES-GOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

General Fund 
Nonspendable $ 1,741,177 
Committed $ 2,124,294 $ 476,248 
Restricted $ 12,655 $ 954,752 $ 698,252 
Assigned $ 151,227 $ 2,972,622 $ 3,108,209 2,982,437 326,488 $ 100,462 $ 908,484 374,546 
Unassigned 273,342 176,875 p,089,2931 {4.165,7211 p2,002,925} p4,700,589} p7,362,880} (11,163,135) 

Total General Fund $ 12,655 $ 151,227 $ 3,245,964 $ 3,285,084 $ 847,896 $ (3,140,981} $ {11,902,463} $ {12,959,412} $ {14,330,102} $ {10,312,341} 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonspendable $ 16,253 
Restricted $ 1 $ 2 $ 45 $ 43 $ 4,123,316 $ 910,733 $ 26,819,497 $ 10,173,759 $ 1,196,336 
Assigned 1,126,703 
Unassigned (433,022} (247,130} (268,566} $ (228,210} $ (3,313,390} {3,285,255} (3,185,605} (3,185,605} 

Total All Other Governmental Funds $ (433,022) $ (247,129) $ (268,564) $ 1,126,748 $ 43 $ 3,895,106 $ (2,402,657) $ 23,534,242 $ 6,988,154 $ (1,989,269) 
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EXHIBIT J-4 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

{modified accrual basis of accounting) 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Revenues 
Tax Levy $ 63,532,102 $ 65,981,437 $ 70,847,848 $ 72,835,700 $ 73,546,157 $ 71,105,078 $ 72,246,057 $ 77,315,256 $ 84,901.097 $ 90,893,807 $ 95,374,297 
Tuition Charges 20,913 91,790 74,173 98,025 52,832 125,040 93,062 51,619 
Textbooks Sales and Rentals 1,676,620 5,030 
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues 664,292 8,074,737 1,449,529 330,346 352,047 549,109 224,438 1,192,721 1,925,251 2,572,237 3,473,759 
Federal Sources 10,873,410 ll,561,269 12,158,436 24,085,496 18,695,167 18,891,155 22,151,571 22,666,199 19,220,615 22,822,594 28,787,734 
State Sources 40,710,856 45,842,092 47,658,605 46,862,942 47,808,034 49,240,781 54,635,985 56,128,060 57,130,959 58,132,363 68,509,588 
Local Sources 16,795 75,800 

Total revenue 117,478,193 131,568,120 132,264,391 144,212,509 140,454,237 139,916,193 149,351,113 157,353,855 163,177,922 174,421,001 196,145,378 

Expenditures 
Instruction 

Regular Instruction 21,714,431 25,556,448 25,096,788 26,921,964 27,019,482 31,757,162 34,181,671 35,683,752 29,266,699 35,988,819 43,413,397 
Special Education Instruction 8,149,000 8,122,586 6,310,871 5,674,237 6,731,756 25,792,359 30,537,677 32,817,339 38,032,953 36,252,727 42,121,812 
Other Special Instruction 1,097,091 1,332,596 2,871,388 2,437,229 3,899,099 4,843,836 5,993,143 5,718,477 ll,ll5,694 9,086,343 9,847,109 
Other Instruction 768,883 592,827 819,944 845,877 939,903 1,266,166 1,182,770 1,410,891 1,381,136 1,541,074 1,415,714 

Community Services Programs/Operations 153,520 300,479 212,548 78,412 114,053 

Support Services and Undistributed Costs: 
Tuition 10,824,614 10,663,217 15,271,616 15,497,723 15,798,337 
Student & Inst. Related Services 29,281,871 34,554,016 32,415,576 40,196,303 39,368,059 44,%1,670 46,597,487 49,489,601 44,354,908 49,641,693 50,025,039 
Other Administrative Services 3,238,245 2,550,367 2,181,602 2,267,554 1,989,085 3,730,420 3,876,377 4,649,364 4,487,295 4,835,729 5,608,548 
School Administrative Services 3,649,353 3,913,858 3,643,345 3,698,403 3,542,ll7 3,964,770 3,638,398 3,756,320 4,117,425 4,889,223 4,988,322 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 5,962,712 6,147,872 6,691,773 6,914,771 7,202,621 6,123,788 6,640,966 6,828,485 6,324,001 8,037,819 9,230,501 
Pupil Transportation 13,061,860 14,849,926 15,350,587 16,561,671 16,035,448 18,284,218 20,312,121 22,590,184 23,931,396 27,156,552 28,797,644 
Unallocated Benefits 17,606,895 19,050,792 15,9ll,604 17,512,777 12,454,456 

Capital Outlay 4,623,616 687,542 1,588,718 956,872 137,188 643,081 3,142,878 4,461,820 4,373,366 16,330,062 ll,877,356 
Special Schools 153,918 60,616 123,778 153,233 

Debt Service: 
Principal 1,010,000 1,040,000 1,085,000 1,135,000 1,859,513 873,043 226,676 973,297 5,304,026 478,375 2,902,800 
Interest and Other Charges 

Total Expenditures 
Excess {Deficiency) ofRevenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (4,191,720) 1,821,812 2,420,244 3,150,951 3,183,952 (2,437,191) (7,038,814) (11,121,066) (10,621,815) (20,939,891) (15,126,093) 

Other Financing sou«es (uses) 
Serial Bond Proceeds (Incl. Premium) 35,501,765 
Capital Leases (Non-Budgeted) 3,600,000 35,589 5,745,000 424,200 3,023,113 476,248 
State Aid Advance Loan 5,640,183 
Cancellation of Accounts Receivable (29,241) (552,543) (81,944) (67,194) 

Cancellation of Accounts Payable 5,022 4,296 2,657 
Adjustment to Budgetary Expenditures (1,223,384) (143,763) 
Adjustment to Budgetary Revenues {21,891) 

Disallowed Federal Grant Program Costs (3,185,605) 
Operating Transfers 439,441 {93,1582 1,200,000 {1,176,7742 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,791,838 (165,654) (552,543) (77,648) (122,106) 6,945,000 (3,938,179) 35,501,765 3,023,113 6,ll6,431 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (1,~!)?.~~:!) $ 1,656,158 $ 1 _ _,_~§_?,_?01 $ 3,073,303 $ 3,061,846 $ .G~~-~!.!2!)_ $ (93,814) $ (15,059,245) $ 24,879,950 $ (17,916,778) $ (9,009,662) 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 
Noncapital Expenditures 1.18% 1.06% 1.06% 0.96% 1.49% 0.70% 0.19% 0.65% 3.79"/o 0.89% 1.98% 

* Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay. 
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EXHIBIT J-5 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Yeat 
Ended Interest Sale of Textbook lnsurnnce/ Facility Cancelled Prior Indirect MunicipaJ 

.Tune30 Eornoo Tuition Assets SalesfRentab Othet Refund• Rental E-Rate Year Payables Costs Contribution LSTA CmJit Mi•rcllaneous Total 

2008 178,260 ' 6,518,000 ' 321,250 209,094 36,755 133,464 677,914 8,074,737 

2009 104,271 950,000 171,081 >904 185,857 35,416 1,449,529 

2010 12,805 84,937 168,139 64,465 330,346 

20ll 22,400 27,633 48,672 225,124 28,218 352,047 

2012 5,030 ' 125,040 15,919 69,811 56,292 252,054 135,441 659,587 

2013 26,862 93,062 18,074 4,711 37,640 137,151 317,500 

2014 30,825 51,619 710,734 3,964 447,198 1,244,340 

2015 43,529 974,316 20,654 $ 268,352 $ 511,565 64,772 1,883,188 

2016 33,578 117,013 17,834 178,090 52,678 966,712 ' 1,000,000 152,945 2,518,850 

2017 51,757 133,745 9,000 244,783 551,5ll 370,622 ' 361,598 62,645 1,785,661 
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Fiscal 

Y= 
Endoi 

June 30, Vacant Land Residential FarmR~. 

2008 468,468,400 5,633,818,300 4,932,900 
2009 443,346,300 5,697,250,600 4,933,100 
2010 306,386,400 4,510,548,500 4,069,100 
20ll 306,386,400 4,510,548,500 4,069,100 
2012 279,418,600 4,597,947,200 4,069,200 
2013 235,722,600 4,648,485,100 4,128,400 
2014 244,960,100 4,523,966,500 3,715,500 
2015 256,079,600 4,625,968,400 3,716,700 
2016 286,546,300 4, 789,711,800 3,221,100 
2017 . 561,132,800 6,875,176,623 4,331,400 

Source: County Abstract ofRatables 

a Tax rates are per $100 

• Revaluation 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Total Assessed 
Commercial Industrial AEartment Value 

762,189,400 602,901,700 374,283,300 7,846,594,000 
753,075,100 602,732,400 356,218,000 7,857,555,500 
674,025,700 508,339,000 334,258,700 6,337,627,400 
674,025,700 508,339,000 334,258,700 6,337,627,400 
649,029,000 534,281,600 307,424,400 6,372,170,000 
6ll,549,700 477,750,200 276,114,903 6,253,750,903 
629,335,100 464,296,800 285,645,800 6,151,919,800 
630,153,600 470,101,100 285,946,300 6,271,965, 700 
624,452,600 459,750,800 287,776,600 6,451,459,200 

1,051,798,750 772,859,700 412,008,622 9,677,307,895 
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EXHIBIT J-6 

ToW 

Estimated Actual Direct 

Net Valuation (County Equalized) School 

Public Utilities Taxable Value Tax Rate• 

15,623,200 7,862,217,200 8,249,195,078 0.871 
16,378,436 7,873,933,936 8,189,413,073 0.925 
17,183,651 6,354,811,051 7,982,028,944 L160 
12,896,952 6,350,524,352 7,600,686,664 Ll20 
12,896,952 6,385,066,952 7,510,502,900 Lll4 
11,813,766 6,265,564,669 7,482,887,100 Ll90 
11,728,940 6,163,648,740 7,171,837,814 LJ07 

6,271,965,700 7,742,833,837 LJ07 
6,451,459,200 8,511,271,738 1_449 
9,677,307,895 9,470,843,507 1.004 



Calendar 
Year 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 • 

* Revalution 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 

LAST TEN YEARS 

Total Direct 
School Tax 

Rate 

0.871 
0.925 
1.160 
1.120 
1.114 
1.190 
1.307 
1.403 
1.449 
1.004 

(Unaudited) 
(rate per $100 of assessed value) 

Overlapping Rates 

Fire District Municipality County 

0.048 0.504 0.316 
0.460 0.554 0.319 
0.057 0.686 0.339 
0.050 0.686 0.420 
0.050 0.686 0.349 
0.044 0.783 0.452 
0.055 0.861 0.466 
0.058 0.861 0.513 
0.070 0.861 0.550 

not available 0.592 0.407 

Source: County Abstract ofRatables 
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EXHIBITJ-7 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping Tax 

Rate 

1.739 
2.258 
2.242 
2.276 
2.199 
2.469 
2.689 
2.835 
2.930 
2.003 



Taxpayer 

1900 Rtc 70 Associates LLC 
I ,akewood Plaza 9 Assoc LP 
Harrogate Inc 
New Hampshire Commons 
Leisure Park Venture LTD 
Lakewood Cogeneration LP 
Parkway Lodging Realty LLC 
Washington Square Investments 
Crossroads Realty Group LLC 
BCR Pinewood Realty LLC 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS, 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

$ 

2017 
Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

43,000,000 
38,000,000 
35,000,000 
31,393,900 
28,199,400 
27,003,700 
26,025,600 
23,481,900 
21,744,800 
19 648 200 

293,497,500 
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%of Total 
District Net 

Assessed Value 

0.44% 
0.39% 
0.36% 
0.32% 
0.29% 
0.28% 
0.27% 
0.24% 
0.22% 
0.20% 

3 03% 

EXHIBIT J-8 

2008 
Taxable %of Total 
Assessed District Net 

Value Assessed Value 

Information Not Available 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Collected within the Fiscal Year 
Taxes Levied of the Levy Collections in 
for the Fiscal Percentage Subsequent 

Year Amount of Levy Years 

65,981,437 65,981,437 100.00% N/A 
70,847,848 70,847,848 100.00% N/A 
72,835,700 72,835,700 100.00% N/A 
73,546,157 73,546,157 100.00% N/A 
71,105,078 71,105,078 100.00% N/A 
72,246,057 72,246,057 100.00% N/A 
77,315,256 77,315,256 100.00% N/A 
84,901,097 84,901,097 100.00% N/A 
90,893,807 90,893,807 100.00% N/A 
95,374,297 95,374,297 100.00% N/A 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

* -Estimated 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Governmental 
Activities 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 

5,012,000 
2,792,000 
2,792,000 
1,697,000 

839,000 
629,000 
419,000 

34,904,000 
34,695,000 
33,445,000 

Capital Leases I 
Lease Purchase 

2,206,747 
1,499,721 

764,513 

25,047 
5,763,117 
5,434,920 

352,926 
3,119,827 
3,114,777 

Business­
Type 

Activities Total District 

7,218,747 
4,291,721 
3,556,513 
1,697,000 

864,047 
6,392,117 
5,853,920 

35,256,926 
37,814,827 
36,559,777 

Source: District records 
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EXHIBIT J-10 

Population Per Capita 

70,960 102 
71,359 60 
93,548 38 
93,879 18 
95,062 9 
96,493 66 
98,134 60 
99,262 355 

100,758 375 
100,758 * 363 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage of 
General Net General Actual Taxable 

Obligation Bonded Debt Value of 
Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

5,012,000 5,012,000 0.06% 
3,927,000 3,927,000 0.05% 
2,792,000 2,792,000 0.04% 
1,697,000 1,697,000 0.03% 

839,000 839,000 0.01% 
629,000 629,000 0.01% 
419,000 419,000 0.01% 

34,904,000 34,904,000 0.56% 
34,695,000 34,695,000 0.54% 
33,445,000 33,445,000 0.35% 

Source: District records 
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EXHIBIT J-11 

Per Capita 

71 
55 
30 
18 
9 
7 
4 

352 
344 
332 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Municipal Debt: (1) 
Lakewood Township Public Schools 
Township of Lakewood 

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality: 
County of Ocean (A) 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Source: 
(1) Township's 2016 Annual Debt Statement 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

$ 

Gross Debt 

33,447,241 
51,310,213 

84,757,454 

Deductions 

$ 33,447,241 
756,339 

$ 34,203,580 

EXHIBIT J-12 

Net Debt 

$ 50,553,874 

50,553,874 

41,085,790 

41,085,790 

$ 91,639,664 

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned to Lakewood Township Public Schools by dividing the municipality's 2016 
equalized value by the total2016 equalized value for Ocean County. (Information not available). 

135 



2008 2009 

Debt limit ' 28,524,901 ' 312,207,174 

Total net debt applicable to limit 5,012,000 2 792,000 

Legal debt margin ' 23,51~.2Q_l_ $ 309,415,174 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 17.57"/o 0.89% 

Source: Annual Debt Statements 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2010 2011 2012 

$ 321,768,990 $ 323,255,691 ' 316,342,262 

2,792,000 1,697,000 839 000 

$ 318,976,990 $ 321,558,691 ' 315,503,262 

0.87"/o 0.52% 0.27% 

~a! Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015 

Equalized valuation basis 
2016 
2015 
2014 

' 

' 

Average equalized valuation of taxable property 

Debt limit (4% 
of average 
equalization 
value) 
Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Legal debt margin 
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EXHIBIT J-13 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 -

304,964,374 ' 295,499,0ll ' 295,320,352 $ 307,744,454 ' 331,268,354 

629,000 419,000 34,906,241 34,697,241 33,447,241 

304,335,374 ' 295,080,011 ' 2_~Q~!_~,JJI $ 273,047,213 ' 297,821,113 

0.21% 0.14% ll.82% 11.27"/o 10.10% 

' 9,019,235,565 
8,251,500,724 
7,574,390,298 

$ 24,845,126,587 

' 8,281,708,862 

$ 331,268,354 
33,447,241 

$ 297,821,113 



Year 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

*-Estimate 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

County Per 
Capita Personal 

Population Income 

70,960 41,329 
71,359 39,746 
93,548 39,900 
93,879 41,460 
95,062 42,499 
96,493 42,573 
98,134 44,381 
99,262 46,109 

100,758 not available 
100,758 * not available 

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education 
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EXHIBIT J-14 

Unemployment 
Rate 

5.9% 
8.9% 
9.1% 
7.5% 
7.8% 
6.5% 
6.3% 
5.1% 
4.2% 

not available 



Employer 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS, 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(Unaudited) 

Employees 

2017 

Percentage of Total 
Municipal 

Employment 

INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE 
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Employees 

EXHIBIT J-15 

2008 

Percentage of Total 
Municipal 

Employment 



EXHIBIT J-16 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALE;\T DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014* 2015* 2016* 2017* 

Function/Program 

Instruction 
Regular 262 248 250 257 291 

Special education 137 136 136 !38 !54 

Other Special Instruction 18 18 20 22 40 

Other instruction 13 12 12 12 12 
Community Services Programs/Operations 3 3 2 2 2 

Support Services: 
Student & instruction related services 240 230 214 217 189 

Other Administrative Services 28 27 27 31 35 

School administrative services 55 54 54 54 57 

Plant operations and maintenance I I I I 3 

Pupil Transportation 5 5 5 4 5 

Special Schools 3 3 3 3 

Total 7f.5 737 724 741 788 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Source: District Personnel Records 

* 2013-2017 Information Not Provided 
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Operating Cost Per Percentage 

Fiscal Year Enrollment" Ex.E_enditures " Pupil< Change 

2007 5,231 115,662,393 22,111 5.42% 

2008 5,541 127,695,600 23,046 4.23% 

2009 5,162 126,901,420 24,584 6.67% 

2010 5,261 138,760,154 26,375 7.29% 

20ll 5.140 135,094,416 26,283 -0.35% 

2012 5,290 140,724,389 26,602 1.21% 

2013* 5,186 152,960,610 29,495 10.87% 

2014* 5.649 162,944,413 28,845 -2.20% 

20!5• 5,807 163,011,507 28,072 -2.68% 

2016* 6,032 177,429,979 29,415 4.79% 

2017* 195,448,086 

Sources: District records 

Note: a Enrollment based on annual October district count. 
b Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay. 
c Cost per pupil represents operating expenditures divided by enrollment. 

2013 and 2017 Certain information not provided. 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
OPERATING STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Teacher/Pupil Ratio 

Senior High Teaching 
Staff Elementary Middle School School 

485 18.1:1 11.1:1 13.1:1 

491 18.1:1 11.1:1 13.1:1 

517 18.1:1 1\.l: I 13.1:1 

456 18.1:1 ll.l:1 13.1:1 

467 12.4:1 9.7:1 9.8:1 

493 11.3:1 10.1:1 12.8:1 

Information not Available 
Information not Available 
Information not Available 
Information not Available 
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Average Daily 
Enrollment (ADE) 

5313 
5,249 
5,298 
5.076 
5,436 
5,362 
5.468 
5,752 
6,184 

Average Daily 
Attendance 

(ADA) 

4,930 
4,906 
4,965 
4,715 
4,697 
4,960 

not available 
not available 
not available 
not available 

%Change in 
Average Daily 

Enrollment 

2.06% 
-1.20% 
0.93% 

-4.19% 
7.09% 

-1.36% 
1.98% 
5.19% 
7.51% 

not available 

EXHIBIT J-17 

Student Attendance 
Percentage 

92.79% 
93.47% 
93.71% 
92.89% 
86.41% 
92.50% 

not available 
not available 
not available 
not available 



EXHIBIT J-18 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHOOL BUILDING !:'\"FORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014* 2015* 2016* 2017* 
----

District Building 
Elementary 
Ella g. Clarke School ( 1946} 

Square Feet 74,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 74,000 61,370 61,370 61,370 61,370 61,370 

Capacity (students) 432 432 432 432 432 432 432 432 432 432 

Enrollment 9ll 863 863 864 864 

Clifton Avenue School (1923) 
Square Feet 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 79,039 79,039 79,039 79,039 79,039 

Capacity (students) 782 782 782 782 782 782 782 782 782 782 

Enrollment a 780 881 881 830 830 

Oak Street School (1983) 
Square Feet 114,000 114,000 114,000 114,000 114,000 70,659 70,659 70,659 70,659 70,659 

Capacity (students) 799 799 799 799 799 799 799 799 799 799 

Enrollment 997 886 886 1,049 1,049 

SQruce Street School (1960} 
Square Feet 54,672 54,672 54,672 54,672 54,672 49,724 49,724 49,724 49,724 49,724 

Capacity (students) 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 

Enrollment a 647 762 762 716 716 

Middle School 
Lakewood Middle School (1957) 

Square Feet 83,272 91,272 91,272 91,272 91,272 102,080 102,080 102,080 102,080 102,080 

Capacity (students) 537 537 537 537 537 537 537 537 537 537 

Enrollment 895 776 776 624 624 

Hie:h School 
Lakewood High School (1971) 

Square Feet 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 276,916 276,916 276,916 276,916 276,916 

Capacity (students) 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 

Enrollment 1,112 1,135 1,135 1,057 1,057 

Other 
Ella G. Clarke Annex (2001) 

Square Feet 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

Capacity (students) 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 

Enrollment 

Administration Buildino 
Square Feet 49,483 49,483 49,483 49,483 49,483 

Capacity (students) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Enrollment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Number of Schools at June 30, 2017 
Elementary= four 
Middle School =one 
High School= one 

Source: District Records 

* 2013 through 2017 Certain information not provided. 
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2008 

School Facilities 

Ella G. Clarke School s 55,689 $ 

Clifton Avenue School 71,723 

Oak Street School 64,119 

Spruce Street School 45,121 

Middle School 92,631 

High School 251,282 

Princeton Avenue 44,903 

Ella G. Clarke Annex 5,445 

\Vhite House 2222_ 

Total School Facilities 633.182 

Other Facilities ? ?69 

Grand Total $ 635,451 $ 

Source: District Records 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

GENERALFVND 
SCHEDULE OF REQt:IRED MAINTENAl'ICE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

86,413 $ 124,374 s 146,377 s 119,607 $ 134,707 

111,293 160,183 179,417 146,605 173,400 

99,493 143,\99 163,747 133,801 155,048 

70,015 100,772 124,599 101,813 109,103 

143,736 206,878 222,505 181,813 224,038 

397,488 577,579 549.448 448,964 607,534 

69,676 
8,448 12,160 42,835 35,001 13,229 
3,5?0 5,067 36,290 29,653 5 549 

990,082 1,330,212 1,465,218 1,197,257 1,422,608 

3,520 5,067 36,290 29,653 16666 

993,602 s 1,335,279 $ 1,501,508 $ 1,226,910 $ 1,43?,!!.74_ 
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EXHIBIT J-19 

2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 110,392 s 118,370 $ 109,787 $ 122,614 
142,152 152,424 141,323 157,834 
127,158 136,347 126,366 141,129 

89,494 95,961 88,920 99,309 
!83,712 196,988 196,528 219,489 

498,359 534,372 582,527 650,586 

10,744 11,508 10,782 12,041 
4,487 4,811 4,5? 1 5,049 

1,166,498 1,250,781 1,260,754 1,408,052 

14,168 15,207 114,029 127,351 

$ 1,180,666 $ 1,265,988 $ 1,374,7~3 $ 1,535,403 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATON 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

Property and Inland Marine 
Building and Business Personal Property 
Blanket Business Income and Extra Expense 
Earthquake 
Electronic Data Processing 
Flood 

Zone Cor X 
ZoneA,D orV 
ZoneB 

Crime 
Computer Fraud 
Employee Theft including Faithful Performance 
Forgery I Alteration 
Theft of Money and Securities 

General Liability 
Commercial General Liability 
Employee Benefit Liability 
Abusive Act Liability 

Automobile 
Uninsured Motorist 

Umbrella Liability 

Boiler and Machinery 

Public Official Bond 
Kenneth Jannarone, School District Treasurer 

Source: District's records 

JUNE 30, 2016 
(Unaudited) 

Coverage 

$ 190,410,808 
5,000,000 
5,000,000 
2,500,000 

10,000,000 
25,000,000 
10,000,000 

50,000 
500,000 

50,000 
50,000 

5,000,000 
5,000,000 

10,000,000 

15,000/30,000 

15,000,000 

100,000,000 

600,000 
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EXHIBIT J-20 

$ 

Deductible 

2,500 

1,000 
5,000 
1,000 
1,000 

2,500 



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 



LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP 

DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA 

GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA 

GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA 

JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA 

PAULJ. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA 

DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA 

JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, I'SA 

ANDREW D. PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA 

CERTIF1ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS EXHIBIT K-1 

ELIZABETH A. SHICK. CPA. RMA, PSA 

ROBERT W. HAAG, C PA, PSA 

DEBORAH K. LERCH, C PA, PSA 

RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA 

DEBRA GOLLE, CPA 

CINDY JANACEK, CPA. RMA 

MARK SCAO, C PA 

SHERYL M. NICOLOSI. CPA. PSA 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Trustees 

Lakewood Board of Education 
Lakewood, New Jersey 

We have aud ited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicab le to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State 
of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of and for the fisca l year ended June 
30, 20 17 and the related notes to the financia l statements, which collectively comprise the Lakewood Board of 
Ed ucation's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2017. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Repor·ting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Lakewood Board of Education's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of express ing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contro l does not a llow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a time ly basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of defic iencies, in interna l control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibi lity that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basi s. A s ignificant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet imp01tant enough to merit attention by these charged with 
governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identifY all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did identifY certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2017-
001 and 2017-002 that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lakewood Board of Education's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit 
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and which are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2017-00 land 2017-002. 

We also noted certain matters that are not required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards that we reported to 
management of the Lakewood Board of Education in a separate report entitled, "Auditor's Management Report on 
Administrative Findings- Financial, Compliance and Performance" dated November 29, 2017. 

Lakewood Board of Education's Responses to Findings 

The Lakewood Board of Education's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education's responses were not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
responses. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fair Lawn, New Jersey 
November 29, 2017 
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP 

DIETER P. LERCII. CPA. RMA. PSA 

GARY J . VINCI, CPA , RMA , I'SA 

GARY W. IIIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA 

JEFFRE Y C. BLISS , CPA, RMA , PSA 

PAIJI.J. LERCII,CPA. RMA. PSA 

DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA . PSA 

JULIUS B. CONSONI,CPA, PSA 

ANDREW D. PARENTE, CPA , RMA. PSA 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS 

EXHIBITK-2 

ELIZABEHI A. SHICK. CPA. RMA. PSA 

ROBERT W. HAAG , C PA. PSA 

DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA. PSA 

RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA. I'SA 

DEBRA GOLLE, CPA 

CINDY JANAC EK. CPA. RMA 

MARK SACO. CPA 

SHERYL M. NICOLOSI. CPA. PSA 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE 

OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY U.S. UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY 

OMB CIRCULAR 15-08 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Trustees 

Lakewood Board ofEducation 
Lakewood, New Jersey 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

We have audited the Lakewood Board of Education 's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget COMB) Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 
State Aid/ Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Lakewood Board of 
Education's major federal and state programs for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2017. The Lakewood Board of 
Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor 's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards and state financial assistance applicable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Lakewood Board of Education's major federal 
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New 
Jersey; Title 2 U.S . Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy 
for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid. Those standards and Circulars require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Lakewood Board of Education 's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Lakewood Board of Education's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the Lakewood Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be repot1ed in 
accordance with U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2017-003 through 2017-005. Our opinion on each 
major federal and state program is not modified with respect to these matters. 

The Lakewood Board of Education's responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education's responses were not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
responses. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Lakewood Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Lakewood Board of Education's internal control over compliance with the types 
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with U.S. 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular I 5-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Lakewood Board of Education's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified ce11ain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider 
the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as item 2017-004 to be a material weakness. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item20!7-005 to be a significant deficiency. 
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The Lakewood Board of Education's responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit 
is/are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education's 
responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on the responses. 

The purpose of this repm1 on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of U.S. Uniform Guidance and New 
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this repm1 is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and Schedule of 
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 17 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education's basic financial 
statements. We issued our repot1 thereon dated November 29, 2017, which contained unmodified opinions on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as 
required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey 
OMB Circular 15-08 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and cet1ain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Fair Lawn, New Jersey 
November 29, 2017 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL A WARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 1 GENERAL 

EXHffiiTK-5 

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Lakewood 
Board of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note I (A) to the Board's financial statements. All federal 
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed 
through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial 
assistance. 

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of 
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These basis of 
accounting are described in Notes l (C) to the Board's financial statements. The information in these schedules is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (U.S. Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB 
Circular I 5-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants, and State Aid". Therefore, some 
amounts presented in these schedules may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial 
statements. 

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison 
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related 
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas 
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue 
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. I 8A:22-
44.2.. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and 
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying 
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue 
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. I8A:22-44.2. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of $320,949 for the general fund 
and a decrease $325,086 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a 
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. 
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented as 
follows: 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ I,375,024 $ 4I,040,256 $ 42,4I5,280 
Special Revenue Fund 27,4I2,7IO 26,508,2I3 53,920,923 
Debt Service Fund 96I,I 19 96I,I I9 
Food Service Fund 4,99I,203 48,460 5,039,663 

Total Awards and Financial Assistance $ 33,778,937 $ 68,558,048 $ I 02,336,985 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTESTOTHESCHEDULESOFEXPENDITURESOF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

EXHIBITK-5 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal 
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District's fiscal year and grant program years. 

NOTE 5 STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING 

The District's state loan outstanding at June 30, 2017, which are not required to be reported on the schedule of state financial 
assistance, are as follows: 

Loan Program 

State Aid Advance - 2014/15 
State Aid Advance- 2016/17 

NOTE6 OTHERINFORMATION 

Amount 

$ 3,600,000 
5,076,165 

$ 8,676,165 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program as non-cash assistance represent current year 
value received and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions in the amount of $2,433,338 
represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The amount reported as TPAF Pension System Contributions in the amount of 
$3,460,363, TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount of $2,883,270 and TPAF Long-Term 
Disability Insurance in the amount of $15,837 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017. 

NOTE 7 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT 

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits and Long-Term Disability Insurance 
Contributions are not subject to a State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The 
Schedule of State Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District's 
financial statements and the amount subject to State single audit and major program determination. 

NOTE 8 SCHOOL WIDE PROGRAM FUNDS 

Schoolwide programs are not separate federal programs as defined in U.S. Uniform Guidance; amounts used in schoolwide 
programs (i.e., school based budgets) are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the 
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The following funds by program are included in schoolwide programs in the 
District. 

Federal Program Amount 

Title I, Part A: Grants to Local Educational Agencies $2.60l,lli 

NOTE 9 DE MINIMIS INDIRECT COST RATE 

The District has elected to use the I 0 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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EXHIBIT K-6 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Part I- Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statement Section 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to the basic financial 
statements noted? 

Federal Awards Section 

Internal Control over major programs: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 

2) Were significant Deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be rriaterial weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with U.S. Uniform Guidance? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number( s) 

84.010A SOIOA150030 

10.553 171NJ304NI099 

10.555 171NJ304NI099 

10.559 171 NJ304N020 

84.027 H027AI600100 

84.173 HI73AI60114 

84.419B S419B150020 

93.778 1705NJ5MAP 

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

!54 

Unmodified 

---"X'--yes ____ no 

____ yes _ _:_X.:__ none reported 

---"X'--yes ____ no 

____ yes __ .:;Xc__no 

____ yes __ _;X~-- none reported 

Unmodified 

---'-X~_ yes _____ no 

Name of Federal Program 

Title I 

School Breakfast Program 

National School Lunch Program 

Summer Food Program 

IDEA Part B, Basic 

IDEA Preschool 

Race to the Top-Preschool Expansion 

Special Education Medicaid Incentive 

$ 1,014,555 

____ yes __ ,;:X~_ no 



EXHIBIT K-6 

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Section I~ Summary of Auditor's Results 

State Awards Section 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Internal Control over major programs: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

'1 'ype of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular Letter 15-08? 

Identification of major programs: 

GMIS Number(s) 

495-034-5120-078 

495-034-5120-089 

495-034-5120-084 

495-034-5120-098 

495-034-5120-097 

495-034-5120-10 I 

495-034-5120-014 

100-034-5120-075 

100-034-5120-067 

I 00-034-5120-066 

Dollar threshold used to determine between type A and type B programs: 
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_____ yes --'-'X'-_ no 

__ .:.X:c._ __ yes ____ no 

__ .:.X:c._ __ yes ____ none reported 

Unmodified 

__ .:.X:c._ __ yes ____ no 

Name of State Program 

Equalization Aid 

Special Education Aid 

Security Aid 

PARCC Readiness Aid 

Per Pupil Growth Aid 

Professional Learning Community Aid 

Transportation Aid/Reimbursed Non-Public Transportation 

Debt Service Aid 

Nonpublic Auxiliary Services (Ch, 192) 

Nonpublic Handicapped Services (Ch 193) 

$ 1,884,152 



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Part 2 -Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

EXHIBITK-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the 
basic financial statements that are required to be repm1ed in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing 
Standard\'. 

Finding 2017-001: 

The District ended the year with cumulative fund deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

Criteria or specific requirement: 

GAAP Technical Systems Manual; NJAC 6A:23A-16.10 

Condition: 

The general fund and special revenue fund ended the year with deficits in fund balance. 

Questioned Costs: 

None. 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

The District's General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance was in a deficit position of $4,353,898 at June 
30, 2017. In addition, the fund balance of the Special Revenue Fund was in a deficit position of $3,185,605 at 
June 30, 2017. 

The District is in a deficit position as of June 30, 2017. 

Unknown. 

Recommendation: 

Continued etforts be made to eliminate the cumulative deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Part 2- Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

EXHIBITK-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the 
basic financial statements that are required to be repmted in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Finding 2017-002: 

Our audit of the District's payroll accounts indicated the following: 

• The payroll agency bank account ended the year in a deficit position of $127,331. 

• The payroll agency fund reserve balance ended the year in a deficit position of $61,113. 

• An overpayment in the amount of $349,427 was made to the State of New Jersey for pension 
remittances. A refund was received by the District for this overpayment. 

• Employee salaries and withholdings for pension contributions, as reported in the District's payroll 
system, were not always in agreement with amounts reported to the State ofNew Jersey. 

• Duplicate payments of employee payroll deductions were made. 

• Disbursements made from the net payroll bank account only require one (I) authorization 
signature. 

• A report of the value of employee accruals accumulated sick and vacation amounts earned was 
not able to be provided for audit. 

• Three (3) instances were noted where individuals no longer employed by the District continued 
to received medical benefits subsequent to the date of termination. 

Criteria or specific requirement: 

GAAP Technical Systems Manual; NJAC 6A:23A-16.1 0 

Condition: 

The payroll agency reconciled cash account and fund reserve balances were in deficit positions at year end. 
Duplicate payments and overpayments of employee payroll withholdings were noted during the 2016117 fiscal 
year. Salaries and related deductions for employee pensions reported to the State of New Jersey were not in 
agreement with amounts reported in the District payroll system. Disbursements from the net payroll bank account 
require only one (I) check authorization signature. A report of employee accruals of sick and vacation time could 
not be provided for audit. 

Questioned Costs: 

None. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Part 2 -Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

EXHIBIT K-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the 
basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Finding 2017-002 (Continued): 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

• The reconciled cash balance of the payroll agency bank account at year end was a deficit 
of$127,331. 

• The reserve for payroll deductions and withholding balance was in a deficit position of 
$61, 113 at year end. 

• An overpayment of pension was made to the State of New Jersey in December 2016 in 
the amount of$349,427. A refund was received by the District in March 2017. 

• Employee pension withholdings for the second quarter of2017, as reflected in the 
payroll system, were $192,178 for PERS and $727,594 for TPAF. The District reported to 
the State ofNew Jersey pension withholdings of$203,414 for PERS and $741,373 for 
TPAF. 

• Duplicate payments of employee withholdings were made in June 2017 in the amount of 
$168,171. Refunds have been subsequently received by the District. 

• The net payroll bank account includes only one (I) authorized signature on checks for 
disbursement. 

• A repmt of employee accruals for accumulated sick and vacation time was not provided 
for the audit. 

• Three (3) instances were noted where individuals no longer employed by the District 
continued to received medical benefits subsequent to the date of termination. 

Funds were not available at year end meet the District's payroll deduction liabilities. 

Unknown. 

Recommendation: 

Internal controls over the District's payroll department be reviewed and enhanced. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Part 3- Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

EXHIBIT K-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and 
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

CURRENTYEARFEDERALAWARDS 

Finding 2017-003: 
Our audit of the District's NCLB Title I Program revealed the following: 

• Employees whose salaries were charged to the Title I grant program were not always approved in the 
minutes as a designated Title I employee. 

• The required bi-annual certification by employees performing Title I services were not maintained and made 
available for audit. 

Information on the Federal Program 
84.0 I OA NCLB Title I 

Criteria or specific requirement: 
Uniform Guidance- Allowable Costs I Cost Principles 

Condition: 
Expenditures for employee salaries were allocated to the Title I grant program without specific approval and 
certification of service performed. 

Questioned Costs: 
None. 

Context: 

Effect: 

Cause: 

The District expended $1,978,901 of Title I funds on employee salaries. Five (5) employees were selected for 
testing. Three (3) were not specifically approved in the minutes as Title I employees. The District was not able to 
be provide the bi-annual ce1tification of Title I services for each of the five (5) employees tested. 

The District is not in compliance with the documentation of time and effort requirement of the Title I grant 
program. 

Unknown. 

Recommendation: 
Employee salaries funded by the Title I grant program be specifically approved in the minutes and the required bi­
annual certification of Title I services performed be filed by the respective employees. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Part 3- Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

EXHIBITK-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and 
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS 

Finding 2017-004: 

The District ended the year with cumulative fund deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

State Program Information: 

Equalization Aid 
Special Education Aid 
Security Aid 
PARCC Readiness Aid 
Per Pupil Growth Aid 
Professional Learning Community Aid 

495-034-5120-078 
495-034-5120-089 
495-034-5120-084 
495-034-5120-098 
495-034-5120-097 
495-034-5120-10 I 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: 

State Grant Compliance Supplement 

Condition: 

The general fund and special revenue fund ended the year with deficits in fund balance. 

Questioned Costs: 

None. 

Context: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

The District's General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance was in a deficit position of $4,353,898 at June 
30, 2017. In addition, the fund balance of the Special Revenue Fund was in a deficit position of $3,185,605 at 
June 30, 2017. 

Unknown. 

The District is in a deficit position as of June 30, 2017 resulting m non-compliance with state aid grant 
requirements. 

Recommendation: 

Continued efforts be made to eliminate the cumulative deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

Purl 3- Schedule of Federulund State Award Finding,f und Questioned Costs 

EXHIBITK-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and 
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS 

Finding 2017-005: 

On-Roll 
Student counts on the ASSA were not in agreement with supporting workpapers provided for audit. 

Ce1tain students were not able to be veritied to class registers provided for audit. 

Private School for the Disabled 
Certain IEP's were not able to be provided for audit. 

Students rep01ted were not always able to be veritied to a tuition bill. 

Tuition contracts were not always able to be provided for audit. 

Low Income 
Student counts for Low Income rep01ted on the ASSA were not in agreement with supp01ting workpapers 
provided for audit. 

Meal applications and/or household information surveys were not always able to be provided for audit. 

Certain students were not able to be verified to class registers. 

State program Information: 

Equalization Aid 
Special Education Aid 
Security Aid 
PARCC Readiness Aid 
Per Pupil Growth Aid 
Professional Learning Community Aid 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: 

495-034-5120-078 
495-034-5120-089 
495-034-5120-084 
495-034-5120-098 
495-034-5120-097 
495-034-5120-101 

State of New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement. 

Condition: 

Student counts claimed on the ASSA as On-Roll, Private School for the Disabled and Low Income were not always 
able to be supported by the respective required documentation. 

Questioned Costs: 

Unknown. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Part3- Scltedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

EXHIBIT K-7 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and 
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

CURRENT YEAR STATE A WARDS 

Finding 2017-005 (Continued): 

Context: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Variances noted can be found on the Schedule of Audited Enrollments in the Auditor's Management Repmt. 

Unknown. 

Student counts reported on the ASSA were not always able to verified to actual student counts and related 
documentation. 

Recommendation: 

lntemal controls be enhanced to ensure that documentation to support students reported on the ASSA is retained for 
audit. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

EXHIBITK-8 

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state 
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Finding 2016-001: 

The District ended the year with fund balance deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, 
general fund budgetmy line items for transportation and unallocated benefits incurred expenditures which exceeded 
available appropriations. 

Current Status 

Partial corrective action has been taken. See finding 2017-001. 

Finding 2016-002: 

Contract balances due to vendors for capital improvement projects exceeded the amount of referendum funds 
available as of June 30,2016. 

Current Status 

Corrective action has been taken. 

Finding 2016-003: 

The District ended the year with cumulative fund deficits in the General and Special Revenue funds. 

Current Status 

See finding 2017-004. 

Finding 2016-004: 

Our audit of the District's Chapter 192-Non-Public Auxiliary Service program revealed that the required forms 
407-1 were not always signed by appropriate District personnel and did not always include the date of the 
services provided. 

Current Status 

Corrective action has been taken. 
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

EXHIBITK-8 

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state 
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Finding 2016-005: 

Student count claimed on the ASSA as On-Roll, Private School for the Special Education were not always able to 
be suppmied by the respective required documentation. 

Current Status 

See finding 2017-005. 
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